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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH
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Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2022)
Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from 1 December 2022)
Mr. Luo Xian Ping
Mr. Ho Wai Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Chun Wa

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)

Mr. Lau Ka Wing (resigned with effect from 14 April 2023)

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (appointed with effect from 13 July 2023)
Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from 9 August 2023)
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Mr. Tam Chun Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)

Mr. Lau Ka Wing (resigned with effect from 14 April 2023)

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (appointed with effect from 13 July 2023)
Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from 9 August 2023)
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Mr. Tam Chun Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)

Mr. Lau Ka Wing (resigned with effect from 14 April 2023)

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (appointed with effect from 13 July 2023)
Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from 9 August 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2022)
Mr. Tam Chun Wa

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)
Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from 9 August 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Keung

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
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LEGAL ADVISER

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKER

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co Ltd (Hong Kong branch)
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 7712, 77/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Corporation Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shop 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

979

WEBSITE

http://www.hk-greenenergy.com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Green Energy
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group
for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 (“FY2023").

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

During FY2023, the Group has principally engaged in (a) renewable
energy business, (b) waste construction materials and processing
service, () plastic recycling/metal scrap business, (d) money lending
business, and (e) healthcare business which was disposed in June
2023. An analysis of the above segments can be found in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group's total revenue for FY2023 was approximately HK$82.5
million (for the year ended 30 June 2022 (“FY2022"): approximately
HK$441.3 million) representing a decrease of 81.3% as compared
with that for FY2022. The decrease in revenue was mainly resulted
from the renewable energy business segment with the shift of focus
on its newly established operations on collection and processing of
used cooking oil.

Further details of the financial analysis for FY2023 have been
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this
annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(a) Renewable Energy - trading and processing of
recyclable oil/biodiesel

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$73.1
million from the trading and processing of recyclable oil/
biodiesel for FY2023 (FY2022: approximately HK$424.2
million). The great reduction in revenue was mainly resulted
from a strategic shift from the bulk shipment of palm oil mill
effluent methyl ester to the Public Republic of China (the
“PRC") customers with a much lower profit margin to the
new operation on the locally collected and processing of used
cooking oil.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

(a)

(b)

Renewable Energy - trading and processing of
recyclable oil/biodiesel - continued

Qil prices were a roller coaster ride in 2022. In the first half of
2022, geopolitical tension with Russia, culminating with
Russia’s full-scale invasion of Ukraine contributed to crude oil
price increases. Since early June 2022, crude oil prices
generally decreased as concerns about a possible economic
recession reduced demand. Slowing global growth and
concerns about a global recession have thus far outweighed
worries about insufficient oil supply. The reduction in prices of
used cooking oil since its peak in June 2022 had inevitably
eroded the profit margin of the renewable energy segment.

During FY2022, the Group had put its focus on the sales of
palm oil mill effluent methyl ester in order to overcome the
unfavourable impacts from the coronavirus pandemic, despite
the fact that the sales got comparatively lower profit margin.
Facing all those adverse economic conditions, the Group tried
to explore feasible ways to increase its income stream. The
Group had successfully set up its own storage and processing
factory, and commenced its operation to store and process
the used cooking oils in 2022. Through its own fleet of
collection trucks and outsourcing partner, the Group began to
build up its local supplier network to collect used cooking oils
in Hong Kong with its own capability.

With the shift in strategic focus from the sales of palm oil mill
effluent methyl ester last year to processing and sales of used
cooking oils, the revenue of the segment had dropped by
82.8%. Nevertheless, the strategy attained a promising result
with a net profit of HK$5.3 million for FY2023 as compared
with HK$3.9 million in FY2022.

Waste construction materials and processing
service

The revenue of this business segment involves the collection
and recycling of waste construction materials and the sale of
recycled construction materials. The revenue arising from this
sector was approximately HK$4.1 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
approximately HK$5.2 million). The decrease in revenue was
resulted from the lack of incoming materials and the keen
competition in the region.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRBE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

(c)

(d)

Plastic recycling/metal scrap business

The business segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$2.6 million for FY2023 (FY2022: approximately HK$4.2
million). Market uncertainties and high volatility in price had
resulted in weak demand. Recycle rates across so many
markets in 2023 have regressed to lower levels. Many small
and mid-sized players are currently thinking about trying to
keep the lights on instead of any long term investment
planning.

The European market for recycled plastic remains under severe
pressure. In recent months, prices have dropped further to
levels not seen for a while. Demand for European mechanically
recycled polymers is the lowest it's been for several years.
Costs through the chain remain high and producer margins
for many grades narrow. The deteriorating market situation is
caused mainly by uncertainty in the economy. This has also led
to a substantial drop in consumers’ purchasing power.

Consistently low prices of virgin materials are continuing to
pose challenges for recyclers, both regionally and in Europe.
Despite efforts to stimulate demand through price cuts,
recyclers are meeting with lacklustre responses.

Money lending business

There was approximately HK$0.2 million in revenue arising
from this sector for FY2023 (FY2022: Nil). Tighter financing
conditions on the back of entrenched inflation, prolonged
recession, and persistent input-cost inflation could squeeze
further margins of corporations, leading to sharper credit
deterioration in the market. The Group would restrict credit in
order to preserve capital due to anticipated credit writedowns
and recession risk in the market, as it leaves little room for
misstep of the Group.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Healthcare business

The key element of this sector involved the laboratory diagnostic
service and clinical health service. The healthcare business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$2.5 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
approximately HK$7.6 million). The wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group operating the healthcare business had been sold in June 2023,
and please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 June
2023 for the details.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

Healthcare business — continued

The Group started the new venture in the healthcare business in the
fourth quarter of 2020, in view of the needs of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19") testing service at the time and the growing
demand for health diagnoses and preventive healthcare services
among the public. With the pandemic running rampant in Hong
Kong at the time, COVID-19 testing service was the initial focus of
the Group’s healthcare business at its launch. Nonetheless,
international travel restrictions, the prolonged delay in the
resumption of cross-border travel between Hong Kong and Mainland
China and the free COVID-19 testing service provided by the Hong
Kong government all had an adverse impact on the development of
the Group’s healthcare business. Furthermore, being a new entrant
to the market, the Group faced keen competition from large medical
groups with chain clinics for diagnosis and treatment services. Taking
into account the continuous underperformance of the Group's
healthcare business since its commencement of operations, the
Group had made a reassessment of its commercial viability and
decided to cut its losses by disposing of its interest in the concerned
subsidiary.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The global economy continues to gradually recover from the
pandemic, but the upturn remains weak, amid significant downside
risks. In the near term, the signs of progress are undeniable. Lower
energy prices are helping to bring down headline inflation and ease
strains on household budgets, and the reopening of China in 2023
has provided a boost to global activity. However, signs are growing
that global activity is losing momentum. The global tightening of
monetary policy has brought policy rates into contractionary territory.
Risks of a prolonged period of low growth stand, amid stubborn
inflation, rising interest rates, and heightened uncertainties, in
addition to the ever-worsening impact of climate change.

The growth of the used cooking oil (UCO) market for biodiesel
production is increasing. Demand for UCO, particularly from the
European Union, is expected to increase as a result of changes in
climate legislation and new proposals. In Renewable Energy Directive
2018/2001/EU (RED 1I), the contribution of waste oils including UCO
is currently limited, but under the proposed revision, the definition of
transport energy would include the marine and aviation sectors and
thus the volume of fuel qualifying toward the directive would
increase. Additionally, the proposed ReFuelEU Aviation regulation
requires Sustainable Aviation Fuels (SAF) blending beginning in 2025
and it will further incentive the production of fuels using waste oils,
especially because the contribution of waste oils is not capped. With
the strategic move to collection and processing of used cooking oil
by the Group, the gross margin on the renewable energy business
would further increase.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRBE

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS
- continued

The market for plastic recyclables has seen a gradual decline and
lacklustre demand. Plastic recyclers are coming under severe pressure,
as prices continue to fall because of low demand, cheaper virgin
material prices and wider economic uncertainty. Bearish
macroeconomic conditions and high inflation has exerted a profound
impact consumption and demand. Ongoing high costs, chiefly linked
to energy, are reducing industrial output. Most important of all,
however, is the substitution to comparatively low-priced virgin and
off-spec markets. Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) recycled
content targets — many of which are due to mature in 2025 — remain
ambitious and aggressive, even if current demand remains weak. In
November 2022 the EU Commission proposed draft legislation that
would replace the existing Packaging and Packaging Waste Directive
(PPWD) with a new Packaging and Packaging Waste Regulation.
However, meeting the EU’s plastic recycling goals is a “quantity and
quality challenge” along the whole value chain, starting from
feedstock and material collection. Macroeconomic conditions remain
volatile and unpredictable, while continued falls in virgin values are
adding further negative pressure on recycling markets. These typically
result in postponement in investment, which in turn will make these
targets increasingly difficult to meet.

U. S.-China relations have become progressively more strained. Any
ratcheting up of tensions between the two countries over Russia or
the South China Sea region, or an escalation of the technology race,
could impede trade, intellectual property, investments, and financial
transactions for both and other economies.

Prospects for a robust global economic recovery remain dim as the
lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic carry on. Signs are
growing that global activity is losing momentum. The global
tightening of monetary policy has brought policy rates into
contractionary territory. The Group will closely monitor the impact of
any downside risks on its operating environment and plan proactively
to maintain its liquidity and financial health. The Group may also take
necessary actions to minimize or cut the losses of concerned business
segments in order to preserve funding for development of existing
renewable energy business and exploration of any potential new
projects. On the other hand, the Group will actively explore new
business opportunities and investments to broader its revenue stream
while aligning with the mission and culture of the Group to build a
green and healthy future for sustainable development.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGAEEAEEREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 December 2022. Mr. Lo obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Computer Science and a master’'s degree in Computer Science
from the University of Southern California in 1997 and 2000,
respectively. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
2016. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in the manufacturing and
testing industries and international trade. He was the chief
information officer of Eastgate Technology Ltd. (“Eastgate”) (a
company currently known as Shinvest Holding Ltd., whose shares are
listed on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Limited) from 2008
to 2010, responsible for the overall IT strategic and demand supply
chain planning of Eastgate and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo was appointed
as the chairman of CMA Testing and Certification Laboratories
("CMA TACL") from January 2018 to December 2020 and he has
been an advisor of CMA TACL since January 2021. He is currently the
managing director of Wing Li Group (International) Limited and the
executive director of Wing Li Packaging Limited, responsible for
overseeing the production facilities, research and development, and
sales operations of these companies, which specialise in
manufacturing and international trade. Mr. Lo is also the chairman of
Win Fung Property Company Limited, a property management
company.

Mr. Lo is actively involved in a number of industry and government
organisations. He is currently the Executive Vice President of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and a vice
chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council. Mr. Lo also
serves as a member of each of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, the Vocational Training Council and the Hong Kong Council
for Testing and Certification, as well as a vetting committee member
of the Trade and Industrial Organisation Support Fund. He is also a
member of each of the China Overseas Friendship Association and
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Fujian Province
Committee in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. Luo Xian Ping, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 January 2018. Mr. Luo holds a bachelor degree in Business
Management from Jiangxi University and a master degree in Business
Management from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences University. Mr. Luo is also a Certified Public
Accountant registered in the PRC and a Certified Public Valuer in the
PRC.

Mr. Luo has over 17 years’ experience in assets restructuring and
corporate finance. Mr. Luo served as the chief executive officer of
China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (formerly known
as China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited), a company
whose shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8158), from
December 2009 to August 2012 and its executive director from
March 2009 to August 2012. He is currently the chairman of the
board of directors of FDC Group Limited and the executive director
of C.H.M.T. Peaceful Development Asia Fund Limited. From 1998 to
2001, he served as an executive director of China Securities Co.,
Ltd.* CEEHEFKRHBRAF]), responsible for corporate assets
restructuring and human resources management. He has served as
an executive director of Kaili Asset Servicing Company Limited* (1t
YFEERBER AR (in partnership with Morgan Stanley). From
1995 to 1998, Mr. Luo was the vice-secretary for Youth Executive
President Committee* (FF 8 Z 8 E) of National State-owned
Asset Administration Bureau and worked as a general manager in
Beijing Assets Valuation Company Limited.

Mr. Ho Wai Hung, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
on 12 March 2018. Mr. Ho is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Ho obtained an Advanced Diploma in Accounting and
Finance from the University of Greenwich in 2010. He is experienced
in accounting and finance, and the money lending business. He had
worked with various money lending companies in Hong Kong, in
which he was responsible for roles in the accounting and finance
functions. With effect from February 2017 to February 2018, Mr. Ho
was the assistant to finance director at the subsidiaries of Superactive
Group Company Limited (formerly known as United Pacific Industries
Limited) (Stock Code: 176), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREBAEBERRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 24 August 2011. Mr. Tam is currently the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the authorized
representative of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 3326) and an executive director of some
subsidiaries of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited. He was
the executive director of Chinasing Investment Holdings Limited from
February 2009 to August 2015, a company whose shares were listed
on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Limited. Mr. Tam obtained
a Master degree of Business Administration from the University of
Sydney. He is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), CPA (Australia) and Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants. Mr. Tam has more than 30 years
in the areas of auditing, accounting, tax, investment banking and
company secretarial works.

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 13 July 2023. Mr. Man obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1997. He is a member of each of the HKICPA, the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered
Governance Institute, and a fellow member of each of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Man is also a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) registered with the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council and a Certified Financial Risk Manager admitted by the
Global Association of Risk Professionals.

Mr. Man has over twenty years of financial and compliance
experiences in relation to listed companies in Hong Kong, large
state-owned enterprise and multinational companies. He gained
extensive audit experience from PricewaterhouseCoopers (Arthur
Andersen before its merger with PricewaterhouseCoopers) from 1997
to 2003. Mr. Man was the financial controller and the company
secretary of Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (a company
whose shares were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange from 26
October 2001 to 21 June 2010 (stock code: 8091) before they were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 22
June 2010 (stock code: 1026)) from 2003 to 2004, the financial
controller and the head of the investor relations department of China
Foods Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506)) from 2004 to 2018, and the
vice president - finance and business development and the company
secretary of O-Net Technologies (Group) Limited (a company whose
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until
they were withdrawn from listing on 19 October 2020 (stock code:
877)) from 2018 to 2019. He worked as the chief financial officer of
Linpo Holdings Limited, an electronic components distributor in
Greater China headquartered in Hong Kong from 2020 to 2021.
Mr. Man has been a director of Resynergy Consultancy Limited, a
professional consulting firm based in Hong Kong which is specialised
in providing business compliance services to listed companies in Hong
Kong and other entities with statutory and regulatory obligations
since 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
continued

Ms. Jiang Zhihua, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 August 2023. Ms. Jiang obtained a
Bachelor of Engineering degree and a Master of Applied Science
degree from the Tsinghua University and the University of Toronto in
1993 and 1999, respectively. She has over twenty years of extensive
experience in project and team management and in-depth knowledge
of different types of businesses, including manufacturing, supply
chain, retail and e-commerce. Ms. Jiang worked as a software
engineer at Triversity Inc. in Canada from May 2001 to March 2004.
She worked as a contract system analyst at MTR Corporation Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 66), from March 2004 to April 2006, where
she participated in various system development works and supervised
a team of analysts/programmers in Zhuhai, the PRC. During August
2009 to February 2020, Ms. Jiang worked as a senior system
manager at Sa Sa Cosmetics Ltd, where she was responsible for
leading a team to provide system implementation, enhancement and
remote service management for the company’s operations in Taiwan,
the PRC, Singapore and Malaysia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Chi Keung, aged 59, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in December 2019.
Mr. Ng is a member of the HKICPA, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He
holds a Master degree in Business Administration from the University
of Manchester in the United Kingdom. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBN®mRDM

BUSINESS REVIEW

During FY2023, the Group has principally engaged in (a) renewable
energy business, (b) waste construction materials and processing
service, () plastic recycling/metal scrap business, (d) money lending
business, and (e) healthcare business which has been discontinued to
operate after the disposal of the business in June 2023.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Renewable Energy Business

The Group has begun to focus its development on trading of
recyclable oil/biodiesel since 2017. The recyclable oil is in the nature
of used cooking oil which could be further used as one of the
components in refining biodiesel, one of the renewable energy
commonly used.

The operation of the renewable energy business is accredited with an
International Sustainability and Carbon Certificate (“ISCC”) according
to the Renewable Energy Directive 2018/2001/EU (RED II) of the
European Parliament. The Group handles the customers’ product
specification and discuss product specification with the raw material
suppliers, as well as inspects their raw material quality.

The Group has well-established network and partnership in the fields
of used cooking oil and biodiesel, which in turn allows the Group to
secure constant supply for the operations of the renewable energy
business as well as timely fulfill the demands from the customers.
The Group is able to (i) source suitable raw material suppliers in
accordance with specified product specification and identify suitable
providers; (ii) review customers’ requirements with the raw material
suppliers; (iii) inspect and assure raw material quality; (iv) follow up
on reprocessing and logistics arrangement; (v) the operations are
conducted in accordance with the procedural requirements of the
ISCC; (vi) serve as a significant bridge in between both ends to
accommodate credit requirements arising from timing difference of
credit period in the supply chain; and (vii) provide confidence to the
customers regarding the quality of products as the Group possesses
ISCC certifications which are world-wide recognized, and help them
to meet the requirements set in the Renewable Energy Directive
2018/2001/EU (RED Il) and Fuel Quality Directive 2009/30/EC.
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

Renewable Energy Business — continued

Further, the consulting and brokerage firms in relation to
wasted-based feedstock and biofuels have been acting as important
intermediaries in the industry who will provide valuable market
information and foreign customer bases to the market players in the
renewable energy business segment. The Group has established solid
relationship with various reputable and sizeable consulting and
brokerage firms, such as Olyx B.V., Nexus-brokerage and Greenea,
for several years which has continuously facilitated the Group to
approach and secure a number of new customers.

()

(1

(1)

Products

The Group primarily purchases/collects used cooking oils,
recyclable oil and/or biodiesel as well as palm oil mill effluent
methyl ester in the PRC and Hong Kong, which have been
reprocessed according to the quality specification required by
different customers, and sells them as feedstock to overseas
and PRC buyers for the trading/production of biodiesel and/or
for use in other industrial applications.

Customers

The customers mainly comprise feedstock suppliers and
recyclers who are engaged in the trading of recyclable waste
cooking oils, palm oil mill effluent methyl ester and/or
production of biodiesel in European countries, South East Asia
and the PRC.

Suppliers

The recyclable oil and/or biodiesel are supplied by waste oil
collectors in Hong Kong and the PRC; and palm oil mill effluent
methyl ester are sourced from suppliers in South East Asia and
the PRC through the business partner. The Group is also
sourcing used cooking oil directly from suppliers with its own
collection trucks in Hong Kong.

New development in renewable energy business
since 2022:

(i)

Expansion of operating team

The Group has recruited additional new staff with relevant
experiences in the trading and collection of used cooking oils in
the Hong Kong market to join the operating team (including
the sourcing team). The expanded team has reinforced the
Group's capability to reach its new and potential customers as
well as advance its sourcing abilities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBH@®WR DM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

New development in renewable energy business
since 2022: - continued

(i)

(iif)

Commencement of operation of the Group’s own
storage and processing factory

The Group has successfully set up its own storage and
processing factory at an industrial site in Hong Kong and
obtained the relevant licences to store and process the used
cooking oils. The Group has the necessary processing
machineries and storage facilities for the used cooking oils,
including but not limited to those which are to be collected by
the Group's own used cooking oil collection trucks.

Collection of used cooking oils in Hong Kong with the
Group's own fleet of trucks

The Group has set up its own fleet of cooking oil collection
trucks in Hong Kong and begins to collect used cooking oils in
Hong Kong with its own capability. The Group has also
recruited outsourcing partner to collect used cooking oils in
order to meet the logistic requirements. The Group will further
expand its own collection fleet when the economy shows
gradual recovery.

At the same time, the Group has been actively building up its
local supplier network, and have entered into contracts with
food and beverages providers in Hong Kong which provides the
Group the exclusive rights to collect used cooking oils.

Waste Construction Materials and Processing Service

The Group has commenced the waste construction materials and
processing service business since 2007. With more than a decade of
operating history, the Group’s waste construction materials and
processing service in Germany has established stable operation as
well as long-term relationships with its business partners and
customers in the local market.

()

(1

Products

The Group collects and recycles construction waste material and
asphalt, and resells the recovered and/or recycled materials for
a profit. Besides, the Group also performs processing service
and mixing service according to formulas and proportion as
provided by customers.

Customers

The customers mainly comprise local construction companies,
government authorities and individual customers in Germany.
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

Waste Construction Materials and Processing Service
- continued

(1) Suppliers

The Group primarily sources construction waste material and
asphalt from various construction companies and construction
waste collectors in Germany.

Plastic Recycling/Metal Scrap Business

The Group has commenced its plastic recycling business in Germany
since 2016. The Group had also started the business of high-grade
plastic recycling and processing in Japan in June 2020, but the
processing operation had been ceased since April 2022 due to the
continuing shortage of feedstock supply under the prolonged
pandemic. Besides, the Group was also engaged in the trading of
metal scrap, but it was inactive now. During FY2023, the Group has
approximately 8 staff operating the plastic recycling metal scrap
business.

() Products

The Group's plastic recycling business represents the recycling
(sorting, washing and shredding) of plastic materials. The
operations are basically divided into two streams, as follows:

Processing activities:

Plastic materials are supplied by commercial waste collectors,
for which the Group charges the customers by reference to the
weight of the incoming materials and bear the cost of disposal
of waste arising from such recycling activities.

Purchase-Recycling-Resell Activities:

The Group purchases the plastic materials from both
commercial waste collectors and plastics dealers for resale at a
higher profit margin after recycling.

()  Customers
The customers mainly comprise plastic recycling companies in
Germany and member states of European Union.

(Ill) Suppliers

The Group has been purchasing feedstock from reputable
suppliers who are engaged in, among others, environmental
services and waste materials collection.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBH@®WR DM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

Money Lending Business

The Group has commenced the money lending business since 2018
with its money lenders licence in Hong Kong under the provisions of
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

With the uncertainties in the economic conditions and business
environment during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted
a cautious and prudent approach in the assessment and approval of
new loans and/or renewal of existing loans in order to mitigate its
credit risk.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Healthcare Business

With the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had
diversified and set up its subsidiaries in mid-November 2020 to
commence the healthcare business which mainly involved the
laboratory diagnostic service and clinical health service. The Group
had disposed of the healthcare business on 9 June 2023 after its
reassessment of the commercial viability.

Operating Results

The revenue of the Group for FY2023 was approximately HK$82.5
million (FY2022: approximately HK$441.3 million), representing a
decrease of 81.3% as compared with that for FY2022. The decrease
in revenue was mainly resulted from the renewable energy business
segment with the shift of focus on from the sales of palm oil mill
effluent methyl ester to its newly established operations on collection
and processing of used cooking oil. The revenue of renewable energy
business was approximately HK$73.1 million, with a 82.8%
year-on-year reduction. Moreover, the revenue of the healthcare
business had dropped from approximately HK$7.6 million in FY2022
to approximately HK$2.5 million in FY2023, and therefore the
healthcare business was disposed of in June 2023 due to its
continuous underperformance and lack of commercial viability.

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company for FY2023 was
approximately HK$9.0 million (FY2022: approximately HK$27.7
million), representing a 67.5% year-on-year reduction. The
reduction in loss was mainly attributable to (1) the gain of
approximately HK$6.4 million on disposal of subsidiaries of the
Group; (2) reduction in net loss of approximately HK$2.1 million from
discontinued operations achieved mainly with cost saving through
streamlining of the business; (3) reduction of approximately HK$4.5
million in legal and professional fee through stringent cost control
measures; and (4) the gain of approximately HK$1.0 million on
disposal of plant and equipment.
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Segment Information

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(a)

(b)

Renewable Energy — trading and processing of
recyclable oil/biodiesel

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$73.1
million from the trading and processing of recyclable oil/
biodiesel for FY2023 (FY2022: approximately HK$424.2 million).
There was a reduction of 82.8% in revenue as compared with
FY2022. Following the new strategic development of its own
storage and processing factory for collection of used cooking
oils in Hong Kong, the Group focused its resources on
processing and sales of used cooking oils with the greater
margin. In the initial stage and transition to local collection and
processing of used cooking oil, the Group spent months to
adapt and fine-tune the procedures and operations, which
inevitably hindered its sales and profit growth of used cooking
oils during the year. Notwithstanding the drop in revenue, the
segment got an increase of 35.9% in net profit to HK$5.3
million for FY2023 as compared with HK$3.9 million in FY2022.

Waste construction materials and waste processing
service

The revenue of this business segment involves the collection
and recycling of waste construction materials and the sale of
recycled construction materials. The revenue arising from this
sector was approximately HK$4.1 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
approximately HK$5.2 million). The lack of incoming materials
and the keen competition in the region are the main reasons
for the decrease in revenue of the segment.

The net profit of FY2023 for the segment was approximately
HK$0.3 million as compared with that of HK$3.3 million in
FY2022. Besides the reduction in sales revenue, the drop in the
profit of the segment was mainly resulted from the impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.3
million in contrast to the reversal of such impairment loss of
approximately HK$1.9 million in FY2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Segment Information - continued

CONTINUING OPERATIONS - continued

(c)

(d)

Plastic Recycling/Metal Scrap

The plastic recycling/metal scrap sector recorded a revenue
approximately of HK$2.6 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
approximately HK$4.2 million), representing a 38.1%
year-on-year reduction. Market uncertainties, high volatility in
price of recyclates as well as the low price of virgin plastic
resulted in a low level of demand in FY2023. The lack of quality
feedstock supply exerted further pressure on the plastic
recycling business. Besides, the closure of processing plant in
Japan was one of reasons for the sales reduction in in FY2023.

The net loss of FY2023 for the segment was approximately
HK$4.9 million as compared with that of HK$10.2 million in
FY2022. The loss from the Japanese processing operation had
been cut upon the closure of the processing plant last year.
Besides, there was impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$2.9 million in FY2022.

Money lending business

The revenue generated from money lending business for
FY2023 was approximately HK$0.2 million (FY2022: Nil). Tight
and volatile financing conditions persist on the back of
entrenched inflation, increasingly straining the debt-service
capacity of more vulnerable borrowers. Credit conditions will
remain under particular pressure from the combination of a
strong US dollar, high energy and food prices, and a slowdown
in global demand. A more cautious and conservative approach
had been taken on credit quality of new lending by closer
monitoring and higher level of collateral requirements.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Healthcare business

The key element of this sector involves the laboratory diagnostic
service and clinical health service. The healthcare business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$2.5 million for FY2023 (FY2022:
approximately HK$7.6 million). The Group had downscaled the
operations of the healthcare business and taken a series of
cost-cutting initiatives including negotiations with the landlord for
rent concession and reduction of the number of staff and consultants
employed in order to minimize the losses during FY2023. The net loss
of the segment in FY2023 was approximately HK$4.8 million with a
42.2% year-on-year reduction. The healthcare business was finally
disposed in June 2023 by the Group after the reassessment on its
commercial viability.
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EXPENDITURE

For FY2023, total expenditures excluding finance costs were recorded
at approximately HK$50.9 million (FY2022: approximately HK$52.6
million). The transportation costs increased to approximately HK$12.0
million in FY2023 from approximately HK$1.4 million in FY2022. It
involved mainly the transportation costs for operation and collection
of used cooking oils in Hong Kong, which was fully implemented in
FY2023.

On the other hand, there was a saving approximately of HK$1.5
million in expenses of the Japanese plastic recycling plant after its
closure in FY2022. There was also saving of approximately HK$5.0
million in the expenditures of the discontinued operations of
healthcare business in FY2023 through streamlining the business.
Moreover, there was a reduction of approximately HK$4.5 million in
legal and professional fee through stringent cost control measures in
FY2023. There was also a saving of approximately HK$1.0 million in
staff cost, as the Group had taken actions to streamline its headcount
in order to minimize the losses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, financial resources and cashflow

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had total current assets of
approximately HK$26.1 million (as at 30 June 2022: approximately
HK$45.1 million), including bank balance and cash of approximately
HK$14.8 million (as at 30 June 2022: approximately HK$33.6 million)
and the total current liabilities were approximately HK$8.5 million (as
at 30 June 2022: approximately HK$28.5 million). The current ratio
of the Group was approximately 3.1 (as at 30 June 2022:
approximately 1.6). The Group has sufficient funds to settle its debts.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$50.7 million (as at 30 June 2022: approximately HK$71.6
million). The Group did not have external borrowing as at 30 June
2023 and 2022, and therefore gearing ratio was not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The ordinary operations and investments of the Group are mainly in
Hong Kong and Germany, with revenue and expenditures
denominated in US dollars and euro. The operating results of the
Group may be affected by the volatility of foreign currencies. In
addition, we are exposed to foreign currency risks arising from certain
bank balances which are denominated in Renminbi, US dollars and
euro. The Group will review its foreign exchange exposures regularly
and may consider using financial instruments to hedge against such
exposures at appropriate times. As at 30 June 2023, there were no
derivative financial instruments employed by the Group.
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EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

Seasonal or Cyclical Factors

During FY2023, the Group’s business operations are not significantly
affected by any seasonal and cyclical factor.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Associates

Save for disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies for FY2023.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any material capital
commitment (as at 30 June 2022: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (as at 30 June 2022: Nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 37 employees (As at 30 June
2022: 57 employees) in Hong Kong, the PRC and Germany.

The Group offered competitive remuneration package as an incentive
to staff for career advancement and improvements. The Company
has in place a share option scheme as a mean to encourage and
reward the eligible employees’ (including Directors) contributions to
the Group’s results and business development based on their
individual performance.

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary are assessed by

reference to work performance, working experiences and professional
qualifications and the prevailing market practice.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2023
to all the shareholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATION

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33(a) to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities.

Segmental information of the Group was disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Group for FY2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 104.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of business activities of the Group
during the year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development, possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9
and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 22 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this directors’ report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are shown in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements and
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 22 of this
annual report.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, and consolidated assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 220 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
In recent years, the Group has implemented several policies to
encourage employees for saving energy and paper. All these policies
aim at reducing resources and saving costs which are beneficial to
the environment and meet the commercial goals of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Group upholds high standards
of operating practices and complies with the relevant standards. The
Group has stringent requirements to maintain high levels of quality
control and responsible business practices. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group values mutually beneficial long standing relationships with
its suppliers and customers. The Group aims at delivering high quality
products to its customers and developing mutual trust among its
suppliers.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 30 June 2023 comprised contributed surplus of HK$56,897,000 (as
at 30 June 2022: HK$56,897,000).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of change
in equity on page 108 of the annual report and in note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
OR CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE BONDS

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year under
review. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year under review.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2023 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2022)
Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from 1 December 2022)
Mr. Luo Xian Ping
Mr. Ho Wai Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Chun Wa

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)

Mr. Lau Ka Wing (resigned with effect from 14 April 2023)

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (appointed with effect from 13 July 2023)
Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from 9 August 2023)

In accordance with Clause 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Luo
Xian Ping and Mr. Ho Wai Hung shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS - continued

In accordance with Clause 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lo
Kam Wing, /,, Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Ms. Jiang Zhihua will hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rule”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Company considered all of them to be
independent.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 10 to 13 of this annual report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

At 30 June 2023, none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code").

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Company’s share option scheme disclosed above, at
no time during the year was the Company, its holding companies,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp has entered into a service contract with the
Company commencing from 1 December 2022 to 30 November
2024, and the service contract and subject to renewal after
expiration.

Mr. Luo Xian Ping has entered into a service contract with the
Company commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023,
and the service contract and subject to renewal after expiration.

Mr. Ho Wai Hung has entered into a service contract with the
Company commencing from 12 March 2022 to 11 March 2024, and
the service contract and subject to renewal after expiration.

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Ms. Jiang Zhihua
as the independent non-executive Directors have two-year service
contracts with the Company and the service contracts are subject to
renewal after expiration.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company was adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants, details of the
scheme is set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the year.

During the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against
liability, including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action
against the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
of this Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contract
of significance to which any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had connected transactions, certain
details of which have been disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements and which have been disclosed in this paragraph
are connected transactions or as the case may be, continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable of
the Group major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 35%
— five largest customers combined 80%
Purchase

— the largest supplier 28%
— five largest suppliers combined 30%
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

There were no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of business during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSON'S INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2023, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, other than the interests and short positions disclosed above
in respect of the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company:

Substantial shareholders — long position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
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New Glory Business Corporation

Rich Bay Global Limited
("Rich Bay"”) (Note 2)

Rich Bay Global Limited
([Rich Bayl) (#f7#2)

Superactive Asset Management
Limited (“Superactive”)
(Note 2)

Superactive Asset Management
Limited ([ Superactive |)
(Htit2)

Lee Chi Shing Caesar (Note 2)

EK (T at2)
Yeung So Lai (Note 2)

BEE (fit2)

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

g4/
EEMrE

Beneficial owner
BEmEB A

Beneficial owner
ExnlEAEA

Interest of a controlled
corporation

RS AEES

Interest of a controlled
corporation

AR R

Interest of a controlled
corporation

TR B EE S

Approximate

percentage

of total

Number of Number of issued share
issued ordinary underlying capital of
shares held shares held the Company
HA&R AT

2 BITRA

e 81T Fr¥ErEE BEE
ZEKREAR RHEA BHABES
(Note 1)

(Krat1)

267,829,436 - 23.57%
147,244,000 - 12.96%
147,244,000 - 12.96%
147,244,000 - 12.96%
147,244,000 — 12.96%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSON'’S INTERESTS - continued

Substantial shareholders — long position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company -
continued

Notes:

1. The approximate percentage of total issued share capital calculation was
based on the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
30 June 2023, i.e. 1,136,308,176 shares.

2. Based on the notices of disclosure of interests of Rich Bay, Superactive, Lee
Chi Shing Caesar and Yeung So Lai filed with the Stock Exchange on 25
July 2019, such shares of the Company were held by Rich Bay, which was
wholly-owned by Superactive. Superactive which was in turn owned as to
45% by Lee Chi Shing Caesar and as to 55% by Yeung So Lai. As such, each
of Lee Chi Shing Caesar and Yeung So Lai was deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Rich Bay by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, no person (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the FY2023, save for the exceptions
explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.
The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Principal corporate governance practice adopted by the Company are

set out in the Corporate Governance Report as set out on pages 32
to 52 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management of the Company the audited consolidated annual
results of the Group for FY2023, and reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Company
with the management of the Company.

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Mazars as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lo Kam Wing, JF
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Green Energy Group Limited (the “"Company”) is committed to
maintain statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the
principles of corporate governance emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The board
(the “Board"”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company ensures
that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the requirements under the Code
Provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance. The
Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 30 June 2023 (the "year under
review"), except for the following:

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company has not
appointed a chief executive officer. The role of the chief executive
officer was performed by Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp, who was also the
chairman of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and
allows for effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. The Board will periodically review
the merits and demerits of such management structure and will
adopt such appropriate measures as may be necessary in the future
taking into consideration of the nature and extent of the Group's
operation.

Pursuant to Code Provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. During the year
ended under review, the chairman of the Board was absent at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 November 2022
(the “AGM") due to health reason. The management, the chairman
of the audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and certain members of Board’s committee attended the AGM and
were available to answer relevant questions raised by and understand
the views of the Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own securities dealing
code for the Directors. All Directors confirmed, upon specific enquiry
made by the Company on them, that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has from time to time considered its policy for corporate
governance and its duties and duties of various board committees.
The Board has not established a corporate governance committee but
has performed the obligations regarding corporate governance,
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i) Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors. During the
year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
consisted following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp (Chairman) (appointed with effect from
1 December 2022)

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned with effect from
1 December 2022)

Mr. Luo Xian Ping
Mr. Ho Wai Hung

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wa
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)

Mr. Lau Ka Wing (resigned with effect from
14 April 2023)

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (appointed with effect from
13 July 2023)

Ms. Jiang Zhihua (appointed with effect from
9 August 2023)
Schedules of matters reserved for the Board include:

- To formulate overall of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”)

- To monitor its financial performance and maintains
effective oversight over the management

- To control and approve transactions which are
extraordinary and significant to the Group as a whole
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(ii) Board meetings and attendance record

The Company held four board meetings and one general
meeting during the year under review. The attendance record
of the Board meetings are as follows:
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Board General
Notes meetings meeting
Members of the Board EEgHE izt EEEER BRAE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lo Kam Wing, /p ERKE  xFmt
(Chairman) (/) 1 22 N/ATEA
Mr. Wong Sai Hung =S A 2 0/2 0/1
Mr. Luo Xian Ping EEVEAE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ho Wai Hung AR E 4/4 1/1
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Mr. Lau Ka Wing BIREE 4 3/3 11
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BRI A 5 N/ATT 38 A N/ATT 38 A
Ms. Jiang Zhihua BERELL 6 N/ATT 38 A N/ATT 38 A
Notes: Miat -
1. Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp was appointed with effect from 1 December 1. E®REE 7P+ A-F_F+=
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2. Mr. Wong Sai Hung resigned with effect from 1 December 2022.

3. Mr. Sze Cheung Pang passed away on 4 July 2023.

4. Mr. Lau Ka Wing resigned with effect from 14 April 2023.

5. Mr. Man Kwok Leung was appointed with effect from 13 July 2023.

6. Ms. Jiang Zhihua was appointed with effect from 9 August 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(iii) Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors in compliance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one
of independent non-executive Directors possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise, except for the following:

Non-compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.21, 3.25 and
3.27A of the Listing Rules

Upon the resignation of Mr. Lau Ka Wing as independent
non-executive Director, each of member of the Audit
Committee and remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 14 April 2023, the Company
did not meet (i) the minimum number of independent
non-executive directors required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules; and (ii) the minimum number of members in the
audit committee required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Upon the passing away of Mr. Sze Cheung Pang as independent
non-executive Director, each of member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 4 July 2023, the
Company did not meet (i) the minimum number of independent
non-executive directors required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules; (ii) the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules which stipulates that independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the board; (iii) the
minimum number of members in the audit committee required
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; (iv) the requirement under
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules which stipulates that the
remuneration committee must comprise a majority of
independent non-executive directors; and (v) the requirement
under Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules which stipulates that the
nomination committee must comprise a majority of
independent non-executive directors.

With effect from 13 July 2023, Mr. Man Kwok Leung was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and each
of member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

With effect from 9 August 2023, Ms. Jiang Zhihua was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and each
of member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Independent non-executive Directors -
continued

Following the aforesaid changes, the number of independent
non-executive Directors have satisfied the minimum number as
stipulated under Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
and the composition of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee also complied with
Rule 3.21, 3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors brought their wealth
of experience to the Board and made active contribution to
the Group. They closely monitored the developments of the
Group and freely expressed their opinions at board meetings.
Mr. Tam Chun Wa and Mr. Man Kwok Leung, independent
non-executive Directors have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

None of the independent non-executive Directors, has any
business or financial interests with the Group and each of them
has confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors
were independent.

Relationship among members of the Board

The father of Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp, executive Director of the
Company, is one of the shareholders of New Glory Business
Corporation, a company holding approximately 23.57% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report, To the best knowledge of the Board, there is
no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) among the members of
the Board. All of them are free to exercise their independent
judgement.

Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

The Group regularly updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements regarding subjects necessary
in the discharge of their duties. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging Directors to attend seminars on the latest
development of applicable laws, rules and regulations so that
they can continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills.
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EXRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued EEE-&
(v) Directors’ Continuous Professional (V) EECEESXERRE - &
Development - continued
According to the records provided by the Directors, the training BEBREZEENGE TFENE
received by each of the Directors during the year under review BEFEEINFEIIRNT
is summarised as follows:
Type of
continuous
professional
development
training
FINEE
(Notes)
(Bt7)
Directors =
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Kam Wing, EoREE  xFar A and B AXB
Mr. Wong Sai Hung =LA A and B ANB
Mr. Luo Xian Ping EBETEAE B
Mr. Ho Wai Hung A {8 1 52 4 A and B ANB
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Tam Chun Wa FESREE S A A and B AXB
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang k=3P B
Mr. Lau Ka Wing BIRKFEE Aand B AXB
Mr. Man Kwok Leung B R S A A and B ANB
Ms. Jiang Zhihua BEELT B
Notes: HaF -
A Attending seminar(s) or training sessions(s) A HEEEEIRE
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the Company's B BERE TIMEEBAARAERNE
business or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest ERERET EMHNREMERE
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory EHERNMERSETENEHER
requirements etc.
(vi) Board Diversity Policy (vi) EEEZnbBR
The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the ARRBRNBEBERZHAANRERE
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited FEeEREBZ BREETER)®
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, A FERXEREBEER FEL
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. B Bl MBRBRBFE - EFEGM
All board appointment will be made based on merit, and BZEHURAARTRRA  WES
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having BANEELEBRMEME  LEEE
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board and the REFEGKEZ LM E N RIKE
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the ABREZEHROEM -
Board.
As at the date of this annual report, the Board is characterised RAFRBH EFGHEELER
by significant diversity, in terms of gender, professional and BEXAERNMEBELRZMTEMNZIT
educational background and skills. ERERR -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not appointed a chief executive officer. The role of
the chief executive officer was performed by Mr. Lo Kam Wing, s
who is an executive Director and chairman of the Board. The Board
believes that the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership, and allows for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 21
December 2005. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wa, Mr. Man Kwok
Leung and Ms. Jiang Zhihua.

The main duties and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

(vi) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE - continued

(vii) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(viii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(ix) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of each
Director shall be determined by reference to their experience
qualification and the time expected to be devoted by them on the
affairs of the Company. All votes in the Remuneration Committee are
exercisable by independent non-executive Directors. No Directors will
be involved in any discussion in connection with his/her own
remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration packages of the Board, the
re-appointment of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors and review the existing remuneration
packages of the Board.

The attendance of each member of Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

YWEESE - &

(i) BRI RIEREZITHARE MHBRER
EREBRESMAIRNBEERE MU
MRZELHESOER —B:BRX
BEHANKR —B BEBENES
BEE

(vii) BREFNEZLEETABEATESSR
HETEATOFH &

(x) FHE/FIHECETRADE+LE
Bk mntENER -

FNE B B E ] AR A P A I R
NEHEEER]

ARRZBR/EEZZHFMES HEZ2E
BEZER  BEREHRBR AR ER
ZEEMEE FHEEGZ2HREREY
MBYFRTTESTR - EFH T2 8T
MEREHFMTw -

REBFERN FTMEZEELHRT—RE
#FURTEFENFIEE EFZIHR
TEENBIUFATESR ULBHESS
IR A BN a8 e

FHEZEEEREBZHFEBEREINET

Attendance/

Number of

Members of Remuneration Committee HFHEEEKE meeting(s) held

HERE,

BITEERH

Mr. Tam Chun Wa (Chairman) EIRESL A () 11

Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023)  HatElls s (R =F = =F+ A A#EH) 1/1
Mr. Lau Ka Wing HEX P

(resigned with effect from 14 April 2023) (B =—ZF - =414+ HEFT) 1/1
Mr. Man Kwok Leung B S

(appointed with effect from 13 July 2023) (BE=F—=F+ A1+ =HEEZF) N/A T8 A
Ms. Jiang Zhihua BEELL

(appointed with effect from 9 August 2023) (BE=ZF=_=F)TH/NLHAEEZT) N/A i A
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Particulars of the
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2023 (“FY2023")
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than Directors) in
this annual report for FY2023 by band is set out below:

FEE

Remuneration Bands
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EEREREEAEHMH
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ER_ZT_=MRFEZHFMOT :

Number of
Senior
Management
SREEAB
AE

Up to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

Upon the termination of the old share option scheme, the Company
has adopted a new share option scheme on 1 June 2016, which
serves as an incentive to attract, reward and motivate eligible staffs
etc.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 21 December
2005. As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Kam
Wing, Jp and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tam Chun Wa and Ms. Jiang Zhihua.

The main duties and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individual(s) nominated for directorship(s);

(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Director(s);

£%1,000,000/8 T 1
1,000,001/ 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - continued

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and/or the
chief executive of the Company; and

(v)  to be provided with sufficient resources to enable it to perform
its duties, including, where necessary, may seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Group will consider the background, experience and qualification
of any proposed candidates to ensure that the proposed candidates
possess the requisite experience, characters and integrity to act as a
Director.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to make recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of Directors, the review of the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board, the re-election of retiring
Directors and independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance of each member of Nomination Committee is set out
as follows:

E%éég - ng

vy RESZERERZEUALREE(CLE
ERRFESE If&/‘kﬁﬂl BE)
BEIFENEFTSRLER

(v EEREHRIRHERUBITEBE &
MBS E)AERARRAEERAN
BRTESRBUYBEEERAUNEBITHESE
£

RBE B g 7 B & [E 7] OB S P A8 b R
NAEIAHEER] -

AEEREERRBEREAZER KRE
BE NHERSEEAEEAHER  MmB
FBEEEES -

EA@EEEF‘W REZEGBRHET—
CMEEFEHMEREIRESSROES

SI’
i3

Ti%Amﬁﬁ F- AN @W&&A%
TTEER  EERETESFULBYIERNITE
EMBILE -

RAZEER

RBZHFEBERESNMT -

Attendance/
Number of
Members of Nomination Committee EEZEERE meeting(s) held
HERE
BTEEREK
Mr. Lo Kam Wing, ¢ (Chairman) BEE&fLrE  crmt(EE)
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2022) (B -—F - —F+_-H— HEEZ(T) N/A 3 F
Mr. Wong Sai Hung =LA
(resigned with effect from 1 December 2022) (B =—ZFE - —F+=H— HEFHF) 0/1
Mr. Tam Chun Wa BHEES Y 1/1
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023) )ﬁmﬂ}l%ﬁ’ﬁi(i’\fvf —F+ A ABEN) 11
Ms. Jiang Zhihua BEELLT
(appointed with effect from 9 August 2023) (BE=F==F/TANHAEEZF) N/A 7~ F
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NOMINATION POLICY

1.

Objective

This policy was approved and adopted by the Board by
resolution passed on 1 January 2019. It sets out the criteria and
procedures to be adopted by the Nomination Committee in
selecting and recommending candidates as Directors. It aims to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria
in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship:

o Character and integrity;

. Professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board;

o The board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity on the
Board;

o Requirements in relation to independent non-executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether
the Company’s candidates as independent non-executive
Directors would be considered independent with reference
to the rules concerning the independence of directors set
out in the Listing Rules; and

o Such other criteria appropriate to the Company’s business
or as suggested by the Nomination Committee.

The above criteria are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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NOMINATION POLICY - continued

3.

Process for the nomination by the nomination
committee

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board periodically and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or appoint an
additional Director, the Nomination Committee shall
identify or select candidates suitably qualified to become
a Director, with or without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to the criteria set out
in section 2.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of candidates as
Directors, including the terms and conditions of the
appointment.

The Board shall deliberate and decide on the appointment
of Directors based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

Re-election of directors at general meeting of
the Company

4.1

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and services provided to the Company by the
Directors who shall retire and offer themselves for
re-election at general meetings of the Company. The
Nomination Committee shall also review the expertise and
professional qualifications of such retiring Directors to
determine whether they continue to meet the criteria as
set out in section 2.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23

E%E&% - ng
REZEERABRE

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

REZBEEREHRIEFTEN
MEE - ABNAEX (BIEREE - A
B AR UREARARNRFN
EERBMAESSRE L TN
BiEE -

EREEAGRRERAZE A
BIEER RHAZBSERE
2RI R - NP E L
KRBT 0L B % F 1B
T ek EABEREERA
EEE=EMAL-

MRZBARELE—AXZEESE
MIEEA REZEEERER
ANFEENSEREANRES
Z (AR ) BB EIBFHES -

REEEREREAREASE
ENEESIRHES BESE
B R M

EEeRREREZEENER
FAZENRREEENERME -

RAAARRARELNESEE

4.1

REZEEERFMASRARAMR
RAGLREIRBERAE LFE
BETMNESHAQRRMFELNE
BERMANRE -REZBEEIE
EHRRARBBRRAE LREE
ETIHNRIESHNERNEXE
B UAREZREETRRENTS
F215RFT 5 2R -



NOMINATION POLICY - continued

4. Re-election of directors at general meeting of
the Company - continued

4.2 Based on the review made by the Nomination Committee,
the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on candidates standing for re-election at
general meetings of the Company, and provide the
available biographical information of the retiring Directors
to the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules
to enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision
on the re-election of such candidates at the general
meetings of the Company.

5. Process for the nomination by the shareholders

5.1 The Shareholders may nominate a person, other than
himself or herself, for election as a Director in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company and applicable laws,
rules and regulations, details of which are set out in the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose a candidate for
election as a director of the Company” of the Company
adopted on 1 January 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun
Wa, Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Ms. Jiang Zhihua.

Mr. Tam Chu Wa and Mr. Man Kwok Leung have the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules for the purpose of such appointment.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are:

(i)  torecommend to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) to consider and discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of audit for each year;

(iii) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE - continued
(iv) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

(v)  to review the interim and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board and to discuss any problem and
reservation arising therefrom;

(vi) to review the financial controls, risk management and internal

control systems of the Company; and

(vii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and

practices.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the interim and annual financial statements; to
review the remuneration of external auditor; to discuss with the
external auditor its independence and the nature and scope of the

BEREEE - &
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audit; to discuss with the management the effectiveness of the EEREENAMEZERGANERIE - B
internal control and risk management systems throughout the Group, 7§ &  EIEEIE L& R EE - MatiME
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and to ZEEIHNEFZERNEFSRMHES -
recommend to the Board for the re-appointment of the external
auditor.
The attendance of each member of Audit Committee is set out as BEZRZEGFEKE 2 HEEREAIIOT
follows:
Attendance/
Number of
Members of Audit Committee EREEENE meeting(s) held
HERE
BITEZIRH™
Mr. Tam Chun Wa (Chairman) EIRESL A (EE) 2/2
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang (passed away on 4 July 2023) WM EE (R=ZF=-=F+ I HEH) 2/2
Mr. Lau Ka Wing %'J%?é?ﬁi
(resigned with effect from 14 April 2023) (BE=F==%p9 4+ HEFT) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung YI@M&E
(appointed with effect from 13 July 2023) (BE=F==F+H1T=HEEZF) N/A i A
Ms. Jiang Zhihua ﬁ%?&%ﬁi
(appointed with effect from 9 August 2023) (BE=ZFE=—=F/N\ANAEEZF) N/A T3E A
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group in presenting
the interim and annual consolidated financial statements and
announcements to the Shareholders. The Board aims to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
position and prospects. The Board well understands its responsibility
to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The responsibility of the external auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial reporting and its audit opinion are set out in
the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 97 to 103 of
this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the
Company. During the year under review, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company, Mazars CPA Limited,
is set out as follows:

Services rendered

Friz itz IR
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ENER
EAER
HK$
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Audit services
Non-audit services

The non-audit services included taxation and other services rendered.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”) on 1 January 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders. Dividends may only be paid out of
profits of the Company available for distribution but no dividend
shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account the results of
operations, working capital, financial position, future prospects
and capital requirements of the Group, as well as any other factors
which the Board may consider relevant from time to time. Any future
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company may or may
not reflect the historical declarations and payments of dividends and
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board. The Company does
not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio. The payment of
dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board should ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The risk management and
internal control systems are reviewed at least annually to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group’s internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate risks,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL -
continued

The Board has reviewed the efficiency of the Group’s internal control
systems, including financial operation and compliance control and
risk management procedure. The Board believes that the Group is
responsible to improve the internal control system continuously in
order to give hand to the risk of the deficiency in the operating
system, if any, with an aim to achieve the Group’s objectives.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a full review of
the effectiveness of the material internal control system of the Group
and considered internal audit planning presented by internal audit
staff and discussed the assessment with the management.

Based on the assessment, the Board, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the system of internal
controls established and maintained by the Group addressing
financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks
as well as risk management systems, were adequate to meet the
needs of the Group in its current business environment.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information, including restricting employee access to inside
information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring that those who
need to know understand the obligation of keeping the information
confidential. All inside information is disclosed to the public pursuant
to the requirements under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and kept strictly confidential before disclosure.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company has employed an internal audit staff (“IA") to perform
the internal audit function and to improve the system and processes
of internal control of the Company. IA primarily reports to the
chairman of Audit Committee and ensure the internal control are in
place and functioning properly as intended.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management, the scope and
results of internal audit procedures. The Audit Committee also
reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
Based on the report presented, the Audit Committee is satisfied that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been arranged for Directors’ and officers’ liability
to provide adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of
the Board members and senior management members of the
Company. Such insurance has also been renewed before 3 January
2023 with a term from one year until 2 January 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Keung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since 30 December 2019. Mr. Ng reports to the chairman of the
Company and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. Mr. Ng has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year under
review.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company values communication with the Shareholders. The
Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
Shareholders for the performance of the Company. Enquiries and
suggestions from Shareholders are welcomed.

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to the Shareholders for the performance of the Company.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports; (ii) the
annual general meeting or special general meeting providing a forum
for the Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board; (iii) updated key information of the Group available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company; and (iv) the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board is committed to
providing clear, detailed, timely manner, and on-a-regular-basis
information of the Group through the publication of interim and
annual reports and/or despatching circulars, notices, and other
announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholder’s view
and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at least
20 clear business days’ notice shall be given.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

()

(i)

(iii)

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Subject to applicable laws and regulations including the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”)and
the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to: (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
send to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in case of any other requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for
information on the Company to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 7712, 77/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at
pr@hk-greenenergy.com.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 24 November 2022, an annual general meeting of the Company
was held at which a special resolution was passed to approve the
amended and restated Bye-laws of the Company (the “New
Bye-laws”) in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing
Bye-laws of the Company to (i) bring the Bye-Laws of the Company
in line with the latest legal and regulatory requirements, including
the amendments made to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took
effect on 1 January 2022; and (ii) make other consequential and
house-keeping amendments. For the details of the amendments,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
September 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 25 October
2022. The New Bye-laws is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

By order of the Board

Lo Kam Wing, JF
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23

BEXH

R-ZBE-—F#+—F-+MA  ARQFET
BRRAFKS  €LBBEIRER  #H&
RABZEETREEMRABMA([FHDF
A - LBV R BEBR AN A 2 IRE R AHA
Al BAGVEAR R E 2 A B 40 B A &R
BRETHT  BEYH EWHRAMS=ZATE
BWER T —_F—A—BER 2B
R (i) VB E A A8 FE R B 1B 5T - B REIER]
ZHE MELHARRBHAE-_T =

HRE-ZTHhBZABUERARAAGRBHA-E
T+ A-ZTRBZEEK - HAAMAA
RE L FTBuE R AR R R BuhER]

RRE=S

B4
Ee&cras

B —E-=FnA=-+N\H



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

We are thrilled to present our Environmental, Social, and
Governance ("ESG") report, aimed at elucidating our policy
development and performance in ESG aspects. This report is a
response to the expectations and concerns of our stakeholders
regarding sustainable development management and
information disclosure.

The board of directors (the “Board”) bears the ultimate
responsibility for sustainable development and leads the Group
in fulfilling its social responsibility. To handle ESG-related issues
on behalf of the Board, we have established an ESG committee.
This committee, which reports to the Board annually, is
responsible for developing and regularly reviewing the ESG plan,
engaging with stakeholders, and conducting materiality
assessments. The Board diligently monitors ESG performance,
approves relevant goals and budgets, and ensures the Group’s
development aligns with stakeholders’ expectations through
continuous stakeholder communication and sustainability risk
management.

Risk management of ESG-related issues is of utmost importance
to the Board. Among the various risks assessed, the Board places
higher importance on managing air pollutants, greenhouse gas
emissions, and enhancing climate resilience. Furthermore, the
Board recognizes that climate change risk may manifest as a
market risk, with customers increasingly prioritizing green
products due to heightened concerns about climate change. To
promote integrated risk management within the Group, we plan
to integrate ESG-related risks into our risk management and
internal control system. This will involve regular assessment of
ESG-related risks based on the Board’s comprehensive
understanding of the business and communication with various
stakeholders.
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DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE - continued

The Board believes that prudent resource usage and a strong
focus on occupational health and safety are particularly
beneficial for the Group in achieving its ESG goals, promoting
business sustainability, reducing operational costs, mitigating
ESG risks, and building a stellar corporate image. Consequently,
we regularly evaluate the yield rate of our recycling operations
and occupational safety statistics against predefined targets.
These targets and evaluations serve as effective indicators
reflecting operational efficiency and control effectiveness.

In the face of uncertainties arising from an unstable geopolitical
environment and volatile material costs, we recognize that the
best strategy is to improve quality and resilience. The Group
places great importance on our environmental performance, as
it enables market recognition and opens opportunities for
expanding our market share. Over the years, we have upgraded
our recycling infrastructure, diversified our revenue sources, and
adjusted our product mix. Looking ahead, the Group remains
committed to providing stable and reliable recycling and
renewable energy services worldwide, contributing to the
transformation toward an environmentally friendly circular
economy.

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

Materiality: The Group communicates with different
stakeholders on a regular basis, so as to better understand
ESG-related issues that matter the Group most from
stakeholders’ perspectives. Meanwhile, the Group concerns ESG
development outside and within the industry, trying to align
with available global standards as well as incorporating it into
the Group strategic development planning. The Group has
conducted a stakeholder engagement survey with our directors,
employees, customers, and suppliers to grade the ESG aspects
according to the level of materiality they consider these aspects
are to the Group or to the stakeholder groups they are
representing. The details are reported in Chapter 4 of this
report.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLE - continued

Quantitative: Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules guides the
Group to prepare measurable KPIs for performance review.
Quantitative information presented in the report is accompanied
by narrative, explanation and comparison wherever applicable.
The frequency of publication is once a year.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to prepare
ESG reports and strives to disclose both challenges and
opportunities of ESG issues that the Group experienced during
the reporting period. Pictures, charts and graphs reflect the
actual performance of the Group, and with appropriate
presentation formats, so to avoid misleading.

Consistency: The Group adopts consistent methodologies and
retrieves social and environmental KPIs from the Group’s internal
record system. The Group is also with reference to Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs as well as
Appendix 3: Reporting guidance on Social KPIs to calculate KPIs,
so to make meaningful comparisons over the years. In view of
the explanation of our business segments, the intensity figures
are now reported in per revenue basis instead of per material
processed.
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REPORTING SCOPE

The reporting period began on 1 July 2022 and ended on 30
June 2023 (“the reporting period”). The report sets out the
Group's overall sustainability approaches and policies on four
different aspects, including environmental protection, our
people, operating practices and community involvement.

The scope of the report is as followed:
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WEHEWT -

Geographical Region Segment

ith &2 PAC

Germany Construction Waste Recycling

ZH LRI U
Plastic Recycling
28 B UL

Hong Kong Renewable Energy

58 AT BAREIR
Healthcare Service
ERRERS
Head Office
M ER

The segments included are selected because they are
representing the majority of the Group’s impact on ESG issues.
In view of our business development, our Renewable Energy
segment in Hong Kong is newly included in this ESG report. The
Healthcare Service segment in Hong Kong still contributed to
our business in the reporting period but has been discontinued
by the end of the reporting period.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

With the purpose of identifying stakeholders’ key concerns with
reference to the ESG Reporting Guide, the Group conducted a
stakeholder engagement survey across April and May 2023.
Responses were received in stakeholder categories including
middle management & supervisor, general staff, and supplier.
For the views from director category, the latest result from the
last round in 2022 was still considered valid and was thus
adopted as valid result.

The importance of each reporting aspect was then determined
by compiling the degrees of importance given from all the
participants. The importance grade from each stakeholder
category was the average among all respondents within that
stakeholder category. The overall importance grade across
multiple stakeholder categories was then the average of each
categorical importance grade.

A materiality matrix was prepared to clearly illustrate the result
by placing each aspect with regard to its importance grade to
the directors of the Group and to other stakeholders consisting
of employees and external stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERARE

4. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND 4,
MATERIALITY - continued

The materiality matrix below was prepared to clearly illustrate
the result by placing each aspect with regard to its importance
grade to the directors of the Group and to all other
stakeholders. The aspects located in the top-right quarter of the

material matrix were considered by both the directors of the
Group and other stakeholders as material.

Materiality Matrix
EEMEME

B7 @ B6 ®

HEMERANEEY

Importance to Other Stakeholders

1A il

Importance to the Group

HAEENEEN
Legend:
& A :
A1 Emissions B1 Employment
A1 BER) B1 &%
A2 Use of Resources B2 Health and Safety
A2 BRER B2 @ERZE
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources B3 Development and Training
A3 REFERRAEBIR B3 Z/R NIE
A4 Climate Change B4 Labour Standards
A4 RIREML B4 4 T 48|
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND 4, R AZHRKREEMH-&

MATERIALITY - continued

MERERAEZHNHELEMBE LT
EPEETNREZERER - BTREFHKR
RETEE -AM BERE HEk
ERAEEDRIGRBEER -

A2 Health & Safety was the most material aspect determined in
the stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.
Whereas B7 Anti-corruption was determined to be the least
material. Nonetheless, all ESG aspects were assessed to be
material.

TREATEREASENBERAREZ
BEANBRZBTESHRERR

The table below integrates the result of the stakeholder
engagement and the feedback in day-to-day engagement with
various stakeholders.

Stakeholder
= A

Concerned ESG aspects

The Group’s responses

BRIENERE  HEgREREE AKENEE

Employees Health and Safety The Group establishes clear procedures to
=] 2R B %2 & safeguard occupational health and safety.

AEEFTRBMOET  AREBEBEREFEER

7o

Anti-corruption
R&EF

The Group establishes clear policy to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to preventing corruption.
REBETABMHIBR - UERESTEBN LR
BI5ERRER RRBY -

Investor and shareholders

BREERER

Economic performance
BRI

The Group timely release of the latest corporate
information via announcement, interim report
and annual report.

REBPBBOM - PN FERE MR EMARN
ARER -

Legal compliance

EREABMM

The Group holds shareholders’ meeting and
investors’ meeting to disclose information of
listed companies.
AEEQRBRRAGRIREERGARE LA
AV -
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4. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND 4, R AZHREEMH-&
MATERIALITY - continued

Stakeholder Concerned ESG aspects The Group’s responses

ERA BOEMEE - HEaREREE AEENEE

Customers Health and Safety The Group implements occupational health and
®pP fRER B % 5 safety measures to monitor and continuously

improve the safety level, and provides adequate
personal protection equipment to employees

AEBERBERRER DR UERNFE
HEREIKF IZ%E,%\}ET/\E%’JE’MI/\KE%%%
i e
The Environment and Natural | The Group established clear procedures to
Resources minimise significant impacts on the environment
BERARAER and natural resources.

KEBTABEWMNER  WEERDEHRERX
REBRWERTE

Suppliers and business Product Responsibility The Group incorporates expectation into the
partners EmAE product certification and establish quality
HEYREBEIERH inspection procedures to ensure that all our

products and services meet quality standards and
sustainable development requirements.
AEEGHEMAERAREP  TEVEERR
B UHERETHAERMREHFEEER

ERAFEEREK o
Emissions The Group pledges our supports to install, adopt
e energy-saving items and procure energy-efficient

equipment so as to continuously enhance energy
efficiency which consequently reduces GHG
emissions.

REBEAGHEXFRE - tRAEEIAR MEREEE
R AFRBRSERBE KRR ERE

HERR -
Government bodies/ Environmental impacts The Group always gives prompt responses to
regulators RIRE government inquires and environmental
BT ERPY, BB e regulation updates. During the reporting period,

the Group fully complied with environmental
laws and regulations.
AEE—EHBFNABMREEAROENSE T
REFEEIE - RIREHMA - AEBET2EFIR
BERERIER ©

b SE Y
5. FEEDBACK CHANNEL 5. RE&RRE
In order to continuously improve the environmental, social and ETT&EE&%KE.E’J% Hongk®
ok 31T F3E =% s=a
governance performance of the Group, we welcome BRE - RMTLESARLERER
stakeholders’ valuable opinions. Please share your views with us %ﬂ—'——f & Zesg@hk-greenenergy.com
via email at esg@hk-greenenergy.com. BEMAIZENER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group’s business operations strictly adhere to regulatory
requirements, and we remain vigilant in staying updated on any
regulatory changes. Throughout the reporting period, the Group
had no knowledge of any significant violations of local
environmental laws or regulations. This encompasses, but is not
limited to, the following:

e Industrial Emissions Directive of European Union
e Waste Framework Directive of European Union
e  Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong

There was no incident that has material impact on the
environment and natural resources in the reporting period.

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT
6.1.1 RECYCLING SEGMENTS

The Group’s recycling business segment plays a vital
role within our operations. We are dedicated to
enhancing the recovery rate of collected waste
through a range of waste management options,
meticulous waste classification, and careful storage
planning. To ensure proper waste segregation by our
employees, we have implemented a comprehensive
Standard Recycling Procedures Manual. Additionally,
our production lines are equipped with various sorting
facilities that effectively identify reusable and
recyclable materials within the waste stream, which
are subsequently stored in designated areas.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued
6.1.1 RECYCLING SEGMENTS — continued

Plastic waste primarily originates from collectors within
European Union countries, while construction waste is
sourced from nearby construction sites. The waste
stream undergoes screening processes for efficient
sorting, and the sorted waste is then stored in
designated containers or areas. To ensure the safe
disposal of non-recyclable waste, the Group has
engaged professional waste disposal companies that
comply with relevant regulations and possess a proven
track record in waste disposal. Recyclable scraps are
appropriately managed by registered recycling
collectors. It is important to note that no chemical or
non-hazardous waste is generated or discharged
during the recycling process.

By implementing these measures, the Group actively
contributes to waste reduction, resource conservation,
and environmental sustainability. Our commitment to
responsible waste management practices ensures that
recyclable materials are effectively recovered, while
non-recyclable waste is disposed of in a safe and
compliant manner. Through these efforts, we strive to
minimize the environmental impact of our operations
and promote the principles of a circular economy.

Plastic waste
material

BBRER

6. RERE-HE

6.1 EEYEE—E
6.1.1E1 4 7 28 — 4&

Construction waste

material

BEEY

Handled by the Group
RAEEEE

¥

Recyclable material
RlEl ek

Resold to other
recycling collectors

HEGRHM
Bl =&

registered so

¥

Non-recyclable

material

A 7] 3 WA

¥

Collected b{

I
waste disposal
company

i e 7 51 B8 R 4

BREATRE

Chart: Recycling business of the Group
Blx : NEBER @ ER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREARE

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6. RIERE &

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued 6.1 EEYEE—E
6.1.1 RECYCLING SEGMENTS — continued 6.1.16] 4 7 28— #&
Plastic Recycling — Germany BB O — {2 ]

1. Raw materials
1. Bx
\4

2. Manual sorting of raw materials

2. NIH Bk
v

3. Shredding
3.

4. Magnetic separation

4. T B

7. PP/PE separation
7. DR A B
v
8. Dehydration
8. fiK
v

9. Metal Separation

9. DEET B

v
10. Finished Goods
10. 58K fn
v
11. Packing
11. B85
v
12. Storage
12. B77¢

Chart: Plastic recycling flowchart

Ex : ZRBEYRIZE
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6. RIERE &

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued 6.1 ERVEE-&
6.1.1 RECYCLING SEGMENTS - continued 6.1.1[E 1 5 28 — 45
Construction Waste Recycling — Germany FE S EE R o] g — 12

1. Raw Materials
1. Fx

v

2. Segregation of raw materials

2. Rt BE

3. Crushing & Screening
3. MRFEERE

v

4. Finished Goods
4. T
v
5. Storage
5. 8177

Chart: Construction waste recycling flowchart

Bl & : 2N E YRR E

Data on recyclables generation is as follows: AEymEEERAT

1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021 to

Recyclables Unit 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
—EC-C—F —E—4F
tA—BZ +tH—HB=
—E-=F —_F-_—

A [5]  q B ~B=1+H ~A=1+H

From plastic recycling business

P=ELEIES S

Plastics Tonnes 24.31 48.53
B NI

Metal Scrap Tonnes 4.94 0.00
TEEER N

From construction waste recycling business

REEERERE WXL

Metal Scrap Tonnes 64.82 86.04
T EBEER N
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued

6.1.1

RECYCLING SEGMENTS - continued
Construction Waste Recycling — Germany — continued

To optimize the recovery of recyclable materials, the
Group's plastic recycling operation has set a maximum
wastage target of 15%. The Operation Department
and Production Department conduct monthly
performance evaluations, utilizing statistical analysis of
production processes. This allows for ongoing
improvements to the production process in order to
achieve the established target.

During the reporting period, approximately 94 tonnes
of plastic and metal scrap were collected by the
Group. The collection rate of recyclables amounted to
approximately 2.58 tonnes per kilo tonnes of input.
These recyclable materials are subsequently sold to
other recycling collectors for further recycling
processes.

By setting ambitious targets and regularly evaluating
production performance, the Group actively strives to
minimize waste and optimize the recovery of valuable
recyclable materials. This commitment aligns with our
broader environmental objectives and supports the
principles of a circular economy. Through continuous
improvement initiatives, we aim to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of our plastic recycling
operations while contributing to the sustainable
management of resources.

6.1.2 HEALTHCARE SERVICE SEGMENT

Within our Healthcare Service segment, various types
of medical waste are generated, including used
syringes, contaminated pads, cotton balls, and human
tissue specimens after examination. To ensure the
proper management and safe handling of medical
waste, our employees follow specific guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

6.

R ERE

RIERE

BRE -HERERHRSE

A —d
—_—
i

6.1 BERVEE-&

6.1.1[E1 4§ 77 ZF — #&
EEER B — 12—

REALTT B B R E U - AR
SENZBOREBSET
5% RERERR - BEEH
MEENLSABBEHEER
BELST DN - ETERGT
i o F5 UL 82 A] T BUE £ E R
2 LAERIMETEZ o

RMEEE - AEB D KEE
B e B RER K94 ANE o 7] [
WRmEkELY AT T AR
HAEEWEISSAME - ZEA
B b R E % & T H b B Uk
o LA TIE — S RISUGRTE

BBXRTEANEZLEHF
HEERR  AEEBERRD
WARE  WELEBEEE K
MR E U o % F /A B
EF%M%%E% W& #518
REEMRA - BB ESE
B BB ZREABR
ElIAS & EBHRE RBR -
Al AERNAFETIEE
HER -

6.1.2 88 BT IR & R 7%

BRZKEBRAR o

BPmEERERBDHE
EETRBENBEERY
BREMBN TS S X5H
BT BEMBEROAR
MBI - SEREE EEM
REREEREY  EESK
fersEsE sl -

F ¥R 2022/23

65



66

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERARE

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued
6.1.2 HEALTHCARE SERVICE SEGMENT — continued

Medical wastes are carefully sealed, appropriately
labelled, and stored in a designated area within our
clinic. These waste materials remain stored until a
licensed waste collector collects them for further
treatment. Detailed records of the medical waste are
maintained, including relevant information such as the
date and address of delivery, quantity, and the name
of the licensed waste collector.

Our operations in the healthcare service sector strictly
adhere to the Code of Practice for the Management of
Clinical Waste issued by the Environmental Protection
Department of the Hong Kong SAR Government. This
code provides comprehensive guidelines for the proper
handling, storage, and disposal of clinical waste,
ensuring compliance with relevant regulations and
maintaining high standards of safety and environmental
responsibility.

By following these guidelines and complying with
regulatory requirements, we demonstrate our
commitment to responsible waste management in the
healthcare industry. Our focus on proper handling and
disposal of medical waste helps protect public health,
minimize environmental impacts, and ensure the safety
of our staff, patients, and the community as a whole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREARE

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6. RIERE &

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued 6.1 EEYEE &
6.13 OTHER OPERATIONS 6135 fhAR & 2 5%

mr

Daily plant operations of the Group do not generate
any significant hazardous waste. However,
non-hazardous waste is produced and appropriately
discharged. As a recycling company, we understand
the importance of waste reduction and segregation at
the source. To encourage a green lifestyle among
employees and visitors, we provide reusable utensils
and crockeries in our office premises.

We are committed to materializing our vision of waste
reduction and sustainability. To this end, we
continuously strive to improve our operations and
work towards achieving waste reduction goals. By
implementing effective waste management practices,
we aim to minimize the environmental impact of our
activities and promote responsible waste handling
throughout our operations.

Our focus on waste reduction underscores our
dedication to environmental stewardship and
sustainable practices. We recognize that small steps,
such as providing reusable utensils, can contribute to
larger goals of waste reduction and resource
conservation. Through ongoing improvements and
initiatives, we aim to further enhance our waste
management strategies and promote a more
sustainable future.

AEENEERFEELETS
EEEMEACRERED - R
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.1 WASTE MANAGEMENT - continued

Data on the Group’s non-hazardous wastes generation is as

follows:

6. RERE-HE

6.1 ERVEE-&
AEEWBEEEEMEEERNT

1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021 to

Non-hazardous waste Unit 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
—E2=-= —E-—F
tA—BZ +tHA—HZ
—g== —F -

BEREEY By ANA=1H ~A=+H

Total amount of non-hazardous wastes Tonnes 181.10 180.71

generated in recycling operation

BIRERELNEZTEZYEE NI

Total amount of non-hazardous wastes Tonnes 8.00 111.00

generated in operations other than
recycling

O EBUINEENBREEEYEE NI

Total amount of clinical wastes generated Tonnes 0.02 0.04

in healthcare operation

BERREEBELANBEREZYES NI

Intensity Tonnes/HK$'000,000 0.03 18.01

revenue

=E NWE B BB THRA

Note: The substantial decrease in intensity was due to the new
inclusion of the revenue from Renewable Energy segment which
did not attribute to material quantity of non-hazardous waste.

6.2 PAPER CONSUMPTION

The Group actively advocates for space-efficient formats to
maximize the utilization of paper. We also encourage
employees to adopt double-sided printing practices and
conveniently place single-sided printed paper next to each
printer for easy reuse, thereby effectively reducing paper

waste.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23

fist: ZEREBTRIDERMEERE
AEERRD KA - EI I
BEANESEERVOMBESE -

6.2 A

AEBEBBREBAEZMUENBR
IBERSARNERR - A&H
B8 THRAEmT MO - I
HENESRITHRE REERS
MR - AEEEER - EMA
RO D HRRE ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREARE

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6. RIERE &

6.2 PAPER CONSUMPTION - continued 6.2 A —&
During the reporting period, the Group’s total paper RBEBRRN > TEHRIEB NS
consumption decreased primarily due to lower usage in the S AE R B AEERLR
non-recycling segment. The table provided below illustrates MEFFHL - TEHIEBEFERS
the quantity of paper consumed throughout the reporting HARS 4L 2 -
period.

1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021 to

Paper Consumption Unit 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
—E-CF —E—F
tA—BZE tHA—HZE
—EB-=F ==

ik By AA=1+H ~NA=+H

The total amount of paper consumed in kgs 27.49 0.80

recycling operation

EREHERAE NI

The estimated total amount of paper consumed  kgs 290.18 460.74

in operations other than recycling

BCEE T AN (G R AR S NI

Through these initiatives and measures, we strive to AAZERERERE  BMSHE
promote responsible paper usage and minimize our EAEARALEER LS ERMOIER
environmental footprint. By emphasizing space efficiency, BRED - BiBRFAEEBE - HE
encouraging double-sided printing, and facilitating paper EEITED R A EHKRERERD - &
reuse, we aim to reduce paper waste and contribute to MHBEERMDERREN B
sustainability efforts. We remain committed to continuously BREERELER - BRMDABAHT
improving our paper consumption practices and exploring ECERMOBAMER  WRERT
innovative solutions that align with our environmental EHEMRFE NIRRT R -

goals.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.3 PACKAGING MATERIALS CONSUMPTION
6.3.1 RECYCLING SEGMENTS

Packaging materials play a crucial role in the Group’s
operations, particularly in delivery, storage, and
transportation processes. To promote resource
conservation, we actively encourage our production
staff to minimize the use of packaging materials while
ensuring product quality and occupational safety
standards are maintained. Whenever possible, we
prioritize the reuse of uncontaminated packaging
materials.

In line with our commitment to sustainability, the
Group has taken steps to incorporate recycled wood
pallets sourced from a pallet recycling company based
in the Netherlands for transportation and delivery
purposes. This initiative helps reduce the demand for
new packaging materials and supports the circular
economy principles.

We recognize the importance of monitoring and
managing our packaging materials consumption. The
data pertaining to packaging materials consumption is
as follows:

6.

RERE-&

6.3 BEYRHEEE
6.3.1[6] 4% 7 &

BEYHEASENKEX
BHREEHERAC  LERE
R EERERBRREY R
REMNER - HPIRE R
SEANEBRERLERBE
WE - REEREREDmE
RBELZ2FEE - Malge - &
MEeEBREEARISTRANE
R HL -

HEMYAFEERNAS
— B AKECDERRTE
MARBERE —KERE
WREwEEBERN = FA
LR FEHLIMAE -
Ith 2 A Bh R A 81 3 B K AR
BFER - WA EREHRA -

BEMAREEREEBEM

BREBNEERE -AHEBRMH
FERMEURIT

1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021 to

Packaging Materials Unit 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
—E-= T
tA—BZE +tHA—HZE
—E=-= =

BRI B ANA=+H ANA=TH

Sizable Plastic Bags Tonnes 6.63 7.27

KRIBBR L

Wood Pallets Tonnes 40.74 44.63

AREFER NI

By actively promoting responsible packaging practices
and exploring sustainable alternatives, we aim to
minimize waste generation, conserve resources, and
contribute to a more environmentally conscious
approach within our operations.
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RERE-&

6.3 BRMBERE-E

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.
6.3 PACKAGING MATERIALS CONSUMPTION
— continued

632 HEALTHCARE SERVICE SEGMENT 6.3.2 8 1R 42 R 7%

Within our medical centre, plastic packaging materials
are primarily utilized for medical prescriptions. These
packaging materials consist of plastic bags, drug bags,
potion bottles, ointment boxes, and thermal labels. It
is crucial to package each prescribed medication
separately in individual plastic bags to maintain their
suitability for consumption. Proper labelling of these
bags with relevant patient and drug information is
essential for identification purposes. The packaging is
then distributed along with the drugs and dispensed
to patients.

Although plastic packaging is a necessary part of our
medical centre’s operations, it is relatively minimal
compared to the usage in other business segments of
the Group. Therefore, statistical data on packaging
materials consumption is not presented here due to its
immateriality.

We recognize the importance of responsible packaging
practices even in smaller quantities. Our focus remains
on ensuring the appropriate packaging of medications
to maintain their integrity and safety while minimizing
unnecessary waste generation. By adhering to proper
labelling and packaging guidelines, we strive to
provide quality healthcare services while contributing
to sustainable practices within our medical centre.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.4 ENERGY CONSUMPTION
641 RECYCLING SEGMENTS

Logistics and production activities account for the
majority of energy consumption within the Group.
Recognizing the importance of clean production and
addressing stakeholder concerns, the Group has
implemented various initiatives to closely monitor
energy consumption.

To ensure operational efficiency, the Group generates
monthly reports that highlight any abnormal energy
consumption. This proactive approach allows for timely
identification and reduction of unnecessary wastage.
Moreover, the Group has enlisted the services of an
energy consultant to develop an energy efficiency plan
and provide ongoing monitoring and assessment of
energy conservation efforts. By conducting regular
assessments and examinations, the Group strives to
optimize energy usage.

To proactively address excessive energy consumption,
the Group has implemented a system that issues
timely warnings when a production line shows a
disproportionate increase in total energy consumption,
surpassing a threshold set at 10% excessive growth.
This allows for thorough investigation and resolution
of any underlying issues. Furthermore, the Group has
established targets for total energy consumption.
These targets serve as benchmarks to effectively
control energy usage at plant facilities, both in terms
of growth and overall volume.

Through these comprehensive measures and ongoing
monitoring, the Group is committed to enhancing
energy efficiency and minimizing energy waste. By
setting targets, conducting assessments, and promptly
addressing areas of concern, we aim to optimize our
energy consumption and contribute to a more
sustainable future.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6. RIERE &

6.4 ENERGY CONSUMPTION - continued
6.42 OTHER OPERATIONS

6.4 BEREHFE—E
642B M EE

The Group has implemented various measures to
improve energy efficiency, including the replacement
of electrical equipment with higher energy-efficient
alternatives and the installation of energy-saving
lighting solutions such as LED lights throughout our
premises. To ensure responsible energy usage, the
Group has designated a “last-man-out” responsibility,
where the designated person checks and turns off all
lights, machines, and equipment when they are not in
use or outside of office hours.

Additionally, to foster energy-saving habits within the
office, the Group prominently displays notice
reminders to encourage employees to switch off idling
engines, air-conditioners, and indoor space heaters
when not in use. By promoting these practices, we aim
to reduce unnecessary energy consumption and
minimize waste.

Furthermore, the Group maintains indoor room
temperatures at a range of 24 to 26 degrees Celsius,
aiming for a comfortable yet energy-efficient
environment.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.4 ENERGY CONSUMPTION - continued

Data on the types and amount of energy consumption by
the Group is presented below:

6. RERE-HE

6.4 REFHE— &

AREBEERERBLLEREER
FIEREAT

Consumption Intensity
HEEE BE

(000 kWh/HK$'000,000

("'000 kwh) revenue)

(FETRE/
(FRETRE) BEBTKA)

1.7.2022t0  1.7.2021t0 1.7.2022to 1.7.2021to
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
B —E--% CZZEZC —E-—F
tA-HE +tHA—-HE +tB—-HZ +tH-HZE
gz C-Z--% CZB-zZHE C—T-_F
~A=tH AR~A=TH AKRA=+H A~A=1H
Diesel for stationary equipment [&] E 32 AR Y S0 608.70 438.65 7.39 27.08
Diesel and gasoline for motor vehicles ST EEHYLESm & /) 11.48 22.42 0.14 138
LPG for stationary equipment & TE SR B8R AR 45.86 49.28 0.56 3.04
Natural gas for operations KEEBHRAR 103.12 98.85 1.25 6.10
Electricity BN 704.19 665.45 8.55 41.08
Total MR 1,473.36 1,274.65 17.90 78.68

Note: Consumption in terms of energy unit is calculated by multiplying
consumption activity data with corresponding lower calorific
value.

The substantial decrease in intensity was due to the new
inclusion of revenue from Renewable Energy segment which is
comparatively less energy intensive.

By implementing energy-efficient equipment, encouraging
responsible habits, and maintaining appropriate
temperature settings, the Group is committed to reducing
energy consumption and minimizing our environmental
impact. We continuously review our energy usage patterns
and explore innovative solutions to further enhance our
energy efficiency efforts.
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6.5 AKKSKERE
6.5 15k

6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.

6.5 WATER AND WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
6.5.1 WASTEWATER

The Group acknowledges that the recycling business
involves water consumption and the generation of
sewage during its operations. With this in mind, the
Group has implemented several measures to address
these environmental concerns. To achieve the goal of
minimizing pollutant discharge, the Group has installed
wastewater processing equipment. This equipment
effectively separates solid waste contents and recovers
recyclable materials from the sewage. By doing so, the
Group aims to achieve ultralow levels of pollutant
discharge. Additionally, a drainage system has been
established to control the flow of wastewater to
sedimentation tanks, preventing runoff into nearby
soils and rivers.

Regular inspections conducted by the production staff
ensure the proper functioning of the sewage treatment
facilities and equipment within the plant. This
proactive approach helps maintain normal operating
conditions and prevents any potential leakage. The
Group has also engaged consultants to study and
enhance the efficiency of the wastewater treatment
systems, promoting continuous improvement in this
aspect. Moreover, the Group emphasizes proper
treatment of wastewater to comply with the required
water quality standards and maximize water reuse. To
facilitate this, professional sewage disposal companies
have been appointed to handle the discharged
wastewater for further treatment.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.5 WATER AND WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
— continued

6.5.1 WASTEWATER — continued

By implementing these measures, the Group
demonstrates its commitment to responsible
wastewater management and environmental
sustainability. The focus on efficient wastewater
treatment, pollution prevention, and adherence to
regulatory standards contributes to minimizing the
environmental impact of the Group’s recycling
operations.

Regarding wastewater generation, there were 460.70
tonnes, and the intensity of wastewater generation
was 5.6 tonnes per HK$'000,000 revenue in the
reporting period.

6.5.2 FRESHWATER

The Group actively promotes water-saving practices
among employees by placing reminders near water
outlets to raise awareness of their water-saving
responsibilities. To further enhance water conservation
efforts, flow controllers have been installed on water
taps to reduce water usage. These measures aim to
encourage responsible water consumption within the
organization. While the Group has not established a
specific target for water consumption, regular
statistical analysis is conducted to monitor water usage
in the plants. This analysis helps identify and address
any abnormal water consumption patterns, ensuring
efficient and sustainable water management practices.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.

6.5 WATER AND WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
— continued

6.5.2 FRESHWATER — continued

RERE-—E
6.5 AKRKSKERE—

6.52 KKk —#&

=

II‘E

The Group also supports the increased reuse of treated
water to reduce water consumption in industrial
production, whenever applicable and appropriate. By
maximizing the reuse of water, the Group actively
contributes to water conservation efforts. Through
these initiatives, the Group demonstrates its
commitment to responsible water management and
sustainability. By promoting water-saving practices,
installing flow controllers, monitoring consumption,
and exploring opportunities for water reuse, the Group
aims to minimize water waste and contribute to the
preservation of this vital resource.

It is worth noting that the Group does not encounter
any difficulties in sourcing water that meets the
required quality standards for its intended purposes. In
the reporting period, there were 1,759.18 m? of water
consumed, and the intensity of water consumption
was 21.37 m? per HK$'000,000 revenue. The increase
is primarily due to the new inclusion of water
consumption of the Renewable Energy segment in the

AEENBEBRAREE
BRTIBMERZLRIEK - BA
BMOTEEENRKE - BB
EERMNERK  AEBEERK
REHRKELER - BB
F8E AKERTHEUER
TOXKREERAFEERD
A o B REREKEOR - &
RREEIR BERBERBER
ARRREBAKNOKE K%
EHEEREERIRER
K W RFRELERERED
BEL -

BEEIEMZE TAEBEX
B EHEBTEARMERE
AR KR 5 I E IR A
IR - AR R - AKE
A1,759.183 /oK - K& E
BEBBEBBITWA21.373LF
Ko MM EZRRAABREH
MAFEREATBERERD S

reporting period.

6.6 EMISSIONS

In terms of pollutants emitted from the Group, SOx
emission is mainly due to fuel consumption of vehicles.
Below table shows the number of pollutants emitted in the
reporting period.

BFEKE o

6.6 LY

AEBBHRHSEYITE  —4A1t
AR ERRBTENRFHE
R o TRAREHREN)T RN

E o
1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021 to
Pollutants 30.6.2023 30.6.2022
—EB-fF —E-—F
tA—H=ZE +tA—HZE
—E-= —F-—
SRY ~A=+H ~NA=+H
Sulphur oxides (kgs) 0.020 0.039
—afti (F=)
Note: Calculated based on the total fuel consumption of gasoline and MEsE AR 1 5 S B R S5 5h EE A MR RLSH B

diesel vehicles. The unit for 2021-22 data is restated to kgs, the
figure itself is unchanged.

BREERMREEERATR o
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.

6.6 EMISSIONS - continued

Total Greenhouse Gas Emission

In relation to greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions during
the specified reporting period, the provided graph depicts
the overall GHG emissions generated by the Group. The
primary contributor to carbon emissions stems from the
energy consumed in the Group’s recycling activities. To
sustain plant operations and daily production, the main
sources of energy utilized include industrial electricity,

RERE-&

6.6 BEm Y — &

BERBAKERE

ARERRS HEREERE (R
ERBDHEREBER  AREENER
MerEEELNEETREERY
ME - MM EBRRBEREAE
BRI WOREFTERERBEIR - RS
MEEERABLEE FAEMANE
ERFEERIERE  SaMRR

diesel, and natural gas. & o

]%—\

58%_\

(D Total Scope 1 Emission
S —RYmE

@ Total Scope 2 Emission
s e
Total Scope 3 Emission
HE=RNE

Graph: Percentage of scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emission of the Group
B : AEEESERE - SE_HEBEAERBHNENESL

1%—\

® Electric
B i

 Gas for operations
B ETEHIRINR
LPG for operations
& E BRI AR
Diesel and Gasoline for motor vehicles
T S U
Diesel for Stationary equipment
[ E 2R B Y S

Business Travel
Z=IK

34%

Graph: Percentage of greenhouse gas emission sources for the reporting period
Bl REHEAEREBHIMURNE DL
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.

6.6 EMISSIONS - continued

Total Greenhouse Gas Emission — continued

The total of reporting period emission intensity was 5.84
tonnes of CO,e per HK$'000,000 revenue. Although the
Group has not set a specific emission target, we affirm our
commitment to installing energy-saving devices, adopting
energy-efficient practices, and procuring equipment that
promotes energy efficiency. These measures are aimed at
continuously improving our energy efficiency and, as a
result, reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The

RBESHE BFRRERERSE
VB TT U AHE RS 84N B — SR E
B BAAEE W RS ERBIEW
BiE BAKEAZRLZEDHER
R ~ PR A BE UK M BR BB AT e 4 5E
BRI R - ZEHERE B E
‘e ERMaE - MR B ERE

(GHG)HEIR - AT BIRIRIt B RAHE

o

following data provides information on the sources and BB R EEHER
quantities of emissions:
GHG emissions Emission Intensity
BEREHHE e BE
(tCO,e/HK$'000,000
(tCO,e) revenue)
(AE-EtHEE/
(AE-ELHREER) BEBTHRA)
1.7.2022to0 1.7.2021to 1.7.2022to 1.7.2021 to
30.6.2023  30.6.2022  30.6.2023  30.6.2022
—E-_-fF —ET-—F CZBIZFE —T-_—%F
tA—HEZ +tH-HZ +A-RAZ +A—-B=
—E-=EF —T-—F ZBZ=ZE —ZT-—F
AA=tH R~A=tH AKRA=tH RA=TH
Scope 1 Direct Emission’ HE—EEFHE 198.07 155.75 2.4 9.61
Diesel for Stationary Equipment [&] TE &% B0 S 163.36 117.72 1.98 7.27
LPG for Stationary Equipment & TE BRI A RR 10.44 11.22 0.13 0.69
Natural Gas for Operations KEEBHRAR 20.83 19.97 0.25 1.23
Diesel and Gasoline for Motor Vehicles 528 #9458 & S5 )i 3.44 6.83 0.04 0.42
Scope 2 Indirect Emission associated ~ #ifE —HREEEE S -
with the purchase of electricity, 5 B RA AR
steam, heat, or cooling? HEEEERE? 279.77 239.99 3.40 14.81
Purchased Electricity EEAET 279.77 239.99 3.40 14.81
Scope 3 Indirect Emission oIS =FHEHENE 2.72 4.71 0.03 0.29
Business Travel by Employees REZEIR 2.72 4.71 0.03 0.29
Total GHG Emissions RERBEYNE 480.57 400.44 5.84 24.72
Note: The substantial decrease in intensity was due to the new iz ZmEARE TR ITARTEERED
inclusion of revenue from Renewable Energy segment which is AHEEERSITHWKA - iR
comparatively less carbon intensive. EHYEIE -

BIEREREREOREIREAOBERE -
EERERENARBENENELNIRE -

! Including emissions from combustion of fuel in vehicles and machinery. 1
2 Including only emissions from power purchased from power companies. 2
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.6 EMISSIONS - continued

Scope 1 GHG emission - Direct Emission
Diesel for Stationary Equipment

The Group acknowledges the significance of upholding
environmental sustainability in its day-to-day operations.
The primary sources of stationary diesel consumption in the
Construction Waste Recycling segment in Germany are
attributed to a crushing machine, a screening machine, an
excavator, and a wheel loader. To improve energy
efficiency, a range of measures, including the adoption of
energy-efficient equipment, are implemented. There were
163.36 tonnes of CO,e (mainly carbon dioxide, methane,
and nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s operation in
the reporting period. The increase was primarily due to the
new inclusion of consumption of the Renewable Energy
segment in the reporting period.

LPG for Stationary Equipment

The Group emitted a total of 10.44 tonnes of CO,e from
LPG consumption in machinery in recycling operation.

Natural Gas for Operations

In the reporting period, the Group emitted a total of 20.83
tonnes of CO,e from natural gas consumption mainly for
heating system and dryers in the plastic recycling
production lines in Germany.

Diesel and Gasoline for Motor Vehicles

Motor vehicles of the Group are diesel and gasoline vehicles
emitted 3.44 tonnes of CO,e. The figure was lower than
that in the previous reporting period because the lower
consumption of fuel.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued 6.

6.6 EMISSIONS - continued

Scope 2 GHG emission - Indirect Emission associated
with the purchase of electricity, steam, heat, or
cooling

Purchased Electricity

The Group indirectly emitted 279.77 tonnes of CO,e from
electricity consumption. The increase was primarily due to
the new inclusion of consumption of the Renewable Energy
segment in the reporting period.

Scope 3 GHG emission - Indirect Emission
Business Travel

The Group actively uses video conference call system
platforms and email discussions to replace unnecessary
business travels for reduced emissions. The Group indirectly
emitted 2.72 tonnes of CO,e from business travel. The
figure was lower than that in the previous reporting period
due to reduced business travel.

6.7 ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

The Group has implemented a comprehensive training
program for employees focused on the Standard Recycling
Procedures Manual, with a strong emphasis on
environmental protection. By enhancing awareness of the
complete recycling process, the aim is to mitigate the
adverse effects of irresponsible waste disposal on the
environment. Additionally, the Group has demonstrated its
commitment to environmental conservation by signing the
“No Shark Fin Pledge” initiative led by WWF Hong Kong.
Furthermore, the Group actively encourages employees to
opt for locally-sourced and vegetarian foods, promoting
sustainable consumption practices.
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - continued

6.8 CLIMATE RESILIENCE

In our Construction Waste Recycling operations, adverse
weather conditions, such as prolonged or severe rainy
seasons, can impact our operations. Excessive moisture in
the construction wastes can cause them to clump together,
leading to blockages in the screening machines. This, in
turn, can result in suboptimal screening performance and
additional downtime for cleaning and maintenance.
Similarly, during extreme or extended cold weather in
winter, the conveying belts in our machinery can freeze,
causing slower processing and the potential for equipment
damage. Despite the lower throughput in such conditions,
extra diesel fuel must be consumed to overcome the
challenges, resulting in lower fuel efficiency.

While heat waves generally have minimal impact on the
processing of most recyclables, they can affect the viability
of crushing asphalt, which is one type of construction
waste processed in our production lines. In extreme heat
wave scenarios, machinery overheating can adversely affect
the throughput of our production lines.

To address these challenges brought about by climate
change, the Group has taken proactive measures. We have
established Working in Extreme Weather Guidelines to
ensure the safety of our employees and minimize damage
to our property and equipment during extreme weather
events. Under unfavourable weather conditions, outdoor
production work is temporarily halted, and machinery is
relocated to designated areas to reduce diesel consumption
and mitigate potential damage. This approach not only
safeguards the well-being of our workers but also ensures
that production does not occur in unsuitable environments.

Furthermore, prior to the arrival of hurricanes, the Human
Resources Department sends messages to colleagues at
relevant premises, reminding them to secure doors and
windows with strong adhesive tape. The Group has also
obtained natural disaster insurance to cover potential losses
caused by such events. By implementing these measures,
we aim to mitigate the impact of extreme weather events
resulting from climate change.
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OUR PEOPLE

The Group’s business operations strictly adhere to regulatory
requirements, and we maintain a vigilant approach to stay
updated on any regulatory changes. Throughout the reporting
period, the Group was not aware of any significant instances of
non-compliance with local laws or regulations pertaining to
employment, health, and safety. This includes, but is not limited
to, the following areas of focus:

7.1

Equality Framework Directive of European Union
Framework Directive on Safety and Health at Work of
European Union

Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong

TEAM STRUCTURE

The Group highly values its employees and recognizes them
as vital assets. Our commitment is to establish a
comfortable, healthy, and equitable work environment that
attracts and retains talented individuals, while safeguarding
their rights and interests. Furthermore, during the reporting
period, the Group organized a variety of team-building and
outdoor activities, including barbecues, welcoming lunches,
Christmas parties, and birthday celebrations. Additionally,
the Group extended gestures of warmth and joy to
employees by sending birthday cards, wedding gifts, and
gifts for newborns, fostering a sense of shared happiness
and well-being.
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.1 TEAM STRUCTURE - continued

As of 30 June 2023, the Group had a total number of 37
employees (as of 30 June 2022: 57 employees). The
decrease in the employee number is primarily due to the
discontinuation of our Healthcare business in Hong Kong at
the end of the reporting period. The distribution of

employee was shown as below:

7. ANF—1&

7.1 %%%_M\E
R-ZE-_ZFA=1+H A&£H
GHBEIVEREE (WZEZZFN
A=+H :57%&E) - BB AH
BOEEHREMEREBREL
RIFMCEESNBERBER -
HERAT

Gender Number of employees
4 5l EBEA™
Male S 22
Female M 15
Total st 37
Employment Type Number of employees
EEER BEAH
Full-time ] 33
Fixed term or contract  [&E & Hisk & 47 4
Total st 37
Age Group Number of employees
FiriE Bl EEA™
>64 years old 6455 A E 0
55 — 64 years old 55-64%% 6
45 — 54 years old 45-545% 9
35 - 44 years old 35-445% 14
25 - 34 years old 25-3475% 8
16 - 24 years old 16-245%, 0
Total st 37
Geographical Region Number of employees
Hb 35, BEAR
Hong Kong B 23
Germany == 11
Mainland China AR B K B 2
Others Efh 1
Total At 37
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued 7. ANF—1&

7.2 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 7.2 ERER
The Group strictly adheres to all applicable labour standards TN E AR E #ﬁ & &5 BT 1E Hb B9 BT
and employment laws and regulations in the locations EERAYTERNREREEZNLR

where it operates. Throughout the reporting period, the
Group did not identify any instances of illegal employment
practices such as child labour or forced labour. Additionally,
there were no legal violations or complaints related to
discrimination or recruitment.

Employees receive remuneration packages comprising basic

Bl - REEREHE  ~AEEHE
HREMNABARERAEIXGESH
HEARIBIMUR » LI TRET
BRAER SRR AT R E
KR -

BEUBNFHGERRELFH

salaries and performance-based bonuses, determined based RUEEAEBHIET  ERES
on qualifications, experience, and prevailing market rates. BFE KEREHTEETE - F4

Salary and promotion opportunities are typically reviewed
annually, taking into account individual performance
assessments. In addition to the basic remuneration, the
Group provides a comprehensive range of benefits,
including medical and hospital insurance coverage, Chinese
New Year red packets, and paid leaves for sickness,
marriage, and bereavement, along with statutory holidays.
No employee receives a salary below the minimum wage
specified by relevant government regulations in their
respective jurisdictions.

All employees of the Group are provided with written
employment contracts, which include provisions regarding
termination in the event of violations of local laws,
regulations, or the Group’s policies. Recruitment is based
on candidates’ qualifications, experience, abilities, and

REAME —REBFLERBAR
BB EITER - BREATH B

BN REBMREEE2ENG
MoBRAEBBEN EBEEER
EFRRE - BEFFLAE  UARE
FRB - EREABETAR -H
BEAAEEKRENITERAESS
A [ A8 B ERT AR B AT $E BR Y &
KRIE o

AEEMAREHCERHEER

BEAH EHFEREREME
2 MR B R AN & B R B B 4R 1
R - MERREBEEEENER

business needs, without regard to factors such as race, ik Rl FE - SRR E
gender, age, marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual o REEYRR  MELA - R R
orientation, religion, disability, or nationality. The Group K RESHE - NEFREFE
ensures that all talented candidates and employees have BENREARESHEHRTME

equal opportunities for hiring, promotion, and relevant FARZMBEEINTEEZEEF

training to meet business requirements and personal career
development. The Group strictly prohibits the use of child
labour and forced labour in any workplace. During the
recruitment process, the Group verifies the identification
documents of candidates to ensure their legal entitlement
to work. In cases of child labour or forced labour,
immediate employment termination is enforced, while
other illegal incidents are reported to local enforcement
agencies.
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.2 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES - continued

In our healthcare business, all medical practitioners
engaged by the Group hold valid and active practicing
certificates and possess the necessary qualifications to
provide medical services and handle drug and
pharmacy-related matters. These medical practitioners
adhere to relevant laws, regulations, and the Code of
Professional Conduct for the Guidance of Registered
Medical Practitioners issued by the Medical Council of Hong
Kong. The Group organizes seminars for staff to raise
awareness about illnesses such as eczema and HPV, and
offers special discounts to employees seeking vaccinations
and traditional Chinese medical treatments.

Please refer to the table below for the turnover rate during
the reporting period.

7. ANF—1&

12 BRERER-&

REFMBEERREXHT  AEHE
BANMBEBLEHEREARINE
BUENNERE UHEBEMFE
1% e B EIRS MR IE YR
WEH ZEBLEHTEEEER
ZEERMNBEEMELERT
Al - AEBERE THMHE - M
RELEPMARIBERSZHPY)
MR AR BT RE MRS
hE SRR MR B RIS -

BNk -

Gender Turnover Rate
] kR
Male S 77%
Female M 60%
Total st 70%
Age Group Turnover Rate
F 48 5l ik =
>64 years old 6455 A £ 100%
55 — 64 years old 55-64%% 17%
45 — 54 years old 45-547% 89%
35 — 44 years old 35-445% 64%
25 - 34 years old 25-3475% 88%
16 — 24 years old 16-245%, 0%
Total st 70%

Geographical Region

Turnover Rate

b 35, TR R
Hong Kong &E 104%
Germany =E 18%
Mainland China Fh B K i 0%
Others Ht 0%
Total et 70%
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.3 EMPLOYEE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND

SAFETY

The Group prioritizes the utmost importance of ensuring
the health and safety of all employees. Our commitment is
to safeguard them from work-related accidents or injuries,
and the Group is fully dedicated to complying with the
applicable occupational health and safety legislation in
mainland China, Japan, Hong Kong, and Germany.
Throughout the reporting period, the Group did not
identify any instances of non-compliance with local
regulations regarding occupational health and safety.

To promote a safe working environment, the Group has
implemented a customized Workplace Health and Safety
Manual that outlines safety procedures and emergency
response plans tailored to various working conditions and
requirements. These policies and guidelines are regularly
reviewed and enhanced to ensure optimal protection for
our employees. Additionally, personal protective equipment
such as N95 respirators, gloves, earplugs, and protective
clothing are provided to employees to safeguard their
health and safety. First aid kits and firefighting facilities are
readily available at each workplace, enabling immediate
treatment for injuries and swift response to fire accidents.
Regular fire drills are conducted to ensure employees are
familiar with firefighting protocols. The Group also provides
medical treatment and accident insurance coverage for
eligible employees.

To maintain a conducive working environment, the Group
ensures adequate lighting and ventilation systems to uphold
good air quality. The workplaces are kept clean, tidy, and
provide sufficient workspace. Regular cleaning of drinking
fountains and air conditioning systems is carried out.
Moreover, the Group supplies appropriate office
equipment, including height-adjustable chairs with
adjustable armrests and tilting backrests.
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.3 EMPLOYEE OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND

SAFETY - continued

In our healthcare business, the Group educates clinical staff
on health and safety instructions to enhance their
awareness of infection control. They are encouraged to
report any potential disease outbreaks to the
clinic-in-charge. The operation of specialized medical
equipment, such as irradiating apparatus, is limited to
certified staff members. Regular training is provided to
clinical and laboratory staff to ensure the safe and proper
use of medical equipment.

Regarding occupational health and safety training, the
Group offers training to all new employees and provides
regular training sessions for existing employees. Throughout
the reporting period, relevant employees received training

7. AZ'- nﬁ
13 EEREREEZE-&

REFMERREXBSH  AKHE
RRERBERTYED ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%,\iﬁﬂ
Bl AR RS R B - ]
TF'ﬁ*iEJJfEZ#I‘? ﬁﬁié,\}\i&ﬁtﬁﬁ

BERBRE - BPFIER

Eﬁl 57 & 28
BRIk

FRBERREEL 2E
RATBEFEEBRHEE

g4 (118

BRI ARAEENET

Al AEH
YERRB

RERBRHEIIRE - REER
SHE HEREHEEIBER

in occupational health and safety. EEHZEEY .
1.7.2022 to 1.7.2021to 1.7.2020 to
30.6.2023 30.6.2022 30.6.2021
—=E=-= —Eo—F —E-FTF
+tB—HAZ +tH—HA%Z +tHA—A8Z%
—E-=FE —ET—-— —E-—F
NA=+H ~A=+BH R<A=t+H
Number of Work-related Fatality EIT A 0 0 0
Rate of Work-related Fatality AT T bR 0% 0% 0%

Number of Lost-days due to

Work Injury HIEmBLRTIERH 40 106 38
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.4 DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognizes that the quality of its employees is
fundamental to its success. Therefore, we actively
encourage our employees to pursue professional growth
and career development that aligns with the long-term
growth of our business. To achieve this, we consistently
promote and support continuous learning activities for our
staff.

Firstly, the Group provides regular reading materials and
training sessions to its directors, ensuring they stay updated
on the latest regulatory requirements, corporate
governance practices (including anti-corruption measures),
financial performance, and market trends. Secondly, we
encourage employees to participate in external qualification
examinations. Periodically, education allowances are offered
to employees to attend training courses organized by
professional institutions, enabling them to enhance their
professional and technical knowledge. Thirdly, in our
recycling business, we have developed Standard
Operational Procedures Manuals for various activities,
providing clear instructions for workers to carry out routine
operations. These manuals not only serve as the foundation
for employee training but also contribute to improving
overall operational efficiency and performance consistency
in the long run. New employees are familiarized with these
procedures before commencing their roles.

Lastly, in our healthcare business, the Group arranges and
sponsors relevant external training for our clinical staff,
tailored to their specific duties. These trainings encompass
areas such as administering injections, blood test collection,
pharmaceutical dispensing, and other skills and knowledge
related to clinical support and customer service. The Group
also provides professional support to effectively manage
and administer the Group’s operations.
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7. OUR PEOPLE - continued

7.4 DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING - continued

Please refer to the table below for the relevant training
figures during the reporting period.

Average

Training Hours per

Percentage Trained Employee

BEEIMNTFEEI

BEJIETEIHL 534

All Employees FEET 19% 1.9
Proportion in regard

to total number of Average

employees who took Training Hours

Gender part in training per Employee

HBEEIETAE SHEINTHEI

] #9 Eb i i B

Male S 86% 2.9

Female zi 14% 0.5
Proportion in regard

to total number of Average

employees who took Training Hours

Employee Category part in training per Employee

HBEEIETAE SHEINTHEI

EEE5 #9 Eb i i B

Senior Management BREEAS 14% 3.9

Middle Management FREEAS 14% 2.8

Supervisor FE 0% 0.0

General Staff —RET 71% 1.5
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group’s businesses operate in strict compliance with all
relevant regulations, and we remain vigilant in staying updated
on any regulatory changes. Throughout the reporting period,
the Group has not identified any significant instances of
non-compliance with local laws or regulations pertaining to
operational integrity, which include, but are not limited to:

e  Data Protection Directive of European Union

e  Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong

e  Directive on Protecting Whistle-blowers of European Union

e  Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong

e Misleading and Comparative Advertising Directive of
European Union

e Undesirable Medical Advertisements Ordinance of Hong
Kong

e Medical Registration Ordinance of Hong Kong

8.1 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group places great importance on respecting
intellectual property rights and adheres to the use of
copyrighted application software to avoid security
vulnerabilities and legal disputes. Additionally, the Group
recognizes the growing customer concern for
environmental issues alongside product quality. To actively
support this market trend, the Group incorporates customer
expectations into product certification and establishes
quality inspection procedures in the recycling business.
These measures ensure that all products meet quality
standards and sustainable development requirements.
Construction materials, plastics, and metal scrap undergo
rigorous quality tests before being sent to the Group. Any
materials failing the tests are returned to the suppliers to
safeguard downstream quality.
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8. OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

8.1 PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY - continued

In our healthcare business, the Group conducts internal
mystery shopper visits to applicable operation branches,
such as clinics, to assess service quality and workflows.
Additionally, designated channels including hotlines,
facsimile, and email are available for clients to lodge
complaints. The Group consolidates and analyses customer
feedback, taking appropriate follow-up actions to enhance
service quality. Customers promptly receive analysis reports.
Throughout the reporting period, there were no recall cases
or significant customer complaints.

Furthermore, during the reporting period, the Group had
no instances of non-compliance related to advertising or
intellectual property rights concerning our products and
services.

8.2 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Effective supply chain management is crucial for ensuring
the quality of recycling activities. The Group has established
a set of selection criteria, including certifications, product
quality, service stability, pricing, and after-sales services,
which potential suppliers must fulfil to become registered
suppliers. The Group conducts annual reviews of major
suppliers to assess their quality assurance and customer
satisfaction. If a supplier’'s performance falls significantly
below the acceptable level, the Group may suspend their
services and request a reassessment. In severe cases,
termination of cooperation and removal from the supplier
list may be considered.

To maintain long-term relationships and ensure a stable
supply, the Group has implemented a comprehensive
vertical supply chain management system that includes
supplier screening, logistics, and resource integration.
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8. OPERATING PRACTICES - continued 8. BEEH &

8.2 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT - continued 82 HEHEEE &

In managing ESG risks along the supply chain, the Group
gives preference to suppliers with good environmental
performance or environmental management system
certifications like 1ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System and ISO 9001 Quality Management System. The
Group also encourages green procurement by specifying in
tendering documents the preference for products with
eco-labels or environmentally friendly options.
Environmentally responsible suppliers and products with
certifications such as PEFC (Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification) and ISCC (International
Sustainability and Carbon Certification) are given priority.

Stable supplier services are vital for ensuring product
quality. Therefore, the Group diligently manages its supply
chain to maintain product conditions and standardization.
In the recycling business, suppliers capable of providing
high-purity raw materials are selected, and proximity to
operations is preferred to reduce transportation needs. In
the healthcare business, the Group procures medicines,
medical equipment, and consumables from qualified
pharmaceutical companies and suppliers that meet
applicable laws and regulations for quality, safety, and
efficiency. Active and frequent communication with
suppliers is essential, covering topics such as market news,
technology updates, industry sustainability, and compliance
with laws and regulations.

At the end of the reporting period, the geographical
distribution of our suppliers is as follows.

Geographical Region
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Carbon Certificate + BB sk & 4 K1
MRE) EREFNHREEEEN
f/\%?:ﬁﬁﬁuu °©

BENHERRGYBRERDE
EFHEZ - A AEEBHER
HT J—éfg LAT%?—IFDDJ% &N IF P
oo ERIKREBT  AEBGERE
e AR R R -
WBFEERUIHER - AR E
BHR - EBERERRET K&
B [mjm e R EBER WA ERT
M EEMRBEY  BERELH
Hom o AHEREE  RE2RUEH -
HftER v MERAEEBL A
D RERBHIATISHE - Fl
RMER  TENAHBEERIAR
BFIERER -

RS REERE - HERNBE
DT

Number of Suppliers

HE HEBHA
Europe B 33
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8. OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

8.3 CUSTOMER PRIVACY

The Group’s information technology department has
implemented a comprehensive data protection system to
ensure the security of collected data and respect for
customer privacy. A system maintenance policy and strict
rules govern the use of computers by employees to educate
and regulate their behaviour in this regard. The Group
adheres to the General Data Protection Regulation
2016/679, which requires lawful and purpose-specific data
collection with designated retention periods. All storage
and transmission of personal data are encrypted and
protected by up-to-date antivirus measures. The Group
takes practical steps to safeguard personal data from
unauthorized access, processing, erasure, loss, or use by
third parties. Personal data is disclosed internally and
externally on a need-to-know basis and with clients’
consent.

The Group maintains transparency regarding its personal
data policy and practices, including the types of data held
and its usage. Handling of customer data complies with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong (Cap. 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other applicable laws and
regulations. Data holders have the right to update and
correct their information by submitting written requests.
Upon request, the Group provides information on the use
of clients’ information in the past 12 months. Access to
personal data is limited to trained personnel with delegated
responsibilities. Responsible personnel undergo regular data
handling training to stay updated on the latest
requirements. Unlawful and inappropriate actions are not
tolerated within the Group, and any suspected or confirmed
cases are reported to law enforcement agencies. Individuals
found guilty of misconduct are subject to dismissal.
Additionally, the Group notifies clients if their data is
disclosed, collected, or used without official approval or
permission.

Throughout the reporting period, there were no confirmed
incidents of non-compliance or complaints regarding data
privacy related to the Group’s products and services.
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8. OPERATING PRACTICES - continued 8. BEEH-E&

8.4 ANTI-CORRUPTION 8.4 RES

The Group places great importance on protecting its
reputation and maintaining trust. Strict anti-corruption laws
and regulations govern the Group’s operations. Employees
are expected to uphold the Group’s professional image and
are strictly prohibited from pursuing personal interests or
benefits through business opportunities. The
anti-corruption policy sets clear boundaries, prohibiting
employees from accepting any advantages offered by
customers, suppliers, colleagues, or any other parties while
performing their duties. The Group’s stance against
corruption, as well as its code of conduct, is clearly
communicated to all employees through the staff
handbook.

To further promote ethical behaviour, the Group has
established a declaration of interests and whistle-blowing
policy, encouraging employees to report any instances of
malpractice or misconduct directly to the human resources
department or senior management. All reports are treated
confidentially, and a designated senior management
member handles them with care, reporting to the Board if
necessary. Any unlawful acts are reported to the
appropriate authorities for further investigation.

During the selection or procurement processes involving
product or service providers, the Group continuously
reminds employees to avoid misusing authority or engaging
in situations that could compromise their decision-making
ability. The Group strictly prohibits bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering in any form. Internal audit staff
review internal controls to ensure compliance. The Group's
directors and employees previously underwent ISO 37001
Anti-bribery Management Systems online training, covering
international trends and requirements, and therefore no
training was arranged specifically for this reporting period.
There were no confirmed cases or public legal cases
involving bribery, extortion, fraud, or money laundering
during the reporting period.
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10.

]

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group actively engages
in community projects within the towns and cities where we
operate, aiming to enhance the lives of underprivileged
individuals and raise awareness about environmental protection.
Our doctors have been actively disseminating information on
infection control to the public through various platforms.
Leveraging the expertise of our specialists, we have created a
series of healthcare videos and presentations, which have been
shared on our Facebook page.

In the reporting period, the Group contributed over HK$11,000
to community service, primarily in the area of sports and
children education.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group is committed to staying updated on resource-efficient
technologies to continually enhance its environmental
performance. It will actively seek opportunities to expand its
capabilities and contribute to addressing global waste issues.
Alongside its environmental protection efforts, the Group will
consistently identify and collaborate with charitable partners to
participate in community activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

mazars

TO THE MEMBERS OF GREEN ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Green
Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 219, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
June 2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (the “CO").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B %A RE S

Mazars CPA LiMITED

PERIR me) anmsniamad
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T s AT s 155 18 R BRI 42 1

Tel Eifi: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {5 (852) 2810 0032

Email T info@mazars.hk

Website #4k: www.mazars.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter
ERETEHR

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

WK - b5 KR A E A

(Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements)
(HBLRH G EIFEHREZN E14)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment with carrying amounts of HK$5,331,000 (net
of accumulated impairment loss of HK$913,000) and
HK$10,084,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$1,244,000) which are used in the Group's waste
construction materials and processing services segment
and plastic recycling / metal scrap segment respectively.
RZZE_=ZF"A=+RH ' EXEBBEZYVE KF
REERE S % /5,331,000 (MK 25 R EEE
913,000/ 7£) K& 10,084,000% T (B R &1 A (B & 18
1,244,000 7T) ' D RIAR BEEEREEEN REERSE
DEAREREY, & BEERDE -

The carrying amounts of these property, plant and
equipment are subject to impairment assessments
annually or when there is an indication of impairment
or an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favorable change in the estimates used to determine
their recoverable amount. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, these non-current assets, being the waste
construction materials and processing services business and
the plastic recycling / metal scrap business in Germany,
were identified, as a cash generating unit (“CGU") (the
“Waste Construction Materials CGU"” and the “Plastic
Recycling CGU" respectively).

ZEME BMEARENEASRATFRERRETR
REITRER G - RN EEHE A RE S B EEt#H LR T
SBILREORERE - AT HRE ZSEEENERY
BE(EEENREERBEBSUREE B, € 8E
MER KB ARCELEM (DHIRZEBRNREE
SBEU | RIBRERRESEEEN]) -
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FAREFTER

REFZTHESREBERMANZEXZHE - RA
HAMRASEMBEBRERNEAR/EENS
HesEEREERMEFERES M B R
KREAEBRREETREN R TEHE
LEERREHEBNER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

RMNBFFNMEEBERESSHE

Our key procedures, among others, included:

BAMERRFAEFEPEE

Assessed the appropriateness of using fair value
less costs of disposal in estimating the recoverable
amount of the Waste Construction Materials CGU
and Plastic Recycling CGU;

FHEE A A FEENR LSRN AL 2 ERER
WeEEEMRER B S E S B A Y E

AuE B S A -
CRHEELAHE

Obtained the impairment assessments for the
Waste Construction Materials CGU and Plastic
Recycling CGU prepared by management and
discussed with those individuals who prepared the
calculation for an understanding of the basis and
key input data used in the calculation;
BEREREERAENBZEBHE EESBA RBY
EIWIR G EE B REN G TEEHAENA
BEM ATHAERERANEERBARE AR
b3

Reviewed the valuations from the management
and valuer and discussed with management and
the valuers to understand the valuation basis and
methodology used, and underlying assumptions;
HZHERERMGEMOMGE YHEERERMGE
R WTRAERANGEREERFEURE
RREK

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer,

AHEAEMNEE - e BB



KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter - continued
EREFSSE-&

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment — continued

WE - BEREEH R ETE—E

(Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements)
— continued

(HEEHEE B HLNE14)— &

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to
provide assistance in assessing the recoverable amounts
of the Waste Construction Materials CGU and Plastic
Recycling CGU which are determined based on the higher
of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use.
EEECEEREYEEGHEMBDTHEERENESE
EBEURBHEWHESESEVNATKESE  Ze8
BEAFEENREEXARTHABETNRREETE °

The management estimated the recoverable amounts of all
these CGUs based on their respective fair value less costs
of disposal. The management concluded that provision of
impairment loss of HK$348,000 is recognised in relation to
the property, plant and equipment of Waste Construction
Materials CGU for the year ended 30 June 2023.
EREECRBIIZEHSELBELUSENATEEN
BREERANGEETEAKESE EEERSLEHR  REBE
—E=FRNA=THILFE REEENRSELEN
R - B R s BE SRR (B 185 15 1 5348,000/8 T °

We have identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because of
their significance to the consolidated financial statements
and significant estimation and judgement involved in the
estimation of the recoverable amounts.

BMERYE  BERREHRETGE SERESSE
B DHRHEBGSVBREANEEN - M Bt A ikE
SRS K E A E RAE
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ARETEE-&

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter — continued

BEMNESHONEEBRETSEH-—&

Considered the relevance and reasonableness of
key assumptions and methods used, and checking
the relevance and accuracy of the source data
used;
ERTEBRILMAFENHEBEREGE S I
& BT A SR SRR A AR B 1 R R

Checked the relevance and accuracy of the quoted
prices for identical or similar assets in active
markets;
BEERT ST ERIBUEENRENER L
R AETE N

Checked with comparable data through internal or
external sources, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevancy of the input data used; and
3% 38 N BB X SRR SRR B0 AT b BB - MR R
BmEMMAEABBRNEREREANL R

Considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure

in respect of the impairment assessment.

TR ESEEAERENGEIENERERLRED
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2023 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the CO, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company assisted by the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe those matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 September 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Wai

Practising Certificate number: P05708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

el L O

Year ended 30 June 2023 & —T — =4

RNA=+TRHIEFE

2023 2022
—E-= —ZT=-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iorza FET FET
(Re-presented)
(EF2#)
Revenue WA 56 80,026 433,645
Other income H YA 7 1,419 1,087
Changes in inventories of finished goods K mIEEEH 348 (686)
Purchases of goods and consumables BmkEFEmuEKERE (49,124) (416,872)
Transportation costs e N (12,047) (1,398)
Staff costs 8 TR A 9 (17,065) (18,061)
Depreciation for property, plant and M- BEREENITE
equipment 14 (1,983) (2,037)
Depreciation for right-of-use assets CRAREENTE 20 (1,370) (1,486)
Net exchange losses M 5 B 18 )5 5E (105) (1,393)
Provision for impairment loss on property, %1% - BE &R EH
plant and equipment WA E RS 14 (348) (1,019)
Allowance for expected credit loss (“ECL")  ft F& Y 30 TH K 78 55
on other receivables ERBXR((HEHER
BX]) BB 29 (195) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HEK
equipment HER W= 14 1,007 =
Gain (Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERNBARMKE (BE) 32 6,360 (476)
Other operating expenses Hh & &R (11,636) (15,602)
Finance costs W%EER 8 (134) (92)
Loss before taxation BR T A0 B 18 9 (4,847) (24,390)
Taxation g 10 (382) (10)
Loss for the year from continuing AEERBFELSEEK
operations &8 (5,229) (24,400)
Discontinued operations: ERIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued AFEERADRILEEHE
operations HH 18 32(b) (4,827) (8,250)
Loss for the year rEEER (10,056) (32,650)
Other comprehensive (loss) income for AEEHM2H (i)
the year, net of tax Wz (FIBRHLIE)
Items that may be / are reclassified WH#EREEHFSHE
subsequently to profit or loss: BwmZHE -
— Reclassification of translation reserve —E’\Hj’é Bt /8 A A B
upon disposal of subsidiaries RiF@EFNSE = 469
— Exchange differences arising on —Tﬁ‘ ﬁ%%ﬂ‘%ﬁﬂ‘%#ﬁ
translation of financial statements REEZENREE
of foreign operations (272) (2,593)
Other comprehensive loss for the year AEEHMZHEEE (272) (2,124)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ANFEE2HEEBHAE (10,328) (34,774)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FezERER

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

2023 2022
—==-= — -
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FET
(Re-presented)
(E#Z#)
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to: LT A £ EB{EARFE
(B8 ER :
Owners of the Company KARHEE A
— continuing operations —BEREER (6,138) (22,781)
— discontinued operations —ERIEEEER (2,896) (4,950)
(9,034) (27,731)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 ) 1 4 2
— continuing operations — B EER 909 (1,619)
— discontinued operations —BRIFEEERS (1,931) (3,300)
(1,022) (4,919)
(10,056) (32,650)
Total comprehensive (loss) income for U TATEGEARFEEEM
the year attributable to: (B#E) EEH
Owners of the Company KRBRHEE A
— continuing operations —BEKEER (6,283) (25,357)
— discontinued operations —BRIEREER (2,896) (4,950)
(9,179) (30,307)
Non-controlling interests FE 22 Il 1 2
— continuing operations — B 782 (1,167)
— discontinued operations —BRIEREER (1,931) (3,300)
(1,149) (4,467)
(10,328) (34,774)
HK cents HK cents
Bl JE
Basic and diluted loss per share BREXREEEE
— continuing operations —RHEKEER 13 (0.54) (2.00)
— discontinued operations —BRIEEEES 13 (0.25) (0.44)
— total continuing operations and —RHELCEEB R
discontinued operations ERIEEEEBF AR (0.79) (2.44)

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23 105



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wa IR R R

At 30 June 2028 R—ZE—_=FNA=+H

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
Note HKS$'000 HK$°000
Kt F#ET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R 14 17,120 24,401
Intangible asset mEEE 15 - 78
Prepayments, deposits and other TENRIR - e REM
receivables & YR8 19 1,764 968
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 20 5,673 1,049
24,557 26,496
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 1,221 1,570
Trade receivables JEUNE SR 17 2,787 3,034
Loan and interest receivables FEUE R F B 18 2,165 =
Prepayments, deposits and other T FRIE -~ e REAM
receivables &Y B 19 5,108 6,930
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIE S 14,849 33,566
26,130 45,100
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 8RR 21 111 3,529
Accruals and other payables FEET & A N o FE A5 FRIE 22 6,039 18,403
Contract liabilities BHEE 23 - 4,502
Lease liabilities HEaRE 20 1,939 2,042
Tax payables FEfSHIIR 370 —
8,459 28,476
Net current assets RBEEZFE 17,671 16,624
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 42,228 43,120
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Lease liabilities HERRE 20 3,787 =
Net assets BEEFE 38,441 43,120
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRR X

At 30 June 2028 RZE—_=FNA=+H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it3 FAET FEIT
Equity B
Share capital N 24 113,631 113,631
Reserves & 25 (72,244) (63,065)
Equity attributable to owners of the NATHE AEGER
Company 41,387 50,566
Non-controlling interests FEE I 34 (2,946) (7,446)
Total equity AR 38,441 43,120

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 219 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
September 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lo Kam Wing, Jr
EERcrut
Director

EF

FI04AE219E NS AU RERENR T ==
FRAZ+NERESeHZRERETZE -

WHATEEREKES
Ho Wai Hung
1A 1 2
Director
EE

BERRMREEERAR

F R 2022/23
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

~ A AN
mEeERE

g &

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAERARR
Reserves
G
Non-
Share Share Contributed  Exchange  General Accumulated Total controlling Total
apitll  premium  surplus reserve reserve losses  reserves Total  interests equity
b2 1
Ra  RfRE EEER  ENBE  -BRE  ZHEE  ERAY aif BE  ER4E
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
fhr  TEr TR TRt FEr TEr fAr TEr T A
Note2d) — Mote256)  Mote 25)  (Mote 25c)  (Note 25(d)
(hsn)  (Wiose)  (Wansw)  (BEs0)  (Wiose)
At30 June 2021 WEZ-¥7A=TH 113,631 415,011 56,897 6,983 n (511,720 (32,758) 80,873 (2979 77,39
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - uBy @By @By @9 (2650
Other comprehensive (loss) B2 (58) &
income
Reclassfication of transiation reserve. M HEHB AT
upon disposal of subsidaries HERGEENAR - - - 469 - - 469 169 - 469
Echange diferences arsngon~—~~ BESSEBABER
translation of financial statements B ZERZE
of foreign operations - - - (3,045) - - (3,045) (3,045) 45 (2593)
Other comprehensive (loss) KEEAMRE
income for the year (F8) W& - - = (2576) - - Q570 576) 45 (0124
Total comprehensive loss AEERAFEAE
for the year = = = (2,576) = 21,731) (30,307) (30,307) (4.467) (34,774)
At30June 2022and 1)uly 202  W-ECZEXBZTH
R-2ZZFtA-R 113,631 415,011 56,897 4407 i (539,451) (63,065) 50,566 (7.446) 43120
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - (9,034) (9,034) (9,034) (1,022) (10,056
Other comprehensive loss Ef2EEE
Echange dffeences aisngon -~~~ AEENEBEBER
translation of financial tatements ~ EEZEREE
of foreign operations - - - (145) - - (145) (145) (127) (272)
Total comprehensive loss AEE2AFEATE
for the year - - - (145) - (9,034) (9.179) (9,179) (1,149) (10,328)
Transactions with owners: SEEANRS:
Changes in ownership interests #EEERRY
Disposal of non-whally owned fiEx2EHERT
subsidiaries (note 32(0) (W) - - - - - - - - 5,649 5,649
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=ERA=1H 113,631 415,011 56,897 4,262 n (548,485) (72,208) 41,387 (2,946) 38,441
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Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ EE: é AL E %

=FRNA=THIFE

2023 2022
—g== —F -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEXEK
Loss before taxation PR AT ES 1B
— continuing operations —FREEED (4,847) (24,390)
— discontinued operations —ERIEEEET (4,827) (8,250)
(9,674) (32,640)
Adjustments for: BT ESBEIEL AR
Interest income FLEMA (317) (413)
Interest expenses ib=N= R 136 107
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#H 78 100
Depreciation of property, plant and W - HEREHEN
equipment e 2,528 3,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENITE 1,504 1,753
Net exchange gains b 5 W 558 - (68)
Provision for impairment loss on property, #1% - BiE k&R EH
plant and equipment WA E R 348 1,019
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables FEUE 5 R
RHERBEXREE - 45
Allowance for ECL on other receivables H h g g R IE B
EHRERERREE 195 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BER
equipment HER WS (1,007) -
(Gain) Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENE QA
(W) BHE 32 (6,360) 476
Write-off of property, plant and M - BRE R
equipment il 58 - 3
Operating cash flows before EEESRBA2RKE
movements in working capital BERE (12,569) (26,007)
Changes in working capital: LEEEF
Inventories FE 6 (264)
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K 147 388
Loan receivable e E (2,000) =
Prepayments, deposits and TEROA - Hzi&
other receivables H b B U G T 1,888 3,879
Trade payables J%Hféf%,ﬁﬁ%’\ (2,654) 3,243
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E A FE S IR 3,224 8,178
Contract liabilities BHEE (4,475) 4,444
Cash used in operations RETHFANES (16,433) (6,139)
Income tax paid EIFTEH (12) (12)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAANRESFH (16,445) (6,151)
FERRMEEEGRART o Fi#2022/23
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

Year ended 30 June 2023 &

E_T_=FANA=tTHLFE

2023 2022
—g== —F -
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERES
Interest received =& ) 151 413
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B A% - HE & & B (34) (2,644)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from disposal of H &M B A & H)FIR &
subsidiaries O ) mA 32 (60) 2,670
Net cash from investing activities REZBMEBEESTE 57 439
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Interest paid EARHE (136) (107)
Repayment of principal amount of lease BEREAEEENEASE
liabilities (1,344) (775)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZBMARSFE 35(a) (1,480) (882)
Net decrease in cash and HeRESEEYRD
cash equivalents FE (17,868) (6,594)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EEEE B (849) (64)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning RBEHIN2RE K&
of the reporting period REEEY 33,566 40,224
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end RBEHWAZEER
of the reporting period, represented ReEEY B#BIT
by bank balances and cash EHEEE 14,849 33,566

Green Energy Group Limited

e Annual Report 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Green Energy Group Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the 2023 annual report of
the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33(a) to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
together with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group” hereinafter.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company’s parent is New Glory Business Corporation which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
parent is Marvel Express Limited which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

APPLICATION OF NEW / REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new / revised HKFRSs that are
relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 12

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW / REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for
proceeds received by an entity from selling items produced while
testing an item of property, plant or equipment before it is used
for its intended purpose. An entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss and measures the cost of those items applying the
measurement requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW / REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
The exception specifies that, for some types of liabilities and
contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead
refer to HKAS 37. The exception has been added to avoid an
unintended consequence of updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary relief from
accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development’s Pillar Two model
rules. The Amendments also introduce targeted disclosure
requirements to help investors understand an entity’s exposure
to income taxes arising from the rules.

The adoption of the amendments does not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle
HKFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of HKFRS 1 for a
subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of HKFRSs later
than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts HKFRSs later than
its parent and applies HKFRS 1.D16(a), then a subsidiary may
elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all
foreign operations at amounts included in the consolidated
financial statements of the parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle
— continued

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of
Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing
the “10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities —
in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently drafted,
Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash flows
for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby aligning the
fair value measurement requirements in HKAS 41 with those in
HKFRS 13.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 & ZE —

APPLICATION OF NEW / REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") — continued

Future changes in HKFRSs:

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") has issued the following new /
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year,
which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies !

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates '

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction '

Insurance Contracts '

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information '

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current 2

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants 2

Supplier Finance Arrangements ?

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS Lease Liability in a Sale and
16 Leaseback ?
Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new /
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact
on the results of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

(=)

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Green Energy Group Limited

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (the “CO"). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2022 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the new / revised HKFRSs disclosed in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
("HK$'000") unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

e Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses and
profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets in event of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair
value or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE

3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date
when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss. The carrying amount of the investments is
reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is
higher than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land,
including buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods and services, or for administrative purposes, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold land, including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative purposes,
over their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
and depreciated separately:

Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

20 - 50 years
3 - 10 years

Over the shorter of terms
of the leases and 5 year
5 years

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount. The Group’'s accounting policies on
impairment of non-financial assets are set out in “Impairment of
non-financial assets” under this note.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets with finite useful
lives on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"); (iii)
equity investment measured at FVOCI; or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued
Classification and measurement — continued

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period
following the change in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is
an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from
the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed for
classification.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(a) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,
derecognition or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade

receivables, loan and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables and bank balances.
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Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities at amortised cost include trade
payables, accruals and other payables. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless
the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost and contract assets to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance with
HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below,
at each reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance
for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if
the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items
— continued

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(a) past due information

(b) nature of instrument

(c) nature of collateral

(d) size and industry of debtors

(e) length of customer relationship

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial instrument.
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Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items
— continued

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(a) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group); or

(b) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items
— continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

e the debtor’'s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items
— continued

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

As detailed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
deposits and bank balances are determined to have low credit
risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items
— continued

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash
flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
The Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —
3. FEEHHE-E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method

(a)

(b)

Provision of money lending business

Interest income from money lending business is accrued
on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from financial assets

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of
credit-impaired financial assets.

RERMBHRRME

=FRNA=THIFE

ReEEY

REARSRERME  REZEND
EANBHRAENEERS  RFE
EREERDRARZEESRDILEA
(MBRRTESL) -

L PN
18 1 B R ] 3 02 1 58 A1) 7Y A

@) REHEMERE

KEREEBHONERALE K
BEAS FERERNRIZERLL
PIRERG - BERAN 2R E
BERBEMFEANGTRKES
WHRBIR TR RZEENIGER
BRF P [ 5 P 2 PR RO ) 2 o

(b) KAz #EENFE KA

TREENHEBRALERERF X
VRMERR o BL L 3RS BB A
HRAGENEREE  BERME
RREENHEEREEE mMueH
BERREzEMEEMS @ BR
) R PR A 8 55 A AN (BN BR 85 18 98
BEORIREEE) °

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23

129



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
,%/T\l:l

5 R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a
performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer
either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is capable
of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises in
the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or service
is distinct within the context of the contract).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
— continued

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when
(or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.
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3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
— continued

Timing of revenue recognition — continued

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the output method (i.e. based on
the direct measurements of the value to the customer of the
goods or services transferred to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract) to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because the method provides a faithful depiction of
the Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until such
time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is as
follows:

Continuing operations

(a) Trading of recyclable oil / biodiesel

Revenue from sales of recyclable oil is recognised at a point
in time when the recyclable oil are on board of the vessel,
being the time that the customer obtains control of the
goods.

(b) Trading of waste construction materials and plastic
recycling / metal scrap materials

Revenue from sales of waste construction materials and
plastic recycling / metal scrap materials is recognised at a
point in time when the materials are physically transferred
to the customer, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the materials.

(c) Provision of construction materials processing services and
plastic processing services

Revenue from construction materials and plastic processing
services is recognised over time. The duration of the
processing is generally very short, about 1 day.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
— continued

Nature of goods or services — continued

Discontinued operations

(d) Sales of healthcare products

Revenue from sales of medicine and test kit are recognised
at a point in time when the goods are physically transferred
to the customer, being at the point in time that the
customer obtains the control of the materials.

(e) Provision of healthcare services

Revenue from provision of body checkup services,
immunization services, general medical services is
recognised over time. The duration of those processes is
generally within a short time frame, i.e. 1 to 2 days.

Contract assets and liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract
is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Contract assets and liabilities — continued

For provision of healthcare services, it is common for the
Group to receive from the customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are provided (i.e. the
timing of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components, if
applicable, will be included in the contract liability and will be
expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is eligible for
capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
HK$.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit
or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
recognised in profit or loss except for those arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
gains or losses are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHER-#&

- continued

Foreign currency translation - continued I E &

The results and financial position of all the group entities that e ERMERREREE 2 ANEE T
have a functional currency different from the presentation BRa ([BINERE]) 2B R
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the ABBETINEBEBRER2HE

presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented, are translated at the closing rate at the end of
the reporting period.

e Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate.

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

e On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest is no longer equity-accounted for, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Foreign currency translation - continued

e On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in the separate component
of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation and are not reclassified to profit or
loss.

e On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange
differences recognised in the separate component of equity
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase, where
applicable, and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, is
calculated using first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is
any indication that its property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, right-of-use assets and investments in subsidiaries or
to include all significant assets of the Group within the scope
of HKAS 36 may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets
that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the
years necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account / recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
from lessees and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Leases — continued

As lessee — continued

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of
the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term
or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group
will exercise a purchase option — in which case depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset)
as follows:

Over the term of lease
1.5 -6 years

Leasehold lands
Leased properties

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of
the contract.
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Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Leases — continued

As lessee — continued

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the
incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Leases — continued

As lessee — continued

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a) the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate over
the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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3.

Green Energy Group Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Leases — continued

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease
or an operating lease at the inception date of the lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the
contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on a relative stand-alone price basis.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution retirement plan

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred. The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administrated fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby the employees rendered services in exchange for
shares or rights over shares. The cost of such transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a reserve within equity.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the award
is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-market
vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior periods is charged / credited to profit or loss
for the year of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
reserve within equity.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

3. TEEHBE-#&

UROBERNIARS
UERGENK S

AEENEE (BRES) RUBRN A
AN T AWEFH - B8
25 18 e A AR 75 R B 7 SR A A #E ) o £
BEETHNRXZKNAEE TERETAR
MWRFEEFE RETRENBERED
RFEEERSEEKA - I AEEE
RN -

PAtE a8 A5 E B X 5 A AN & [ AR 8 B 42
s B 00 - FE R A 1T R MR B H 1 A
R EZRBAREEESEBOENTE
8 F DA G - R AR FE T 5 5R B 15
H(EERAD - NEBHA HEHR
REBNBREREETER - ARTH
RN R 2 FEENEFMABOR
BREFENBRATG G X H#EES
N EEETHRERE -

EREEER B R HRORNEIHA
HARBETT B - S AT B IR B RE R
MBEKERERTERE -

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23

143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

N

Year ended 30 June 20283 EE—_T — =
3.

Green Energy Group Limited

(=)

5 R MY A

FRA=TRHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the
year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed.
It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill;
or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Related parties — continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and included:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM") for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes,
from the rest of the Group. It represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION AND
JUDGEMENTS - continued

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed by the Directors for
possible impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss when
events or changes in operating environment indicate that the
carrying amounts of such assets may not be fully recoverable, or
the impairment loss recognised in prior periods may no longer
exist or may have decreased.

In assessing whether impairment loss or reversal of impairment
loss should be made for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, the management have performed impairment
assessment on the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment for the waste construction materials and processing
services business (the “Waste Construction Materials CGU")
and the plastic recycling / metal scrap business (the “Plastic
Recycling CGU”) in Germany with reference to valuations
performed by independent professional valuers on the freehold
lands, buildings and equipment within the two cash generating
units.

In assessing the estimated recoverable amounts of the Waste
Construction Materials CGU and the Plastic Recycling CGU,
independent professional valuers have applied valuation
techniques including certain assumptions and estimates of
market condition. Detailed inputs and estimates applied for
valuation disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors reviewed the valuations performed by
the independent professional valuers and used their estimation
to determine whether the valuation techniques applied are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Group. Changes in
assumptions could result in changes in estimated recoverable
amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. An
impairment loss is provided if the estimated recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount or vice versa.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —
4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION AND
JUDGEMENTS - continued

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on ageing as
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision rates are based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes as the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired, if any, are assessed for
ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group’s trade receivables and its ECL
are disclosed in notes 17 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investments in subsidiaries
has suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
and follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting policies.
The assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the selection
of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the adjustments of
their carrying amounts.
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FRA=TRHILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In .a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the Group is currently
organised into the following reportable segments:

Continuing reportable segments:

Waste construction
materials and
processing services

Renewable energy

Trading of waste construction materials
and provision of construction
materials processing services

Trading and processing of recyclable
oil / biodiesel

Trading of plastic recycling / metal scrap
materials and provision of plastic
processing services

Provision and arrangement of credit
financing

Plastic recycling /
metal scrap

Money lending

Discontinued reportable segment:

Provision of healthcare services and
sales of healthcare products

Healthcare

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments. Reportable segment
results exclude interest income and corporate income and
expenses from the Group’s profit / loss before taxation.
Corporate income and expenses are income and expenses
incurred by corporate headquarters which are not allocated
to the operating segments. Each of the operating segments is
managed separately as the resources requirement of each of
them is different.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of corporate
assets, including bank balances and cash, certain other
receivables and other assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of operating segments as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities include trade payables, accruals and other
payables and other liabilities directly attributable to the business
activities of operating segments, and exclude corporate liabilities
and provision for income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 30 June 2023

5. 2RER —&
DEWMARFEE

BE-E-_=FAXAZ=Z1THLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing  Renewable recycling / Money
services energy  metal scrap lending Sub-total  Healthcare Total
BERHE EREY/
RERE  UELER tREN i It BERRE ait
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Revenue WA 4,098 73,116 2,646 166 80,026 2,460 82,486
Results
Segment results A%E 274 5,294 (4,928) (70) 570 (4,827) (4,257)

Unallocated other corporate AP B EMHAE
expenses 53

Unallocated other income AABEMMA

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 11 E[1E 2 & #IME
(note 32) (Hit32)

Loss before taxation RAAER

BERRMREEERAR

(13,19)
1,419

6,360

(9,674)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE —E-—=F A=+ HILFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results — continued

For the year ended 30 June 2022

DEER &

DEMBARFE &
BE-_T-_—FAA=THLFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BRI
REBEXH Bexk
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing Renewable recycling / Money
services energy metal scrap lending Sub-total Healthcare
BERHR EREh/
RERE  ABLHR SERH i NGt BERR At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT FAT FAT
Revenue B 5,240 424,047 4,158 - 433,645 7,615 441,260
Results E
Segment results ki 3,263 3937 (10,194) (266) (3,260) (8,250) (11,510)
Unallocated other corporate kDB EMHAE
£Xpenses 5 (21.741)
Unallocated other income AABEMMA 1,087
Loss on disposal of subsidlaries  (HEMBAFAEE (476)
Loss before taxation RERER (32,640)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and segment liabilities

At 30 June 2023

5. 7HER &

=
1l

THEERSHBEE
R-ZE-_=%xA=1+H

Continuing operations

BESEEH
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing Renewable recycling / Money
services energy  metal scrap lending Total
BEEREK EREN,/
RERE  UBLHER cRER B ait
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TEr TEr TEr TéEr
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 9,542 13,544 12,952 2,278 38,316
Unallocated bank balances and cash RO B RITEHB KR E 10,028
Unallocated other corporate assets APEEMBEEE 2,343
Consolidated total assets RRBEE 50,687
Liabilities 2E
Segment liabilities AR 1,871 4,922 369 - 7,162
Unallocated other corporate liabilities AP EEMAEE B 5,084
Consolidated total liabilities SAEBAER 12,246
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RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

— continued

At 30 June 2022

DEBE R — &
THEERDHEE &

RZEZ=FA=+H

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B
RERERH ez
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing Renewable recycling / Money
services energy metal scrap lending Sub-total Healthcare Total
BERHE #REY/
IR MR BELH SEEH M Nt BERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT A1 A1 AT A1
Assets BE
Segment assets AREE 8,274 21238 17303 198 47,013 2,888 49,901
Unallocated bank balances AABRTEBR
and cash Be 20,538
Unallocated other corporate ~~ AAEEM L E
assets BE 1,157
Consolidated total assets GAlEE 71,59
Liabilties 8
Segment liabltes AHAE 1420 7201 3,855 = 12,49 9,562 2,08
Unallocated other corporate A AEREM L E
liablities gt 6,418
Consolidated total liabilities ~ HALERE 28,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5.

Other segment information

For the year ended 30 June 2023

DEER &

HihnHER
BE-E-_=FAXAZ=Z1THLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
gL
S HEES LS
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing  Renewable recycling/ Money
services energy  metal scrap lending Sub-total  Healthcare  Unallocated Total
RERNR 28Ah/
RERE  UBLER SRER it it BRRR 98 ait
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HkS'000
7Ar FAr FAr FAr FEr FAr 7Ar TAr
Additons to property, 0% BERRE
plant and equipment AR - - 1 - 1 - ] [}
Additions to right-of-use assets PREEERE - 4120 - - 4120 - 2,008 6,128
Amortisaton of ntangible aset BlEEZY - - - 78 78 - - 78
Depreciation of property, plantand ~~ #1% * B R ek
equipment il 103 439 1428 2 191 545 11 258
Depreciation of rightof-use assets ~ FEEEENNE 486 £l - - 829 134 541 1,504
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ££91% + HER
equipment BRIl - - 1,007 - 1,007 - - 1,007
Gain on disposal of subsidiares HENBATRE - - - - - - 6,360 6,360
Provision for impairment loss UEN e
on property, plantand equipment ~ §ERE 38 - - - 348 - - 3
Allowance for ECL on other EREBSBNRRER
receiables R ] - - 19 - 195 - - 19

BERRMREEERAR

o F 3R 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. 2RER —&
Other segment information - continued HibpER -
For the year ended 30 June 2022 BHE ZERA=ZTRLEEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BAL
SRR s
Waste
construction
materials and Plastic
processing Renewable recycling/
services energy  metalscrap  Money lending Sub-total Heatthcare  Unallocated Total
RERHR #HEk/
RERE  WEERER SEEH i gt BERR AR aif
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TAT FAT FAT AT FAT FAL AT FAL
Additions to property, plant and ER e
equipment AE 40 219 175 - 2409 10 25 2644
Additions to right-of-use assets REEERE 1,001 - - - 1,001 - 1,002 2,003
Amortisaton of ntangible aset Bl EEZY - - - 100 100 - - 100
Depreciation of property, plantand 413 ~ BE R &S
equipment il 13 9% 1,800 5 20 1574 10 3411
Depreciation of rightof- use assets ~ FEEEENNE 913 - - - 913 27 513 1753
(Reversal) Provision for impairment 91~ B R R ek
loss on property, plant and AEEE(RE)RE
equipment, net 35 (1,889) - 2908 - 1,019 - - 1,019
Loss on disposal o subsidiaries HENBRANER 35 - 11 - 476 - - 476
Allowance for ECL on trade EHBAESNRSER
feceivables BRERE - - - - - £ - &5
Write-0ff of property, plant and 0% KR RREN
equipment i - - - - - - 3 3
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and Germany
(2022: Hong Kong, Germany and Japan). The Group’s revenue
from customers by geographical markets, determined based on
the location of customers, and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location, determined based on the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

5. 2RER —&

tEER

AEEZEBURBTEREE (ZF
—oF B EARAL)  KEE
BiwEmE (REPZMENREE) 3
DZREFFBRA KRB E (3%
BEMGENET) D 2 RBEESR

location of the assets, are detailed below: & 5B
Revenue Non-current assets
LN FRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EB-=F —T-—F —EB-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK3$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FET
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(E#T5#R) (E#5#)
Continuing operations BEQEER
Hong Kong B8 3,757 337,427 7,390 7,542
Europe BUM 41,151 12,921 17,167 17,008
Malaysia HRAE 35,118 42,563 - =
Singapore N - 39,887 = =
Japan BA - 847 - -
80,026 433,645 24,557 24,550
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Hong Kong B 2,460 7,615 = 1,946
82,486 441,260 24,557 26,496

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMWE

Year ended 30 June 2023 BE T -_=F A NA=+HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. THRAER &
Information about major customers FRXEREFZEH
Revenue from major customers who have individually KEFEEF (REXAEERBZRAZ
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group 10% A £) WABENT :

are disclosed as follows:

Continuing operations Segment Geographical location 2023 2022
FERQEXRY 7 &P & —BC-=F ke
HK$000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
Customer A Renewable energy Malaysia 28,616 N/A*
BEPA Al A RER BRA R NE M
Customer B Renewable energy Europe 25,041 N/A*
B B AR BRM N3 R *
Customer C Renewable energy Hong Kong N/A* 159,338
BPC A BARR EE T8 A
Customer D Renewable energy Hong Kong N/A* 111,403
ZFD AIBARR B @A
Customer E Renewable energy Hong Kong N/A* 66,690
EFE Al B4 RER B TER*
*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the * MHERAREBEEGOREEAKATE
total revenue of the Group for the relevant year. #B10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

6. REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue derived from the principal activities of the Group is REAFERN SEASBEEZEZXEKAK
disaggregated and recognised during the year as follows: ADERERILT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(B2 #)
Continuing operations BEREEYR
Revenue from contracts with customers &8 KM EE R E155
within HKFRS 15 HEAEFSHRA
Recognised at a point in time: TER —IF B R -
Trading of recyclable oil / biodiesel AEREEREYEHRE S 73,116 424,247
Trading of waste construction materials EEEEE S 3,039 3,984
Trading of plastic recycling / metal scrap BERWKBR
materials SEER 64 844
76,219 429,075
Recognised over time: ER —EBIF [ A HERR -
Provision of construction materials REEEYR IR
processing services AR 75 1,059 1,256
Provision of plastic processing services TR IR R I8 AR 7S 2,582 3,314
3,641 4,570
79,860 433,645
Interest income calculated using the ERERFEETEN
effective interest method FIE WA
Loan interest income ERA B A 166 =
Total revenue from continuing operations R B &K & E KR AU A 80,026 433,645
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
Revenue from contracts with customers FEMEREEAFE155REER
within HKFRS 15 BEEEHWA
Recognised at a point in time: TER — IR
Sales of healthcare products $HE BERIZE M 261 4,107
Recognised over time: ER—EB IR AR -
Provision of clinical health services and R FTiERRT &
laboratory diagnostic services ERED RS 2,199 3,508
Total revenue from discontinued operations & E 2 48 |F 4L & 5 r) 40 A 2,460 7,615
82,486 441,260

The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 is

based on fixed price.

BEVHHRELAUEISREEATFLA
KA AR E B BELEE

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRERME
Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
7. OTHER INCOME H g A
2023 2022
—_E-= =
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(E#5#)
Continuing operations BEEEXEL
Interest income B U A 151 413
Government subsidies (note) BISE&E B (HaE) 288 24
Rental income e WA 58 62
Sundry income I A 922 588
1,419 1,087
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
Government subsidies (note) BT & B (Fat) 64 206
Sundry income FEIEIA 10 72
74 278
1,493 1,365

Note: The Group received government subsidies of HK$352,000 (2022:
HK$152,000) and HKS$Nil (2022: HK$78,000) in respect of the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund and
Seasonal Influenza Vaccination School Outreach of the HKSAR

Government respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEH
2023 2022
=== T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(EF5#H)
Continuing operations BEEEXEL

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABENFERAX 134 92

Discontinued operations ERIELEEER
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFERZ 2 15
136 107

BERRMREEERAR

F R 2022/23
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RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

9. BRBIATE 1B

2023 2022
—E== —E -
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(E#2#)
This is stated after charging: KHBR T 3E B £ 51 8%
Continuing operations FHEREEY
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BEES
remuneration): <)
— Salaries and allowances — B N2 R B 16,000 16,851
— Retirement benefit —RIKEF
— defined contribution scheme — ERBHEREE 1,065 1,210
17,065 18,061
Auditor’s remuneration A G
— the Company . Y/NE]| 1,100 950
— Subsidiaries — KB A A 135 144
Amortisation of intangible asset mVEEHE 78 100
Legal and professional fee EERBEXER 2,011 6,466
Repair and maintenance HE RIRE 1,116 1,461
Lease charges on short-term leases NHEECHEER 2,418 1,336
Utilities expenses NAZERZ 1,930 2,429
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #1% - Bi/= & =% 1 &9 il £ - 3
Discontinued operations ERIELEEER
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BEES
remuneration): )
— Salaries and allowances — 37 B R Bl 2,556 4,080
— Retirement benefit —RIREF
— defined contribution scheme — TR GTE 74 112
2,630 4,192
Legal and professional fee FENEEER 1,017 3,161
Repair and maintenance BIERRE 79 121
Lease charges on short-term leases RHHECHEER 1,062 494
Allowance for ECL on trade B E S EFNIEREHAEL
receivables B - 45
Utilities expenses NEE i3 43 46
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —

=FRNA=THIFE

for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group has no
assessable profits from Hong Kong or incurs a loss for taxation
purpose for the year ended 30 June 2022.

PRC EIT in respect of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
is calculated at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. No provision
for the PRC EIT has been made as the Group incurred a loss
for taxation purpose for the year ended 30 June 2023 or its
estimated assessable profits for the years were wholly absorbed
by unrelieved tax losses brought forward from previous years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Germany is calculated at the rate of 30% (2022: 30%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. No
provision for income tax of Germany has been made as the
Group incurred a loss for taxation purpose for the years ended
30 June 2023 and 2022 or its estimated assessable profits for
the years were wholly absorbed by unrelieved tax losses brought
forward from previous years.

10. TAXATION 10. Bi1H
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Current tax: g HATIA ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFEH 380 -
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") FEARLRE((HE])
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") EMEST([EERER])
— Under-provision in prior years —UARFERETR 2 =
Japan Corporate Inhabitant Taxes HAEARERER = 10
382 10
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) BERE fRETR$¢f1$u+Fﬁu%TRf'J/F3
of the estimated assessable profits for the year. No provision #16.5% (ZF =& - 16.5%) it &

EHEAZ’R%.EA@i—?——E/\H_+
BIEFEIEREBENERTENBX
EEBBER AT EHHEFENEG
T o

AEEEBEPREAESEEBRNFRH
EMSHBERITEN 2B LEH
B RBAFEE M ERAE &R
25% (ZF=Z4F - 25% ) M EFTE -
RBEE-_ZE-_=F~A=1+BHBILFE
A BRASERT S S EAEEE
S ERFE ARG EEHADEE AT
FEAENRD AN IEEEZSEH -
B AT R R B TS R B o

AEBERREKEEBOMSHER
REBRITED  REREBAER  ER
RNEZEEEATANERIE30% (=F
::i'%%)%ﬁ#%” cREE
—=HERZFE-_FXAZ= +E¢
iEW HRASERBREM S EEE
B RERNFE ARG BB AR
NEFEAENADATABEZ2EY
5 A I E AR B P S B

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T —_=F NA=1+HILFE
10. TAXATION - continued

11.

10. Bi1E — &

Reconciliation of tax expenses: THIBE AR
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Re-presented)
(EF5#)
Loss before taxation BrAEATEE (4,847) (24,390)
Income tax at applicable tax rate applicable %745 B8 Al # & i /A £i &
to the jurisdictions concerned B 2R (1,281) (4,853)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TEMR 2 o & 465 2,229
Tax effect of non-taxable income / revenue ®EFUAWE 2 FiIEH £ (1,264) (22)
Unrecognised tax losses RIER < TIEE1E 3,101 3,576
Unrecognised temporary differences RERCERER 50 1
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FIFR It BT AR TSR A9 R A5
recognised & (518) (722)
Utilisation of temporary differences I FR 1t B AR FERR A L
previously not recognised R (2) (209)
Under-provision in prior year NEFEERETR 2 =
Others HAh (171) 10
Tax expenses for the year REEHEER 382 10

The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates
prevailing in the territories in which the group entities operate.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$158,465,000 (2022: HK$150,073,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profit against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant group entities.
The unused tax losses have no expiry date under current tax
legislation.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

NREZERTHRAHTFHUR &
SEHEMNEBAL

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

(a) EERITHAEHM

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’

remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors

ENXENTEESZME TIEN

were as follows: T
Retirement
benefit -
Salaries defined
and  contribution
Note Fees allowances scheme Total
RIKER
FER - EBMHEN
Hiit ik =13 & CH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHT FHT
Year ended 30 June BE-Z2-=f%
2023 AAZTHLEE
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Wong Sai Hung A IELAE (@) - 283 - 283
Mr. Luo Xian Ping BETLAE - 600 18 618
Mr. Ho Wai Hung B2 5 & - 360 18 378
Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp BERRELE - a 74+ (b) - 350 1 361
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wa BHERE 240 - - 240
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang ik (c) 360 = = 360
Mr. Lau Ka Wing ARKRESE () 189 - - 189
789 1,593 47 2,429
Year ended 30 June BE-_ZE__fF
2022 AAZTHLEEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wong Sai Hung R - 600 - 600
Mr. Luo Xian Ping BBVEE - 600 18 618
Mr. Ho Wai Hung e 5 £ - 360 18 378
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITEES
directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wa BRETE 240 - - 240
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang ied pies 360 - - 360
Mr. Lau Ka Wing ARERAE 240 - - 240
840 1,560 36 2,436

BERERMREEERAR o

F R 2022/23
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ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES - Continued

(a)

(b)

Directors’ remuneration — continued
Notes:

(@) Mr. Wong Sai Hung resigned on 1 December 2022.

(b)  Mr. Lo Kam Wing, Jp was appointed with effect from 1 December
2022.

() Mr. Sze Cheung Pang passed away on 4 July 2023.

(d)  Mr. Lau Ka Wing resigned on 14 April 2023.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under a director or the senior
management waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2022: HK$Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or
the chief executives as inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2022: HK$Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

No directors of the Company included in the five highest
paid individuals for the year (2022: two), details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining five (2022: three) individuals during the year are
as follows:

NR.EERTHRAZTM AR &
= BEEA

(a)

(b)

+-#&

EERITHRARTH &
Kt -

(a) =HEHEAEB-_T-_—_F+=-A—
H AR EHT -

(b) ELBREE xFw+rB_T__F
+-—A—HREZRF-

(© mMmEBEER-_ZT-_=F+AMA
B -

(d) BlR&c+ea-_E-_=F1WA+mHM
HRE(E -

EXFIROARITESHM I ARE
BEARA RAKEEHEO RS

EXPIREBIIERITE S FHB D
BEREEEARRESTHNRY -

RAFERN BESBESNSR
EIEE B i EE ok R B AR EE 1A 3
ML (ZFE=——F : &) -

WAEER  ARELRBREE
£ 5077 B4 B D B S 5 M A
S5 RS 2 1 o f k2 R 1
MEHBREOME (ZF= =% :
FHT) °

EEHMONAEEAL
REFERN EFHOERAL

BREZ(ZE=—F : {E) RN
RIES  MPMFMFRE EX - F
ERABRTAG(ZFE==—F: =F%)
ATHEMAOT

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Salaries and allowances e KERL 4,122 4,186
Retirement benefit RRAER]

— defined contribution scheme — ERE KT 54 36

4,176 4,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NR.EERTHARFHUR R
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BN EBALT &
EMPLOYEES - Continued
(b) Five highest paid individuals - continued (b) EEFHFHMNEBALT &

The emoluments of the above five (2022: three) highest AR (ZCF——F:  =F) &
paid individuals fell within the following bands: e AT Z2HBMNFLATEHE

Number of individuals

A
2023 2022
—Z== —F_—
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000/ 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/5 7T - 1
5 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any five highest RAFEERN @ NEBWEBEFE
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining A= & Ea A B AL INBEskER
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the EMBARKERZMSHAERKER
year (2022: HK$Nil). UHMEmMINERENMe (=F
ZZFFET) -
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ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
13.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.5RE1E

ARBHEAAREERERREEER
TIRBATBUREE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Loss for the year attributable to owners TEEREREEMA
of the Company for the purpose of basic ~ RNEEAQF|HEAE AENL
loss per share izagi]
— continuing operations —RBREER (6,138) (22,781)
— discontinued operations —BERIEREET (2,896) (4,950)
(9,034) (27,731)
2023 2022
—EZ=F —_F-—
Weighted average number of FTEEREREIERA
ordinary shares in issue for basic loss BT BARME T HE
per share calculation (“000) (F4z) 1,136,308 1,136,308

Diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share
as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence for
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

14.9% - BERRXE

Furniture,
fixtures
Freehold Leasehold and Motor
lands  Buildings improvement equipment vehicles Total
B
KAERE HE EEXE
T BF VI EES K& AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
cosT KA
At 1 July 2021 WZZE-—%+A—H 17,778 4,935 1,859 28,330 643 53,545
Exchange realignment AR (1,788) (549) - (1,964) (73) (4,374)
Additions NE - - 112 338 2,194 2,644
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (5,227) = = (127) (26) (5,380)
Write-off i - - - (584) = (584)
At30June2022and 1July 2022  RZZEZ=FXA=1A
RZE-_%+A—H 10,763 4,386 1,971 25,993 2,738 45,851
Exchange realignment ERW 449 169 - 602 21 1,241
Additions hE - - - 34 - 34
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR = = (1,961) (2,449) = (4,410)
Disposals & - - - (7,800) - (7,800)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=EXE=1H 11,212 4,555 10 16,380 2,759 34,916
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND &t & R A B2
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 July 2021 W-ZE-—%+A—H 4912 985 843 4,339 467 21,546
Exchange realignment I 5 R (431) (117) = (1,439) (18) (2,005)
Depreciation ik - 135 1,067 2,230 179 3,611
Impairment losses HEER ) - = 1,027 = 1,019
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (2,059) - - (30) (51) (2,140)
Write-off fii & - - - (581) = (581)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 R=E-—F/~A=t+A
K=E-—%+A—H 2,414 1,003 1,910 15,546 577 21,450
Exchange realignment [Rrﬂ” 74 43 - 495 20 632
Depreciation it - 127 60 1,844 497 2,528
Reallocation of accounts ERENNE (790) S = 790 = =
Impairment losses HEER 348 - - - - 348
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBLA = = (1,960) (1,230) = (3,190)
Disposals & - - - (3.972) - (3.972)
At 30 June 2023 R=BZ=£XA=1H 2,046 1173 10 13,473 1,094 17,79
NET CARRYING AMOUNT EHFE
At 30 June 2023 R-BZ=£XR=1H 9,166 3,382 - 2,907 1,665 17,120
At 30 June 2022 RZE-—&,A=1H 8,349 3,383 61 10,447 2,161 24,401

The Group’s freehold lands and buildings are situated outside

Hong Kong.

BB

REBEZKAEBELHRBFHURE

BRI o

BRI EBRBR AR

o F 3R 2022/23



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

N

(=)

5 R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Green Energy Group Limited

- continued

Impairment assessment

Waste Construction Materials CGU

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is
any indication that the impairment loss previously recognised
in respect of the property, plant and equipment in the Waste
Construction Materials CGU may be reduced. The Directors
performed impairment assessment on the recoverable amount
of the Waste Construction Materials CGU which is the higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

At the end of the reporting period, the estimation of
recoverable amount of the Waste Construction Materials
CGU was determined based on the fair values of the freehold
lands, buildings and equipment within the Waste Construction
Materials CGU with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer engaged by the Group.

The fair values of the freehold lands and buildings were
determined using direct comparison approach which were
arrived by comparison based on transaction prices for similar
lands and buildings in similar locations, condition and usage.
The market unit rate per square metre is considered as the
unobservable key input of the valuation. The fair values of the
equipment were determined using comparison approach which
were arrived by comparison based on quoted prices for identical
or similar equipment in active markets. Discount rates of 34%
(2022: 30%) were applied to the estimated fair value of the
equipment for difference in conditions of the comparable which
are considered as the unobservable key input of the valuation.

The fair value measurement in the impairment assessment is
categorised in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- continued

Impairment assessment — continued

Waste Construction Materials CGU — continued

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values less costs of
disposal of the freehold lands, buildings and equipment within
the Waste Construction Materials CGU were estimated to be
in sum of approximately HK$5,331,000 which were lower than
their carrying values of HK$5,679,000 (net of accumulated
impairment losses of HK$533,000). Management concluded
that there is a provision of impairment loss of HK$348,000 in
respect of the property, plant and equipment within the Waste
Construction Materials CGU for the year ended 30 June 2023
(2022: reversal of impairment losses of HK$1,889,000). The
provision for impairment loss (2022: reversal of provision for
impairment loss) was due to the decreasing (2022: increasing)
trend of market value of the land in the waste construction
material and waste processing service during the year.

As at 30 June 2023, the accumulated impairment losses
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment within
the Waste Construction Materials CGU was amounted to
HK$913,000 (2022: HK$533,000).

Sensitivity analysis

As at 30 June 2023, if the market unit rate per square metre
had been increased / decreased by 5% (2022: 5%) from the
management’s estimates, the carrying amount of these property,
plant and equipment within the Waste Construction Material
CGU would be reduced / increased by HK$200,000 (2022:
HK$200,000) respectively.

14.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% BERRE &
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- continued

Impairment assessment — continued

Plastic Recycling CGU

In view of continuing operating loss in the Plastic Recycling
CGU for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Directors
performed impairment assessment on the recoverable amount
of the Plastic Recycling CGU which is the higher of the fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.

At the end of the reporting period, the estimation of the
recoverable amount of the Plastic Recycling CGU was determined
based on the fair values of the freehold lands, buildings and
equipment within the Plastic Recycling CGU with reference to
a valuation performed by an independent professional valuer
engaged by the Group.

The fair values of the freehold lands were determined using the
direct comparison approach which were arrived by comparison
based on transaction prices for similar lands in similar locations,
conditions and usage. The market unit rate per square metre is
considered as the unobservable key input of the valuation. The
fair values of the buildings were determined using the income
approach. Yield of rental income of 6.5% (2022: 6.5%) was
applied to the estimated fair value of the buildings for difference
in quality and location of the comparable, which is considered
as the unobservable key input of the valuation. The fair values
of the equipment were determined using comparison approach
which is arrived by comparison based on quoted prices for
identical or similar equipment in active markets. Discount rates
of 3% - 60% (2022: 3% - 60%) were applied to the estimated
fair value of the equipment for difference in conditions of the
comparable which are considered as the unobservable key input
of the valuation.

The fair value measurement in the impairment assessment is
categorised in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- continued

Impairment assessment — continued

Plastic Recycling CGU — continued

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values less costs of
disposal of the freehold lands, buildings and equipment within
the Plastic Recycling CGU were estimated to be no material
difference with their carrying values of HK$10,084,000 (net of
accumulated impairment losses of HK$1,244,000). Management
concluded that there is no provision nor reversal of impairment
loss (2022: provision of impairment loss of HK$1,244,000) in
respect of property, plant and equipment within Plastic Recycling
CGU for the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: provision of
the impairment was due to the flag of the market rent of the
buildings).

At the end of the reporting period, the accumulated
impairment losses recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment within the Plastic Recycling CGU was amounted to
HK$1,244,000 (2022: HK$1,244,000).

Sensitivity analysis

As at 30 June 2023, if the yield of rental income had been
increased / decreased by 1.5% (2022: 1.5%) from the
management’s estimates, the carrying amount of these property,
plant and equipment within the Plastic Recycling CGU would be
reduced / increased by HK$1,000,000 (2022: HK$1,000,000)
respectively.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% BERRE &

- continued

Impairment assessment — continued

Japan Plastic Recycling CGU — Disposed in Year ended
30 June 2023

In view of the continuous operating losses together with the
travel restriction and lockdown to prevent the pandemic of
COVID-19 in Japan in 2021 which adversely affected the plastic
recycling business development in Japan, the management of
the Group decided to cease of its business in April 2022. The
subsidiary operated the plastic recycling business in Japan was
de-registered in June 2022. As at 30 June 2022, the net carrying
amount of the Japan Plastic Recycling CGU was amounted
HK$1,362,000, which mainly comprised the two plastic recycling
machines with carrying amount of HK$4,316,000 (net of
accumulated impairment losses of HK$1,664,000).

In September 2022, the Group entered into a settlement
agreement with a related party to transfer one machine with
carrying amount of HK$2,893,000 to offset the amount due of
USD450,000 (equivalent to HK$3,510,000), resulting in a gain
on disposal of HK$617,000 recognised in profit or loss during
the year.

In June 2023, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose of another machine
with carrying amount of HK$936,000 at a consideration of
USD170,000 (equivalent to HK$1,326,000), resulting in a gain
on disposal of HK$390,000 recognised in profit or loss during
the year.

As a result, an aggregate gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment of HK$1,007,000 in the Japan Plastic Recycling CGU
in Japan have been recognised during the year.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23

B FFfh — &

H AR # e Y B 2 E AL B — R
2 EFE _—aFNA=FHIFF
EAHE

EERFELNRLCEBEBRUARBARRZ
T —F AFEH20198 R E SRR IE
AR AT M B AR A R 02 BR il R =4 - ¥9 B
ARBREBKRERBRELETIZE

Bt AEEEREEER ST =-__F@
AREFIEEER - FHAKEEBRE
H&%%%E’JWE/ATEEA:Z:fi/\H
B RN -_—FxA=1+H"
BABEEWIESEESBUHERTF
%8 /451,362,0008 70 £ = E & FE W S0
22K B Y i - H BR T £ %8 /24,316,000
77T (F0B R et E B 181,664,000/ JT
&) o

RZZE__FNA AEEHEHBEEAL
SIS B s ABEE PR HER
T & %8 52,893,000/ JT » LA K 35 FE 1
% %8450,0003 7T (8 %5 523,510,000/
TC)  ABRAFE AE B N ER

& 1 28617,00058 7T °

RZE_=FA AEEEFE=FH
FIVEERE WHER —3F#ss &
BRTHE £ %8 /5936,00008 7T - BHAKEA
170,000% 7t (F#55 541,326,00078 1)
ABRAFEANEBREAERL S WS
390,0005 7T °

EHit  RAFEER - BABEREWIRE
EXBNEEBRALEDE BERR
EEI S 42511,007,00058 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE
15. INTANGIBLE ASSET 15. B EE
License
hEER
HK$°000
FEIT
Cost 2%
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, R-EBE-_—FtH—H -=ZT=Z
1 July 2022 and ANRA=+H - B+ A—HRK
30 June 2023 —E-=HFXHA=1H 500
Accumulated amortisation E-5E £
At 1 July 2021 N—_E-——F+H—H 322
Charge for the year rEEER 100
At 30 June 2022 and RZE_—_FAA=+HEK
1 July 2022 T4+ AF—H 422
Charge for the year REZER 78
At 30 June 2023 R-ZEBE-Z=FXHA=1+H 500
Net carrying amount FREREE
At 30 June 2023 R-ZBEZ=FXA=1+H -
At 30 June 2022 R-ZZBE-_—FA=1+H 78

Intangible asset that arose from the acquisition of Noble Ample
Limited (“NAL") represented the money lending license held
under the Money Lenders Ordinance, Chapter 163, Law of Hong
Kong. The management assessed the useful life of the license is
5 years, which is amortised over 5 years using the straight-line

method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRERME
Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
16.INVENTORIES 16. 7 &
2023 2022
—E=F —EF-—
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Plastic materials L 25 39
Recyclable oil A] fE3R B3 H 1,194 1,051
Waste construction materials EERER 2 3
Vaccines and medicines B KB - 477
1,221 1,570
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BEIRE B R
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables EUE 5 BR K 2,787 3,079
Less: Allowance for ECL B TEHA{S B - (45)
2,787 3,034
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued

The Group allows a credit period within 30 days (2022: within
30 days) to its customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the ageing analysis of trade receivables (net allowance of ECL)
by invoice date is as follows:

17.

EWE 5 R —&

AEERTHEZFIBRN(ZE-_—F
0A4)MEESR RBREPR BIK
Bo&ER (HMEBHRERBRER &
RO (RBEZBHZIHR) MO ¢

2023 2022

—E-= —F-—
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
0 — 90 days 0£90H 2,770 3,008
91 - 180 days 91£180H 15 23
Over 180 days #838180H 2 3
2,787 3,034

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade receivables is included in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EREASEBERE S RATAERNGE
BERREEXBENENSERVEETE
AR FE29A ©

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 18. EWERKFE
2023 2022
—EC=HE —E -
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loan and interest receivables W —RMEBAGEZ
from a former non-controlling AIFEIE AR AR R E K
shareholder of a subsidiary &8 2,165 -

During the year, the Group grant a loan of HK$2,000,000 to the
then non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, Green Strength
(International) Limited (“GSI”). The loan is secured by fourteen
motor vehicles, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 10% per
annum and repayable in September 2023 (2022: n/a). Upon the
maturity of the loan, the Group agreed to extend the loan and
the corresponding interest receivables for one year. At the end
of the reporting period, the market value of the collateral of the
loan was approximately HK$4,800,000 (2022: n/a).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for loan and interest receivables is included in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

D.JEANRE - ZEREMENR

RECEIVABLES MIE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
itz3 FET FET
Prepayments TEf IR 466 406
Trade deposits paid ENESike 28(b) 2,808 2,808
Due from a former non-controlling FEU— K B A 71E HIRIF
shareholder of a subsidiary, GSI AT IEFE AR A% 3R 589 -
Due from a non-controlling FEW— R B A R E IRIR
shareholder of a subsidiary, GSI FE 5= A% IS ER FR0E 28(b) - 3,360
Consideration receivable for HLEEWE - WE
disposal of property, N F AR
plant and equipment RIE 1,131 =
Other deposits and receivables HAith iz & M EW IR 1,878 1,324
6,872 7,898
Less: Non-current portion B FEREIER (1,764) (968)
Current portion mENER S 5,108 6,930
Note: Haz -

All prepayments, deposits paid and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year except for deposits, for
security and rental of HK$1,764,000 (2022: HK$968,000), which is expected
to be recovered more than one year.

Included in other deposits and receivables was a deposit of EUR104,363
(equivalent to HK$901,000) (2022: n/a) to guarantee the operation of the
Group’s subsidiary in Germany, which is held by a director of the Group'’s
subsidiary, Mr. Yip Wai Leung, Jerry, on behalf of the Group.

The consideration receivable shall be recovered within 3 months after the
delivery of the machine.

The amounts due from a former non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
GSI, and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, GSI, are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment term.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and loss allowance
for other receivables are included in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23

FrEEMNRE EHehEMERZREBEBER —
FRAKOSKEREAL  EEREKEAES
1,764,000 7T (= ZF = = 4F : 968,000/ T) &
N HIEHE N BB —FR KD -

Hthike RERRBEBREAERASEZBEMN
BARIMKEEBNAE104,363B T (FHER
901,000 70) (ZE==4F : T#/F)  EEAX
SEMHBARESEERLERRAEEFS -

EURRBERRBERXME=EARKE -
FEM — KB R BE NIRRT IR —
KB A R E SRR IR ARR SR A E AR

8 R E EE R -

ERASEREMERFAME RN EERR
MR BN E R SNRE P IRRMTE297 -



20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

20. EFHEEERBEESR

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Reconciliation of carrying amount RESEHE
At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R HIAT) 1,049 890
Additions NE 6,128 2,003
Derecognition upon deregistration of RiEE KB RARRKLLE
a subsidiary TR - (91)
Depreciation e (1,504) (1,753)
At the end of the reporting period RIEHR 5,673 1,049
Cost XA 8,493 4,240
Accumulated depreciation REHinE (2,820) (3,191)
Net carrying amount BRIEFRE 5,673 1,049

BERRMREEERAR

F R 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES - continued

The Group as lessee

The Group leased office premises, workshops and warehouses in
Hong Kong for its daily operations for a term of 1.5 to 6 years
(2022: 2 years) with fixed lease payments. The leases of the
premises impose a restriction that, unless approval is obtained
from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the
Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying assets. In addition, the Group is also required to keep
those premises in a good state of repair and return the premises
in their original condition at the end of the leases.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

20 EREEERHERE &

AEEEREHEA

AEBERBHERLRE IHEMEE
BRBEZE:  HEAE1556F (= F
T 2F) HEeETE WEMET
Me—TERR & BRIFESEEALE T
AEAREEETHASEFER  BX
EETNEHEXEIFHEBEE - LN
REB MW ERRFIZEMEERENRRLT
mgEERE  YEREHRERERRA

AREERARFEERTIE

2023 2022
—E_-= ==
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Short-term leases payments recognised in RIS ERNEEHEE
profit or loss (DB 3,480 1,830
Total cash outflow for leases HEMRS R AR 4,960 3,672

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to
HK$325,000 (2022: HK$2,624,000) for short-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES - continued

The Group as lessor

The Group leases certain area of its properties to a third party
under operating leases, which have remaining non-cancellable
lease term of 7 years (2022: 8 years). The lease does not include
any purchase, termination and extension options.

These properties are exposed to residual value risk. The lease
contract, as a result, impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the Group as lessor, the leased properties can
only be used by the lessee. The lessee is also required to keep
the properties in a good state of repair and return the properties
in their original condition at the end of the lease.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum rent receivable under non-cancellable operating lease
which fall due as follows:

20 EREEERHEEREBE &

AEBERSEAA

AEERELEHERAXLYERS
RE=7 AR T AAHEEENR
tHE(ZFE-—F:1F) HETEBHE
BE RIEMERER-

ZEMEMERRKEERR - Hit - 8
EAMER—BRS - KRIFEESAKE
(ERHEA) WitE  BRIZEHEED
FEAHAHEAER - ABATRARE
ZEMFERNRIFOGEMREE  AHER
ERmRBERRARENYE -

REEMF - AEETHECLHEE
B ok 2 85 6 L 7L 00 48 0 B A R
mF :

2023 2022

—E-= —ZF-=
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year R—FR 57 55
In the second to fifth years E_EZERF 228 220
Over five years 38 F 128 178
413 453

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES - continued

0. EFHEEERBEEEE &

Lease liabilities HEERE
Commitments and present value of lease liabilities: HEBGEEABNLIRE:
2023 2022
—EC-=4F —E-CF
Present value Present value
Minimum  of minimum Minimum of minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BREHEE REHEE REHE ®EHE
R AREHRE E§: NHEERE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: JER5RIE
Within one year R—FR 2,195 1,939 2,061 2,042
In the second to fifth E_FEFERF
years inclusive BEERME 3,796 3,390 = =
Over five years HBAF 402 397 - -
6,393 5,726 2,061 2,042
Less: future finance charges & : KK EFH (667) - (19) =
Total lease liabilities HEBGBR 5,726 5,726 2,042 2,042
Current portion RENE 5 1,939 2,042
Non-current portion FERB A 3,787 =
5,726 2,042
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

21. TRADE PAYABLES 1. EHEZBRX
2023 2022
=== =z
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FHET
Trade payables to FERTE SRR
— Third parties —F=5 11 785
— Related parties —BEAL 28(b) = 2,744
111 3,529
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented FET B 5 BR RN 3R 5 HARE 48 R I 2 AR i
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: AT (RBEZAMFAE)NAT :
2023 2022
—Z:== =z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
0 - 90 days 0&90H 111 3,040
Over 90 days FR#E90H - 489
111 3,529
The credit period on purchases of goods is within 30 days (2022: REERNEENR30BA(ZF-C
within 30 days). The Group monitors and maintains a level of F:30HA) AEBERTHEFTEH
cash equivalents sufficient to ensure that all payables are within KRR EEEY - AHIRATE FE TR
the credit time frame. B RNMEEEA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

22. Bt E AR EMEN KA

2023 2022
—E== —E -

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

i3 FET FHET

Accruals fest &R 2,326 5,999
Payable for acquisition of property, MEEME  BRE KR
plant and equipment to a related BN —REEALTH

party RIE 28(b) = 3,510

Due to related parties JESRAE A 508 28(b) 2,933 6,820
Due to a former non-controlling FERTHIB R T E IRIR

shareholder of a subsidiary, B FEIZE AR

GSl IRER 715 -

Short-term lease payables FEfT A2 HAfE & - 1,539

Other payables H qth fE T 5RI8 65 535

6,039 18,403

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment to
a related party and amounts due to related parties and a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, GSI are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment term.

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

IWEEME BEERBEN—REE
AT BOFRIAIA K FE A B E A £ K — Y
BRBAENRRAFZERRRFARE
£H 2 HEEREEEDRR -

23. 886
RAERER  BEBHEHE LI ES

BRERE—FEBRMAELEE) DT

2023 2022

—E_-= —_E-—
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 July w+A—H 4,502 58
Recognised as revenue RAWA (4,502) (58)
Receipt of advances U EY 24 3R = 4,502
At 30 June MRANB=+H - 4,502

All the performance obligations that were unsatisfied as at
30 June 2022 represented the total transaction price of the
contracts that had an original expected duration of one year or
less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, B A
2023 2022
—EB=H T
Number Number of
of shares HK$°000 shares HK$°000
B EE FET M E B FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 S RE{E0.108T 2
each EER
Authorised: EERA
At the beginning and RREEY R
the end of the reporting HEHK
period 4,000,000,000 400,000 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARRA
At the beginning and REE Y R
the end of the reporting HEHK
period 1,136,308,176 113,631 1,136,308,176 113,631
25. RESERVES 25. f# &

(a) Share premium
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the funds in the

share premium account of the Company may be applied:

(i) in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to shareholders of the Company as fully paid
bonus shares;

(i) in writing off
—  the preliminary expenses of the Company; or
— the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or

debentures of the Company; or

(iii) in providing for the premiums payable on redemption
of any shares or of any debentures of the Company.

(a) B0 im &
REBRE-NAN—FRRE K
REBHBERNES AR :

() MRARFEGIERSMTAF
BHETFAAFAREZF
BT

(ii) P LA

- ARBKRILAREHRFE
ZEBR Bk

- ARFFETEMRMDHK
B 2B MA BT
ZRERBE T Z2HE K

(i) {ERE @ AR R M K
BEERMEEZ#EE -

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE
25. RESERVES - continued

(b)

()

(d)

Green Energy Group Limited

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the remaining balance of
the aggregate amount of credit arising from the capital
reduction and the share premium cancellation after
credit transfer to accumulated losses pursuant to the
implementation of restructuring proposal on 27 April 2004
and to a resolution passed at a special general meeting on
1 December 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, a subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC is required to transfer 10% of the
profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserves fund until
the fund balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to the funds must be made before distributing
dividends to shareholders.

e Annual Report 2022/23

25. #E— &

(b)

()

(d)

BERBR

EQBBREREN _TTWNFMA
“t+tBEER2EARZZE  ARR
BR-_FT=F+-_A—BEMRAZ
FRIBRAES LBBZREER
RIL RGBS % o S AR 17 ik 18 2 HE PR 48
BHRERERGTBIER IR -

BE 7 7 18

EXFEERRESINRBE 2B
BREEZHEELZRE - BN
BERBEANGA M FHRRMES
ZEETREERE -

—Rf#E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

26. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

On 27 May 2016, the shareholders of the Company passed a
resolution to approve for the termination of the Company’s
share option scheme adopted in 2006 (the “Old Share Option
Scheme"”) and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”), which is an equity-settled share
option scheme. The adoption of the Share Option Scheme will
not in any event affect the terms of the grant of the outstanding
options that has already been granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme and those outstanding options shall continue to
be valid and subject to the provisions of the Old Share Option
Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, which is valid for a period of
ten years, the board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in the Company
to eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”) who include
(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an equity
interest; (ii) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any
customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(v) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) any
adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or classes of
participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.

26. LR 0 RE# 2 K

RZZB—A"ERA=+tB  ARARKR
RBBREBR HEREARFTIR-ZF
TRFERABRER S ([ BB REST
B) - WERAHT B ARt 8 (1 8 IR AR
Bl BRr-—ENEREE 2 BREST
g) HKMBREFIEISHERE
EBBES SR T M ERTTENERE
MR T IRFBEREATE  ZEHKT
EEEEREEER L X ERRETS
Y fER ST ARBR

BREISERASERFEZSHE
AR E B - DUBE BN i 5 A
SEEHZERR HASAEHER
NEBEGEBRES  URBSIHAKREAR
BEZANER-

BREASCARBMAE TS MAEL
FEIT  ARFEEZEERARERNEE
w2EE((GEKRSRE)ETAR
BARRIRMD BEE  aBERERRE:
(VARFE - EEFAMBRARKAANEE
EAXRERARFERNDER ZEAER
(REBER) CEMNEES (BR2Bk
R BREEMRTES  EIBEHE
HITEE) (AR aE - HEMRMMELRQ
AREMIREER ZEMERTESR (2
BB IFNTES) 5 (AT ETAAK
BRAREMKREER ERNEWHIR
BHER : (ASBEEAKE QAL
ETHREERCEMNEET  WALAEH
ERAIKE AR KEMBREE BRI
7 B REAM MR 2 EREARL
B (vVIAKEEMMKE 2R KA
BREBERZEMBRR (B HEHLAKH
EAXERRSEMEEERMETLZ
EREZRZEMAL ViDERRASE
B {EE K E R RIHERREEBEME
HBHEXEBERIFEEBZAL (EX
AT HEM) KB : R(vii)EBAE

EBUNHREMEELEMEAEEZ
HRMERFLERSARFELERZ
EE A2 B E AR S HER -

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBREME

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE
26. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS - continued

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30% of
the share capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of passing of the relevant resolution adopting the
Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who or whose associate is the proposed
grantee of the share option). In addition, for granting of
share options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, which would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period up to the date of such grant representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregated value based on the closing prices of the Company
shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000,
such further grant of share options are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, and the share options in
respect of which the offer was so accepted will be deemed to
have been granted on the date of the offer. The acceptance
of the share options is subject to payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Directors, save that such period shall not be more than ten years
from the date of the offer of the share options, subject to the
provisions for early termination as set out in the Share Option
Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their
absolute discretion, there is no requirement of a minimum
period for which an option must be held before an option can
be exercised. In addition, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Green Energy Group Limited e Annual Report 2022/23
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —
26.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS - continued

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to receive
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options have been granted since the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme and no share options under the
Share Option Scheme was outstanding at 30 June 2023 and 30
June 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme,
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme"”),
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees.

Both of the employees’ and the Group’'s contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant income,
with the mandatory cap of HK$30,000.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The subsidiaries established in Germany are required to make
contributions to the local defined contribution scheme on a
monthly basis pursuant to the local laws and regulations.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group made contributions
to the retirement benefit schemes of HK$1,139,000 (2022:
HK$1,322,000). There were no forfeited contributions available
for offset against existing contributions during the year and
prior period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE
28. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosure elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions and
balances with related parties:

(a) Transactions with related parties

28. FAEANELRF

BAGAMBRRMEAREEIN - K
SEEFEALBEATRG KRR :

(a) BEAELXRZ

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Dr(Cr) Dr(Cr)
BEH(BR) EH (E7)
(i) Non-controlling shareholder of (i) BB R A& RRIELER
a subsidiary, GSI R (H=—F=——F
(Period from 1 July 2022 to +tA—HEZ-_ZFE_-_=4F
11 April 2023) A +—HAR)
- Sale of goods —HE MW (3,592) =
— Purchase of goods — BB 7 o 10,541 422,808
— Purchase rebate —REEE - 6,190
- Shipping fee expenses —EEBRX 923 1,398
- Management fee paid —BEfEES - 1,100
— Freight cost recharge — B E AN W 6,790 =
— Lease of equipment —RBHE 1,080 =
— Loan interest income — BB WA (122) -
(i) Company controlled by (i) B—XHE A A A IEE HI
a family member of M EZRFEAMBZ
Chou Pin Juo, the main K BEK B 15 6 5
shareholder of a non-controlling NG
interests of a subsidiary
— Repair and maintenance fee paid —BEN#ERREER - 275
— Consideration for disposal of —HEME BEK
property, plant and equipment REORE (3.510) =

(iii) In March 2023, the Group disposed of 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Skylimit Venture
Limited (“Skylimit”), to a company controlled by
Yip Wai Leung, Jerry, a director of subsidiaries at a
consideration of US$1 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7.8), resulting in a gain on disposal of
HK$1,334,000 recognised in profit or loss. Details
of which has been set out in note 32(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(i) RZZE_=F=R AKEUET
(HBERK7.8ET) KR E KK E A A
Skylimit Venture Limited ([ Skylimit|) &)
PEHBRELHE FHBARZESEERE
HE) AR S I ES1,334,00008 TR R
mAER - BB D ENGE MR
=T aE32@0) ©

(iv) In June 2023, the Group disposed of 60% equity
interest in subsidiaries, Health Plus Medical Group
Limited (“"HPMG") and its subsidiaries (“HP Group”),
and assignment of loan and other receivables from
HP Group of HK$3,447,000 to a non-controlling
shareholder of HPMG at a consideration of HK$2,
resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$5,026,000
recognised in profit or loss. Details of which has been
set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

vy RZE_=F"A XEBLL2ETHR
BB ARRAEEEEERA R ([FE
BEBE|)MNENBAR ((EEBESE
B ) M60%MKE URKREREEES
B 59 & 5% M H b & Uk 5k 183,447,000 7T
EETRAEBEEN —RIEEBRRE &
& I 255,026,000 TR IBe P ER - B
BAFIEERRNGE B HRENE32(0) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended

28. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
- continued

(b) Balances with related parties

RERMBHRRME

30June 2023 B ZE—E-_=F A=1THIFE
2. FAEANTLR G &

(b) BAE A L& ER

2023 2022
—g== —eo=
Note HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
Hi iz FET FET
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
&hH (BFR) &h(8A)
(i) Non-controlling shareholder of a iy MBRREIRRIE
subsidiary, GSI ERRAR R
- Loan and interest receivables —EREREFE 18 = =
— Other receivable — H A RIR 19 - 3,360
— Trade deposits paid —BHEHES 19 - 2,808
- Trade payable —ERNE SRR 21 = (1,346)
— Shipping fee payable -ENES 21 = (1,398)
— Other payable —H b ERFRIE 22 - =
(i) Yeung So Lai ,a deemed substantial (i) H=E - WRAKQAIE
shareholder of the Company TERR
— Other payable —HAEMTIE 22 S (5,750)
(i) Yip Wai Leung, Jerry, (i) EER WEQF
a director of subsidiaries 2
— Other payable —H M ERKIE 22 (2,933) (447)
- Director fee payable -EHEZHSE 22 - (623)
(iv)  Company controlled by a family (iv) B—RINBRARHK
member of Chou Pin Juo, the main FEHIERERNFERR
shareholder of a non-controlling [ fn 58 2 R BERK B 12 Il /9
interests of a subsidiary NG|
— Payable for acquisition of -REEVE BER
property, plant and equipment R R R 22 - (3,510)

(c)

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Members of key management personnel of the Group
whose remuneration is set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

O FRBMEEERERAZ
1

AEEBFBEREBRE 2 HHIER
AV IEmARMTE12 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. T H
Categories of financial instruments SR T AEER
2023 2022
—_E-= —F-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Financial assets at amortised costs DEERATENESREE
— Trade receivables —EINE SR 2,787 3,034
— Loan and interest receivables —EWERRFE 2,165 =
— Deposits and other receivables — e R E M EWFIE 3,598 4,562
— Bank balances and cash —RITERNES 14,849 33,566
23,399 41,162

Financial liabilities at amortised cost DEBERATENSREE
— Trade payables — R E SRR 111 3,529
— Accruals and other payables — st BR M A ENFRIE 6,039 16,892
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 5,726 2,042
11,876 22,463

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables, bank balance and cash, trade payables, accruals
and other payables and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments mainly
include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Directors
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Germany. The functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries are either HK$, United States dollars (“US$")
or Euro ("EUR"). The Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from fluctuations on foreign currencies, primarily from those
bank balances denominated in, Renminbi (“"RMB"), US$ and
EUR, against the respective functional currency of the respective
Group entities. Currently the Group does not have foreign
currency hedging policy but the management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities and intra-group balances denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
translated into HK$ at the end of the reporting date. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency risk
exposure is not significant as most of the transactions and
financial assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in
the functional currencies of the respective entities. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis has been presented on the currency risk.

29. ¢t TH &

BHERBEEARREEX-&

™ 45 b
EXmLE

ERAREICEXEHEH ST
AZRAVEBEIAREERERBH
B REBEEREEREBELER
o RRAREWNBRBZINEER S
B Er(TEx ) BT ([&x]) -
AEBEMINEHAREREERNSY
ZOREBRBMEEZEERAR - £
ERFREARBE (AR TR
TUIRTT &S % © ANSR[E B Al 3L &SNS
KR BERERESRINERR I
KR HEEE BE R EAINEEE -

BB E S 47

AEBABRBYEEREUINEEE
MEMEELRSBRABAREBANGER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBREME

Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.

The Group has no significant cash flow interest-rate risk as
there are no borrowings which bear floating interest rates. The
Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge potential
fluctuations in interest rates. No sensitivity analysis is presented
as the Directors considered the Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk is not material.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and other receivables and bank
balances included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk, which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties. The Group
manages the credit risk by setting up a team responsible for
the determination of credit terms, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debt. In addition, the Group review the
recoverable amount of each financial asset at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. Furthermore, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade receivables individually or based on provision matrix. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

To manage the risk arising from other receivables and deposits
paid, the Group only transacts with reputable parties that
have no default history and have a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The credit
risk on other receivables and deposits paid are limited. The
management has assessed that the expected credit losses for

other receivables and rental deposits paid are not significant.

The credit risk on liquid funds of bank deposits is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

and authorised banks in the PRC.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal credit
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=FENA=tHILEE
29. ¢t TH &

BHERBEEARREEX-&

FERRE-&

REREMBRFARENIZERMES
Rk AEBEREYEZOCENE
RBENAINERHABTEANR

ERERBHNEBRIATETRS -
EtEERERENZENEERRE

PR o %ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬂfﬁlﬁlmlﬁ&ﬂ
NEASReENBEHRERBEITK -

ﬁﬁh_'ﬁa')ww@éqéz ;ff Aﬁﬁﬁ A
REFTHEBEREENRRELSTSE
BT R 2 RIT AR A B R A ERTT o

AEENABEERRFREFERENA
TR

rating Description Other financial assets Trade receivables
AERIE AR it HttEREE W E 5 R
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
not have any past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
ERR XHHFHROEREL Y EEMAHTA 12 ARHBEREX BEFEHES
EREX-KAERRME
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
since initial recognition through information - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
TFhE HAREKNEHSIINEERET - B REFEHREDERE REFEHED
RE - EERRDEEEEM K-AERRE EREX-AERRNE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
B RRBETEELRERAE REFEHEBERE RAEFEHED
K—IERRE ERBLX-ERRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
54 FEBNMEBARGRENNBRE B AR 3B AR

MAKEREFIEN R ZYE

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

29. 2R TEH-—&

BERREZEERBEK-&

FERR-®

TRAMAEESBEENEERBK
0 ZEFLREERETRHEREX

S ¢
Gross carrying amount
REAZE

Financial assets Internal credit rating 12-months or lifetime ECL 2023 2022
ETREE WS BRI NREARBEFEDELBEABL —EZ=F —EoCF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables (note)  Low risk Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 2,787 3,034

FEWE 5 B (M) i BEFERERERERX

- NERRE

Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired - 45

Eite REFEDHERERELR

—ERRE
2,787 3,079
Deposits and other Low risk 12-month ECL
receivables

me REMRNTR Ve 12 EHEREX 3,598 4,562
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 195 -

Eiie EEFEMERERER

—{=RRE

3,793 4,562

Note:  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except
for debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by
using a provision matrix grouped by customer portfolio and past due

status.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Credit risk — continued

(a) Trade receivables

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its operation with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following tables provide information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed based on provision matrix as at 30 June 2023
and 2022 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). At the
end of the reporting period, debtors with credit-impaired
with gross carrying amounts of HK$Nil (2022: HK$45,000)

29. ¢t TH &
BRREEEEREE -
EERKR-E
(@) MEWESHE

%ﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁm—%

 NEEE BT ARRER KA S

Hﬂ“%%%ﬂﬁ%}fﬂ’]ﬁ@ FZEE
FAEARARBRER KEXFEFPR
BRA KRS B 2 ISR IR RO BE

He TRIREHER=ZZF-_=ZFK_F
——HFRNAZ=ZtHEHEKRES
R EERRHNER  ETIRERE
flﬁitﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁig%(ﬂi{m i1
B) M E BT o N E R
MEREAEAS AL (ZF-_—F:

were assessed individually. 45,000 7T) MERBEEBHBAR
BRI R AR o
2023 2022
—E-=F “E-CF
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance loss rate amount  allowance
B B
BAE KHAE BRER BAZE FHAE BEEE
HK$’000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
% FEn FE % FAT FAT
Current B - 643 - = 2,935 =
110 90 days past due BH1E90H - 2,127 - = 73 =
Over 90 days past due A ERRB90 A - 17 - - 71 45
2,787 - 3,079 45

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effect. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

BB

B BAREDREBEEBARREE
FAP 9 LA T 805 FT 1S 38 A0 R 5T

I BB B T S R E) BRI A 3K
’“ﬁﬂﬂ—fﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘lﬁf iEﬁEﬂ
EX-EEEGTHRERNAR
LME%EE@%EEW/\#HHE%%H
EREEH
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Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

29. ¢ TH &

BERREZEERBEK-&

Credit risk - continued EERE &
(a) Trade receivables — continued (a) EWE BRI —E
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRETHERE ZERIERNE
allowances that has been recognised for trade receivables. BREHEE -
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
EEFEDBEHERAAXKX
(S AREE)
2023 2022
—E-=H —Eo %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R Ei %) 45 1,531
Increase in loss allowance B 1R R BIE N - 45
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR (45) =
Write-off s = (1,531)
At the end of the reporting period R EHR - 45
Concentration risk B ST

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
concentration of credit risk of 59% (2022: 82%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the Groups’ three
largest customers.

Loan and interest receivables

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group grants loans only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. Also, the
Group has other monitoring procedures to ensure that

follow-up action is promptly taken to recover overdue
debts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 100% (2022: n/a) of total
loan receivable was due from the Group’s largest borrower.
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Year ended 30 June 20283 HE T —_=F A=+ HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 29. €T E &

BERREZEERBE -&

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

FERR-®
(b) EREFRFE—E

Credit risk — continued

(b) Loan and interest receivables — continued

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience for the borrowers and the financial
position of the counterparties by reference to, among
others, management or audited accounts of corporate
borrowers and available press information, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of
default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. There was no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.

The Group has established a loan credit risk classification
system and performs credit risk management based on loan
classification in one of three categories of internal credit
rating. The information about the exposure to credit risk
and ECL for loan and interest receivables is summarised
below.

EAFTRAEABRIUREEEE
Rl B VA FERE S B EREE N
UhEeMEE~RBEERABER -
FREEERERIBRANELE
BRERBEARBARRSHF TN
BHERR - Eh2E(RHEHE) A
AERANEEREEZERE LR
ARMHEEN  UREBATAE
MATEMEERARRZEF K
EITENBRBLEMRETHE
Ut % SemEERENREX -
UREZBATHENEBR - KA
FEA  HeIRMBIELHNEAR

AEBERBRIERERARD R
HE - XREBEABERTSZHER
DRER=ZBZ— ETERERE
2 - BREKRERRABNERR
Bl O K FEHE BB R B Bttt
W e
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Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

(b) Loan and interest receivables — continued

At 30 June 2023

Gross carrying

29. 2R TEH-—&

BHEREEEERER-&

EERK &
(b) EWREZRFE 4
R-B-=Fx~A=+1+H

Loss Net carrying

Internal credit rating amount ECL allowance amount
AR 1= AR IREAE FBEHEAEX BiERE BR T F 4R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Performing (Note i) 2,165 12-month - 2,165
BAH (i iti) 1218 A
Underperforming (Note ii) - Lifetime - -
& 49 R A= (B atii) BEAFEHR
Not performing (Note iii) - Lifetime - -
B (K itiin) BEFEH
2,165 - 2,165
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Performing (Normal Credit Quality) refers to the loans that have
not had a significant increase in credit risk and ECL in the next 12

months will be recognised;

(i) Underperforming (Significant Increase in Credit Risk) refers to the
loans that have had a significant increase in credit risk and for

which the lifetime ECL will be recognised;

(iii)  Not performing (Credit-impaired) refers to the loans that have
objective evidence of impairment and for which the lifetime ECL

will be recognised.
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29. ¢t TH &

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies - continued

Credit risk - continued

(b) Loan and interest receivables — continued

(c)

Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables (net of loss
allowance) prepared based on contractual due date is as
follows:

BEEREERE

RERMBHRRME

=FRNA=THIFE

ENBK &

FERR-&
(b) BUREIRFE—E

R 2 A

BUREREFE (NEEBEERG)
RIBAHZH B RR AR ER D70
T

2023 2022
—E-= —ZT-—
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Not yet past due i 7K 180 £ 2,165 =
At the end of the reporting period RS HAR 2,165 =

At the end of the reporting period, no loss allowance was
recognised on loan and interest receivables (2022: n/a).

At the end of the reporting, the market value of the
collateral of the loan was approximately HK$4,800,000
(2022: n/a).

Deposits and other receivables

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual
credit loss experience on the debtors, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of
default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. During the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022, no loss allowance in respect of deposits and
other receivables were made.

Concentration risk

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk as 54% (2022: 92%) of the Group's deposits
and other receivables was due from 1 creditor and 1 debtor
(2022: 1 creditor and 1 debtor).

(c)
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EITEMNERBLCERRETHAE
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Year ended 30 June 2028 HE T —_=F A=+ HILFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

(d) Consideration receivable for disposal of property, plant and
equipment

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial assets are credit-impaired,
the Group has taken into account the historical actual
credit loss experience, financial information and adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to the
counterparties and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well
as the loss upon default in each case. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or methodology made during
the year.

After considering the above factors, the management
assesses the consideration receivable for disposal of a
machine had a significant increase in credit risk during the
year due to the deterioration of financial position of the
counterparty and life-time ECL will be recognised.
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Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

(d) Consideration receivable for disposal of property, plant and
equipment — continued

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL
for consideration receivable using a provision matrix is
summarised below:

As at 30 June 2023

29. 2R TEH-—&

BERREZEERBEK-&

FERR-®

(d)

HEYE  BE KRGS EKR

ERRRERENEBEREIRENE
P R\B e O e FEEAE B RV E B
gt

R-ZBZ=HXA=1H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
FHE AR AR A BiERE ERREE
HK$000 HK$°000
% FET FET
Not past due i A 780 B 14.7% 1,326 195 No #&

The Group does not hold any collateral over consideration
receivable as at 30 June 2023. The Group recognised a
loss allowance on consideration receivable of HK$195,000
(2022: n/a) during the year with reference to the market
value of the machine.

(e) Bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings and
reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(e)

RZZE_=FXA=1+RH £&H
Y ERERREFHERNERR
RAFERN 2ERBNMIHE
B AEEEREKRRERBER
BEH51950008 L (ZF-—F : 1
A -

RITAERR

nBEL EERRBER  ARY
ADEAERTEESTREENR
ZIRITARBERIFHRTT
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Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies - continued

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables and accruals and other payables and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s objective is
to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and committed
lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Directors monitor
and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

29.

SRIAE-&
BEREREERERBE-&

REE S E B

mBETRBR D ABAEETERITH
URMBREHEMERMEENTAEN
M BREEENRBNER - AKE
RENENEZRFAREFERLE
B RIBIA MR ER R E SRR
MBETER AKEENBERERS
EKFHRRBDEEMNDEABNETHE
NmEHERRRPRDHESTE -

ARBDECRBREREME  EFHRS
CEeFEMETESR IRELATHE
BRARZKY  BAKEEERHKE
EMHERSRENDTE -

TRINMAEEHHRERERSHRY
AW RHR - ZRBEYBRE
EARERREKRERKENNREZAN
ARFHRACREMBRE  EEBEKEHA
BN EF B

More than Total
Within 1 year but contractual
1 year or on less than undiscounted Carrying
demand 5years Over 5 years cashflow amounts
—FHUR —ENE BNREIRE
REX EBREUT IENE BREeRELE REEHE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 30 June 2023 R-B-=F
~B=1H
Trade payables ENESER m - - m m
Accruals and other payables  FEztZH K&
A iR TR 6,039 - - 6,039 6,039
Lease liabilities MEEE 2,195 3,796 402 6,393 5,726
8,345 3,796 402 12,543 11,876
At 30 June 2022 i ——
~NAZ=TH
Trade payables BB ZER 3,529 = = 3,529 3,529
Accruals and other payables  [EEtER K&
At TR 16,892 - - 16,892 16,892
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,061 - - 2,061 2,042
22,482 - - 22,482 22,463
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Year ended 30 June 2023 # & — T —

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

31.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, issue
of new shares and shares buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debts.

FAIR VALVE MEASUREMENTS RECOGNISED
IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate to their fair values due to short-term maturities of
these financial instruments.

RERMBHRRME

=FRNA=THIFE

30. EXRERE

31.

BERERMREEERAR o

AEBEREEES  UERAEEANE
BERBEAFELEFNEE  RKIT
FREBERER A 2 B2 & E T Em
RRRFMEABR NEE 2 BER
BEH F—HAM — 3 o

AEBzEAERBRACRRSEE
MRARREEARIEEZ (B2 #ET
AR FERAK)

ESNFEREERVELER - ER
Az —8D  EFEEBELAKRAR
ERAE 2 HERR - REBEEEZE
R AKREBEBRRNEE  BITHR
o BRIKRORBETHES  FTEHER
BRHER

EHAMBRREAERN
AFEEHE

EXRREBEAARIRZIASEE R
BERGBRABEIRRERELNS ZQF
EBEAE RARZTLRTAKRNE
H A B 81 o

F R 2022/23

205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=—F NA=t+HItFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND RUHEMBARARERIEEE
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS E) S
During the year, gain on disposal of subsidiaries in sum of RAFEAN  ERALEMB QT
HK$6,360,000 was recognised, details are as follows: %R &% 456,360,000/ 7T - SIBEWT
(a) Disposal of a subsidiary — Skylimit (a) HEM B2 7 — Skylimit
On 6 March 2023, Dubaplain Limited (“Dubaplain”), RZEBE-_=F=A,8B &Xx&EE
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into #) % & M{ & 2 F]Dubaplain Limited
an instrument of transfer with Always Adept Limited, ([ Dubaplain |) B2 Always Adept
a company owned by Yip Wai Leung, Jerry, who is Limited (—ZX FADubaplainf) M — &
the sole director of Dubaplain, to dispose of 100% of SEEREENAAT) FT T BEEX
equity interests in Skylimit, a wholly-owned subsidiary % NHERAKENZERBER
of the Group at a consideration of US$1 (equivalent to ASkylimith)100% R Nz » B B
approximately HK$7.8). The consideration of was fully KER/IEZET(HERLN78ET) °
settled by cash. The disposal was completed on the same REZENREXNMN - ZHEHEFIE
date. EREAEK °
The details are as follows: FIEAT
HK$°000
FET
Consideration RE
Cash consideration received ERSRE =
Net assets (liabilities) being disposed of: HENBEE(ERE)
Bank balances IRITEE R 52
Other payables H A FE A 5RIB (1,386)
Net liabilities upon disposal HENFEE (1,334)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & BT B & B B W as 1,334
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARMNES R FE
Cash consideration received EHIRERE =
Less: Bank balances disposed of o HEMRITER (52)
(52)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

NRHEMBLARARE R ILEKE
EK-—1E

(b) ERILEEEXBR LEHE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

(b) Discontinued operations and disposal of

subsidiaries — HP Group

On 9 June 2023, Easykit Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Inter Unicorn Limited (“Inter Unicorn”), a
non-controlling shareholder of HPMG, to dispose of 60%
equity interests in HP Group and an assignment of debts
to assign the loan and other receivables from HP Group of
HK$3,447,000 to Inter Unicorn at a consideration of HK$2.
The consideration of was fully settled by cash. The disposal
was completed on the same date.

The results of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 July 2022 to 9 June 2023, which have been included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
are as follows:

RA-EREREE

R-ZE-_=FANE ~EEH
2EMBARIENBR A G EHE
ERERAR ((BRERE]  B&
BRI IEIERRR) ST B E i
NHEERREREZSEEN60%MK
gD THERBEEEENEX
T & U 3k 183,447,00058 T K B 1§
HETEHERER EHENEARVE
T REZHUB SN -ZHE
BHIHERF B EK °

ERIERERBR_FT__FtA
—RBE_Z_=FXANBHMEED
BREGSEZEKRERNEENT

Period from

1 July 2022 to Year ended

9 June 2023 30 June 2022
—E-_—F
tA—RHZE H=z
—E=-= —E-—
~ANH ~NA=+H
Hi HEFEE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FHETT FET
Revenue A 56 2,460 7,615
Other income E A 7 74 278
Change in inventories of finished &KX MFE
goods b= (136) 456
Purchases of goods and B REEmE
consumables HRigzE (1,042) (5,427)
Staff costs 8 TR 9 (2,630) (4,192)
Depreciation for property, plant  ¥% - BE MR EHH
and equipment e 5 (545) (1,574)
Depreciation for right-of-use ERAEEERN
assets e 5 (134) (267)
Allowance for ECL on trade FEUE Z AR A TEHR
receivables ERBEAEE 29 - (45)
Other operating expenses Hib &MY (2,872) (5,079)
Finance costs B%E A 8 (2) (15)
Loss before taxation BB ATE 1R (4,827) (8,250)
Taxation AL = =
Loss after taxation from KEHERIEEEEEN
discontinued operation BRELZEIE (4,827) (8,250)

BERRMREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE
32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

NRHEMBLARARE R ILEKE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued XB-&

(b) Discontinued operations and disposal of (b) ERUEREXEBRREHEWE
subsidiaries - HP Group - continued AA-BREBEREE-&
The details are as follows: BT

HK$°000
FHET
Consideration RE
Cash consideration received EUHRSRE -
Net assets (liabilities) being disposed of: HENFEE (BE) :
Property and equipment I EYSE L] 1,220
Inventories BE 341
Trade and other receivables FEULE 5 BR 3 I E i pE B IR 320
Bank balances RITH R 8
Trade and other payables JE T B 5 BR 3K I H th & 1< ;RIE (12,564)
Net liabilities upon disposal HENFERE (10,675)
Less: Non-controlling interest derecognised R IETERE IEEE HI M R 5,649
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries b EF B A A8 W 5,026
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARWRESREFE
Cash consideration received BEWRSRE -
Less: Bank balances disposed of B ERIRITE R (8)
(8)
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THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

33. &2 T W B AR R &R

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

2023 2022
—E-= —F-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it F#T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 50 35
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,896 =
Investments in subsidiaries WERRIRE 33(a) - -
1,946 35
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - B REMEIR
receivables FKIE 305 290
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LB /B 2 B) 5R08 34,071 44,890
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREFEY 302 1,482
34,678 46,662
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables fEET & B R H A e F0E 1,973 3,938
Amounts due to subsidiaries EANIRIEPNGIE/ S 7,808 4,063
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,326 =
11,107 8,001
Net current assets REBEEFE 23,571 38,661
Total assets less current HEERRBAE
liabilities 25,517 38,696
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 574 =
Net assets BEEFE 24,943 38,696
EQUITY E=
Share capital [N 24 113,631 113,631
Reserves s 33(b) (88,688) (74,935)
Total Equity R 24,943 38,696

The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on and signed on its behalf
by:

Lo Kam Wing, /r
B8 crsat
Director

EZE

EERCHBREETIE LT BRI
xUHUNTEFARRSE:

Ho Wai Hung
Al {2 1
Director

EF

BERRMREEERAR

F R 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY - continued

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

3. DT MNEEMRRK—E

(a) B ARKRE

2023 2022
—EZ=F —_ZF-_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETMRRG - KA 1
Accumulated impairment losses 2EREERE (1) (1)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company ARABETEMBL R ZFHE
Place of
incorporation Issued share
and registration /  capital / paid up Attributable equity
Company name operation capital interests  Principal activities
Al AL K BERITRE/ FEfh
NREMH B/ EEBY BRREEX RAERZ FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# &
China Billion Limited" British Virgin Islands usD1 100% - Investment Holding
ABRAHS 1% REER
Casson China Limited" British Virgin Islands UsD1 100% - Investment Holding
RBRAHS 1%7T REER
EnviroAssets GmbH" Germany EUR25,000 - 100%  Holding freehold land
{ge 25,0008 7T RAXKAFELN
EnviroEnergy GmbH" Germany EUR500,000 - 100%  Holding freehold land
= 500,0008% 7T RAEKARELN
EnviroPlastics GmbH" Germany EUR27,650 - 90%  Trading of plastic
recycling materials and
plastics processing
provision
(L 27,6508X 7T EEMPEN R4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 3. RABIMEBBIRREK—E&
THE COMPANY - continued

() HEBARKRE &
FATEEMBARZHE - &

(a) Investments in subsidiaries — continued

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

- continued

Place of
incorporation

and registration /

Issued share

capital / paid up

Attributable equity

Company name operation capital interests  Principal activities
Al A K ERITRE/ FEfh
NCE:E ] B/ EEBE BRRER RA#ER FEEH
Directly Indirectly
;3 i &

EnviroPower GmbH" Germany EUR100,000 - 100%  Trading of waste
construction materials
and processing
provision

it 100,0008( 70 BEREBENEIR
R R

Red Huge Limited" Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Trading of metal scrap
materials

WEARAA B8 15T EEMWSBREN

Gain Asset Limited" Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management
services

BXBRRA" B 1B RUEEERE

Blue Sky Recycling Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Trading of plastics

Technology (Japan) recycling materials and
Company Limited" plastics processing
provision

ERE M (BAX) B 10,0007% 7T EEDKEH KR

BRAR" BT AR5
Green Strength Hong Kong HK$7,800,000 - 60%  Trading and processing
(International) Limited" of recyclable oil and
biodiesel

ENRRE(BR)BERAR &R 7,800,0007% 7 EERMIAIERBE
i) &R b S

Noble Ample Limited" Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100%  Money lending

ERERARA" BB 500,000/ 7T MR

BERERMREEERAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 3. RABIMEBBIRREK—E&
THE COMPANY - continued

(a) Investments in subsidiaries - continued (a) B ARIKE &
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company AAREEMB AR ZFHE &
- continued

Place of
incorporation Issued share
and registration /  capital / paid up Attributable equity
Company name operation capital interests  Principal activities
AR R BRITRE/ 1
AEER B N EHEER BAESE FEXK
Directly Indirectly
HE i &

Disposed subsidiaries during the year (note)

ERFFEAHENNERR (HZ)

Health Plus Medical Group ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 = 60%  Investment holding
Limited"

RREESERRAR" BE 5,000,000/ 7T REER

Health Plus Medical Centre  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 60%  Clinical health services
Limited" provision

RRERPLERAR B 10,0007 REERKERRS

Health Plus Laboratory Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 60% Laboratory diagnostic
Limited" services provision

RECBRAROERAR" B 10,000/ 7T RE{CR2E RS

Health Plus Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 60%  Trading of healthcare
Limited" products

RREELRERAR BE 10,0008 7T EERERREEM

Note: These subsidiaries were disposed of on 9 June 2023. Wit BERAER=ZFZ=FE~NAN

HHE -

Kind of legal entity: FEBRELRE

A Limited liability company A BRAF]

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RmEBR - BEEAMEQRR

the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil). TEEAERRESF (ZFE=-=

HE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY - continued

(b)Reserves of the Company

3. XD EMNEERRK—E

(b) &2 FfEE

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R 1358 BRRR -S| &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&7 &7 TET TR
(Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))
(Hfzt25(a)  (B1aE25(b))
At 1 July 2021 RZZE=—F+tH—H 415,011 56,897 (536,170) (64,262)
Loss for the year rEEEE - = (10,673) (10,673)
At 30 June 2022 and R-ZE--FXA=+AH
1 July 2022 kR=—ZE-"%+A—-AH 415,011 56,897 (546,843) (74,935)
Loss for the year REEEE - - (13,753) (13,753)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZEZ=FXA=1H 415,011 56,897 (560,596) (88,688)

BERRMREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 34. FFEEFIMER
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries TRENEALASERHEHREEKR
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests at the IEEH RN EMNB RS -

end of the reporting period:

Place of incorporation and Accumulated
Company name Note principal place of business non-controlling interests
NCIECE F = oE B AL it B 3 E A St B At FEFItEER
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
GSI (a) Hong Kong 4,740 3,653
BEHERR &
EnviroPlastics GmbH (b) Germany (3.411) (3,266)
fEE
Blue Sky Recycling Technology Hong Kong
(Japan) Company Limited
("BSRT (Japan)”) () (4,275) (4,114)
EXO M (AAR) R AR i
([EXEW(BZA)])
HP Group (d) Hong Kong - (3,719)
REBESHE BB
(2,946) (7,446)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F A=+ HIEE
34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued 34, FFiEHIMERS —

BRARNSERE ARG ([
FEES ) NENBARNMEMEE
BERTX - ATHBMBER SRE
TRARIEHEEANEHE -

A —d
o

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI") is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before inter-company eliminations.

(a) GSI (a) ELE&F
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E_-=

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFET

Proportion of NCI's ownership FEE I M R w O R
interests e L 40% 40%
Non-current assets FERBDEE 5,442 2,104
Current assets mEEE 15,428 21,296
Current liabilities mENE & (5.807) (14,268)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (3.213) =
Net assets BEFE 11,850 9,132
Carrying amount of NCI FEEGIMERNREE S5 4,740 3,653
Revenue A 73,116 424,247
Profit for the year 2N 5 A 2,717 1,297
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE 2 NGB 2,717 1,297
Profit attributable to NCI 55 B P FE TR o M 55 0% A 1,087 518

Total comprehensive income attributable 5287 FE4E #2589
to NCI 2H KA 1,087 518
Net cash generated from operating activities & & & ) FT1S3H & F 58 748 14,754
Net cash used in investing activities WEEESFTAE 25 - (2,194)
Net cash used in financing activities BEREMARSFE (8,515) (5,000)

BERRMREEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2028 BEE — T -_=F ~A=1tHILFE

34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued 34. P HIM RS —E

(b) EnviroPlastics GmbH (b) EnviroPlastics GmbH

2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Proportion of NCI's ownership JEPRGEREZS A A
interests 1 2% £t £ 9.58% 9.58%
Non-current assets EMENEE 3,687 4,353
Current assets MENE 682 802
Current liabilities mENBE (39,959) (39,241)
Net liabilities FRE (35,590) (34,086)
Carrying amount of NCI FEE MR R AR £ 5 (3.411) (3,266)
Revenue WA 2,646 3,313
Loss for the year REFEIE (179) (6,723)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFEEZEEELE (1,503) (2,821)
Loss attributable to NCI BN IEEH SR EE (17) (644)
Total comprehensive loss attributable BN IEE S SR
to NCI 2HERERE (144) (270)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEFTAESFE (3.841) (4,019)
Net cash used in investing activities KRERBAAR ST (7) (186)
Net cash generated from financing activities B & EBNFT5IR & /F 58 3,583 4,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F A=+ HIEE
34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued 34. P HIM RS —E

(c) BSRT (Japan) (c) EXEW(AZAK)
2023 2022
—EC-= —EF-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Proportion of NCI's ownership JE2 I R 2SO R A E
interests BEZS L7 49% 49%
Non-current assets ERBEE - 4,316
Current assets mENE E 3,172 2,599
Current liabilities mENAE (11,895) (15,310)
Net liabilities FaE (8,723) (8,395)
Carrying amount of NCI FEESI MR RE 2R (4,275) (4,114)
Revenue A = 847
Loss for the year REEEIE (328) (2,462)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AREE L HEEIBERE (328) (2,888)
Loss attributable to NCI BRI A SR (161) (1,206)
Total comprehensive loss attributable 5B R IEE S R A
to NCI ZHEEER (161) (1,415)
Net cash used in operating activities R EB AT RIS EEE (556) (1,289)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EENPTRIR S R - (2,000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 B E—E —_=F NA=THILFE
34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued 34. P HIM RS —E

(d) HP Group d) EREEEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$°000
FE T FET
Proportion of NCI's ownership JE 72 ) | RE 25 O HE B
interests 1 7= B 51 40% 40%
Non-current assets ERBEE - 1,899
Current assets MENEE - 989
Current liabilities mEBAE - (12,184)
Net liabilities FEE - (9,296)
Carrying amount of NCI FEEGI MR RE 2R - (3,719)
Revenue WA 2,460 7,615
Loss for the period / year ANHEAR,FEEIE (4,827) (8,250)
Total comprehensive loss for the M/ FEZEEBR
period / year 4% (4,827) (8,250)
Loss attributable to NCI BRI RN EE (1,931) (3,300)
Total comprehensive loss attributable 5B R IEE S MR SR
to NCI ZHEEBEAE (1,931) (3,300)

Net cash (used in) generated from operating &2 &%) (FTf) Fi33H &

activities ik (616) 440
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTARE S FRE - (210)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & BB FTSIE & 55 85 6,859
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35.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RERMBHRRME

Year ended 30 June 2023 HE T -_=F NA=THILFE

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

5. HMBEREER
(a) ERtETEELANEBEE

Lease liabilities

HESE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥R 4] 2,042 905

Additions NE 6,128 2,003
Derecognition upon deregistration of a R iE — R B R AR & 1

subsidiary TR - (91)

Interest accrued FE =t A8 136 107

Net cash flows ReMEFRE (1,480) (882)

Transferred to other payables 2 B JE T 5RIE (1,100) =

At the end of the reporting period A& HI K 5,726 2,042

(b) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities amounting to
HK$6,128,000 (2022: HK$2,003,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group has
disposed of two plastic recycling machines at the
consideration in sum of HK$4,835,000, of which
USD450,000 (equivalent to HK$3,510,000) were settled
by off-settling the current accounts maintained with a
company controlled by a family member of Chou Pin Juo,
the main shareholder of a non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary and the remaining balance of HK$1,326,000 has
not yet settled as at 30 June 2023.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The re-presentation of comparative information is attributable
to the discontinued operations, where necessary, to conform to
the basis of presentation and the classification adopted in the
current year.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 September
2023.

(b) EEFREXRS

REEZE-_ZE-_=F~A=+H81t
FERN AEBHEREAEEER
THEBEAE6,128,0008T(—F
— T4 2,003,000/ 7T) °

REBEE T = XA=1tHIHF
EA - AEEEKEHERIBLE LD
W - 5 BB A4,835,0007% IT -
H /1450,000% 7t (A #23,510,000
B BBREEE-RWBE QAN
ISR ETERREAMEZ
KEEMK B4 2 QR g ERE
BN RZBE_=FA=+H8"
#:%81,326,0007 7T i KRBT o

36. LB EF

B BER HNERE R LEE
EEB(WEFE)  UREREFE
PIFR ER AR B 51 3 B 0 SR L E -

37. #t GRS M |R

RAEMBRRER_-_ZT_=F1H
“HtN\BEEES R TI -

HERFEEEEEBR AR o FIR 2022/23
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEMBKEBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

AEEBETRAMBRFEZRENEERRA

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: EEEDNT :
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZB-=H —BCCF i S 2 - St 323 —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FAET
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(EFIH)  (EHIIH)
Results E4
Continuing operations: SEES IR
Revenue WA 80,026 433,645 58,202 113,860 96,915
Discontinued operations: ERIEEEER
Revenue LON 2,460 7,615 2,064 N/A N/A
NEH NEH
82,486 441,260 60,266 113,860 96,915
Loss for the year attributable to ~ AAREAE AL
owners of the Company KEEHAE
- Continuing operations ~BELEERK (6,138) (22,781) (17,537) (26,327) (25,899)
- Discontinued operations —BRIEEREER (2,896) (4,950) (3,628) N/A N/A
NEA NEH
(9,034) (27,731) (21,165) (26,327) (25,899)
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets BEE 50,687 71,596 90,208 109,292 110,482
Total liabilities Rafk (12,246) (28,476) (12,314) (8,162) (4,919)
Total equity attributable to the A2 F#EE AEM
owners of the Company B 41,387 50,566 80,873 100,995 103,721
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